
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
April 17, 2007 

 
6:15 PM    Work Study Caucus Session Discussion 

• Possible City logos presentation by Mr. Craig Simon of Craig Martin Simon 
Design. 

• Pending agenda items 
 
7:00 PM    Business Meeting 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call  
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  

• Tentative budget for the fiscal year that begins May 1, 2007 and ends April 
30, 2008. 

• Special Ordinance 2007-1208: Adopting the budget for the fiscal year that 
begins May 1, 2007 and ends April 30, 2008.  (Cline)  

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be 

enacted by one motion. Prior to asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, 

the mayor will ask if anyone desires to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for 

public discussion. No separate discussion of these items will occur unless a Council 

Member requests the item to be removed from the Consent Agenda. If an item is 

removed from the Consent Agenda, it will be considered elsewhere on the agenda for 

this meeting.   

 
Minutes of the regular meeting April 3, 2007 
 
Police Department Report for the month of March, Fire Department Reports for 
the months of February and March, Treasurer’s Reports for the month of March. 
 
Payroll and Bills for the first half of April 2007 and HOME Rehab Expenditures 
 
PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for persons who desire to address 

the Council. The Illinois Open Meeting Act mandates that the City Council may NOT 

take action on comments received on matters that have not been identified on this 

agenda, but the Council may direct staff to address the topic or refer the matter for 

action on the agenda for another meeting. Persons addressing the Council are 

requested to limit their presentations to three minutes and to avoid repetitious 



 

comments. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Motion – Adopt Resolution 2007-2685: Prescribing contributions required of 

Employees and Retirees who elect to participate in the group health, 
dental, and life insurance plan of the municipality. (Cline) 

 
Motion – Adopt Resolution 2007- 2686: Giving notice to the Illinois Department of 

Transportation of the 4th of July parade to be sponsored by the City of 
Mattoon. (Ervin) 

 
Motion – Adopt Resolution 2007-2687: Giving notice to the Illinois Department of 

Transportation of the Bagelfest parade to be sponsored by the City of 
Mattoon.  (Ervin) 

 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1209: Adopting amendment to add 

territory to the Enterprise Zone boundaries. (White) 
 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1210: Authorizing the rezoning of 2800 – 

2820 Pine Avenue from R1 (Single-Family Residential) to R-2 (Single and 
Two-Family Residential). Catherine Shirley – Petitioner. (White) 

 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1211: Approving a variance to the sign 

code of the municipality on real estate owned by Mattoon Marketplace at 
104 Dettro Drive, Mattoon, Illinois. (White) 

 
Motion - Adopt Ordinance 2007-5229: Approving the Tax Increment 

Redevelopment Plan and Project for the South Route 45 Redevelopment 
Project Area. (White) 

 
Motion – Adopt Ordinance 2007-5230: Designating the South Route 45 

Redevelopment Project Area. (White) 
 
Motion – Adopt Ordinance 2007-5231: Adopting tax increment financing (TIF) for 

the South Route 45 TIF District. (White) 
 
Motion – Adopt Ordinance 2007-5232: Establishing and designating the South 

Route 45 Business District and approving the South Route 45 Business 
District Plan within the City of Mattoon, Illinois. (White) 

 
Motion –  Adopt Ordinance 2007-5233: Adopting a Municipal Retailers’ 

Occupation Business District Tax, Business District Service Occupational 
Tax, and Business District Hotel Operators’ Occupation Tax for the South 
Route 45 Business District. (White) 



 

 
Motion –  Approve Council Decision Request 2007-733: Accepting the 

recommendations of the Mid-town Incentive Review Committee for the 
following projects: (White) 

 
 Nathan Burton dba EZ Parcel (1301 Broadway) for an outright grant of 

$5,000; 
 Janice Moritz dba Warner’s Office Equipment (1601 Broadway) for an 

outright grant of $5,000;  
 Cory Sanders dba Cory Sanders & Company Real Estate (1400 and 1402-

1404 Broadway) for an annual subsidy grant of $4,721.50 for a term of 10 
years. 

 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1212: Authorizing the sale of Lot 99 in 

Lake Paradise Subdivision to Michael and Mary Pat Pluta, current 
owners of a home on leased premises at Lot 99, Lake Paradise 
Subdivision, and authorizing the Mayor to sign all documents necessary to 
complete the transaction. (Commonly known as 1859 Scenic Lane) 
(Schilling) 

 
Motion –  Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1213: Ratifying an employment agreement 

for Brian Johanpeter, Information Technology Director. (Cline)  
 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-734: Awarding the bids for water 

treatment chemicals of the Water Treatment Plant as follows:  (Schilling) 
  General Chemical for Alum in the amount of $32,910; 
  Ethanol Products for CO2 in the amount of $8,000; 
  Norit for Carbon in the amount of $50,130; 
  SAL Chemical for Polymer in the amount of $23,010; 
  Ulrich for Chlorine in the amount of $8,750; 
  Ulrich for Fluoride in the amount of $7,840; 
  Brenntag for Ammonia in the amount of $6,300; 
  and Carus for Polyphosphate blend in the amount of $10,150. 
 
Motion –  Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1214: Adopting compensation plan for 

employees not covered by collective bargaining agreements. (Cline)  
 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1215: Authorizing the Mayor to sign a TIF 

grant agreement reimbursing Meyer-Wortman Development L.L.C. for 
45% or up to $46,000 of the Incremental Property Taxes for a car wash at 
1713 Lake Land Boulevard in the Midtown TIF District. (White) 

 

Adjourn 



 

 UNAPPROVED MINUTES: 
 
 The City Council of the City of Mattoon held a regular meeting in the Council 
Chambers at City Hall on April 3, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. after a 6:30 p.m. caucus session. 
 
 Mayor White presiding. 
 
 Mayor White led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 The following members of the Council answered roll call in person:  YEA 
Commissioner David Cline, Absent Commissioner Randy Ervin, YEA Commissioner 
Joseph McKenzie, YEA Commissioner David Schilling, YEA  Mayor Charles E. White.   
 
 Also in attendance in person were City personnel:  City Administrator Alan 
Gilmore, Acting City Attorney Janett Winter-Black, Public Works Director David 
Wortman, Community Development Coordinator Kyle Gill, Fire Chief Michael Chism, 
Deputy Police Chief David Griffith, Information Technology Director Brian Johanpeter, 
and City Clerk Susan O’Brien. 
 
 The City of Mattoon, Illinois held a public hearing on April 3, 2007 in the City 
Hall Council Chambers to consider the adoption of ordinances approving a 
redevelopment plan, a redevelopment project area, and adopting tax increment financing 
(TIF) for the proposed South Route 45 TIF District.  Mayor White opened the hearing at 
7:00 p.m. and directed Administrator Gilmore to conduct the hearing.  Administrator 
Gilmore introduced Mr. Brian Pratt of Peckham Guyton Albers & Viets, Inc. (PGAV), 
consultant for the proposed TIF District.  Mr. Pratt’s presentation included the 
requirement of a single public hearing for TIFs; review of the processes of notifications 
for the public and Joint Review Board; certification by engineer; completion of plan; 
appropriate notices in newspapers; map; activities anticipated with TIF plan; proposed 
public development activities; and $2.6 million budget.  Mr. Pratt opened the floor for 
questions from the Council.  There were no questions.  Administrator Gilmore called for 
questions from the public.  Mr. Bob Dunn and Mr. Ralph Foley, both business owners 
within the proposed TIF, posed questions regarding the proposed TIF District area and 
surrounding areas, and budget of the TIF.  Mr. Pratt and Administrator Gilmore 
responded.  Mayor White closed the public hearing at 7:14 p.m. 
 
 The City of Mattoon, Illinois held a public hearing on April 3, 2007 in the City 
Hall Council Chambers to consider the adoption of the Business District Plan and 
Business District Project for the South Route 45 Business District and creation of the 
Business District.  Mayor White opened the hearing at 7:14 p.m. and directed 
Administrator Gilmore to conduct the hearing.  Administrator Gilmore introduced Mr. 
Brian Pratt of Peckham Guyton Albers & Viets, Inc. (PGAV), consultant for the proposed 
Business District.  Mr. Pratt’s presentation included prior sales tax amendment to up to 
1%; described the Business District Plan, boundaries, blighted area, eligibility factors, 
additional findings, public/private activities, plan budget, plan objectives, fund sources; 
23-year length, conformance with Comprehensive Plan, and tax rate effects on large 



 

purchases/consumers comparisons.  Mr. Pratt opened the floor for questions.  Mr. Bob 
Dunn and Mr. & Mrs. Ralph Foley, business owners within the proposed Business 
District, voiced concerns over the increased sales tax; years of business district; potential 
increased sales forecast; hotel/motel taxes; and service occupation tax.  Mr. Pratt 
responded with Administrator Gilmore indicating the business district was just the 
beginning with additional business districts throughout the City in the future.  
Administrator Gilmore stated the hotel/motel taxes statutorily must be used to promote 
tourism.  Council discussed the TIF, Business District, and amendments to both.  
Administrator Gilmore requested additional questions.  There were no additional 
questions.  Mayor White closed the public hearing at 7:41 p.m. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be 

enacted by one motion.  Prior to asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, the 

mayor will ask if anyone desires to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for public 

discussion.  No separate discussion of these items will occur unless a Council Member 

requests the item to be removed from the Consent Agenda.  If an item is removed from the 

Consent Agenda, it will be considered elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting. 

 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to approve the consent 
agenda consisting of minutes of the regular meeting March 20, 2007; Police department 
report for the month of February, payroll and bills for the last half of March, 2007 and 
HOME Rehab Expenditures.  
 

  
Bills and Payroll for the last half of March 2007  
 

  General Fund      
Payroll         $      244,925.69  

Bills         $        68,723.51  

      Total   $      313,649.20  

  Hotel Tax Fund      

Payroll         $         1,938.54  

Bills         $         1,619.64  
      Total   $         3,558.18  

  
Festival 
Management     

Bills        $        32,480.85  
      Total  $        32,480.85  

  
Capital Project 
Fund    

Bills         $        62,531.10  
      Total   $        62,531.10  
  Water Fund     



 

Payroll         $        27,385.81  

Bills         $      109,969.68  
      Total   $      137,355.49  

  Sewer Fund     

Payroll         $        28,692.02  

Bills         $        62,912.36  

      Total   $        91,604.38  
  Cemetery Fund      
Payroll         $         3,149.97  

Bills         $            391.98  
      Total   $         3,541.95  

  
Motor Fuel Tax 
Fund     

Bills         $        30,709.82  
      Total   $        30,709.82  

  
Health 
Insurance      

Bills         $        73,742.54  
      Total   $        73,742.54  
        

 
 Mayor White declared the motion to approve the consent agenda carried by the 
following vote:  YEA Commissioner Cline, Absent Commissioner Ervin, YEA 
Commission McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White 
 
 PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for persons who desire to address 

the Council. The Illinois Open Meeting Act mandates that the City Council may NOT take 

action on comments received on matters that have not been identified on this agenda, but 

the Council may direct staff to address the topic or refer the matter for action on the 

agenda for another meeting. Persons addressing the Council are requested to limit their 

presentations to three minutes and to avoid repetitious comments. 

 

 Mrs. Lea Northam reiterated her opposition to smoking in the parks around 
playground equipment with a few others, and requested placement of signs and 
receptacles near the playground area.  Council expressed their opinions on the subject 
with Administrator Gilmore adding a possible point of law restricting non-home rule 
communities’ inability to pass random laws without referendum. 
 
 Clerk O’Brien read the following proclamation: 
 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 



 

  
WHEREAS, Lake Land College serves the residents of Community 
College District #517 
with a broad array of educational services including transfer 
education, two-year degree programs, career preparation, basic skills 
education and continuing education; and  
 
WHEREAS, More than 20,000 residents have received associate 
degrees and certificates from 
Lake Land College and more than 100,000 residents have taken 
advantage of continuing  
and community education classes, and   
 
WHEREAS, Founded in 1994, the Lake Land College Alumni 
Association has more than 15,000 members and provides 
opportunities for members to establish lifelong relationships, 
promote the unceasing excellence of the College, and facilitate the 
continued success of Alumni, and  
 
WHEREAS, The alumni of Lake Land College significantly 
contribute to the economic impact of east-central Illinois with a 
majority of alumni remaining or returning to this area, and  
 
WHEREAS, Lake Land College alumni play an increasing role in 
workforce and economic development in east-central Illinois, and 
 
WHEREAS, 45 alumni will be inducted in the newly established 
Distinguished Alumni Society on April 19th, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Lake Land College Alumni Association will 
celebrate on April 19th the Grand Opening of Alumni Park  which is 
the newest addition to Lake Land's campus and offers a place for 
students to study, instructors to hold classes, alumni to reflect on 
their time at the College and area residents to enjoy the beauty of the 
campus, and  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, that April 19, 2007 be 
declared "Lake Land College Alumni Day" in honor of alumni and 
their important contributions to east-central Illinois.  
 
IN RECOGNITION THEREOF, I, Mayor Charles E. White, have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Mattoon, 
Coles County, Illinois to be affixed this 3rd day of April, 2007. 
     /s/Charles E. White 
     Charles E. White, Mayor 
     City of Mattoon, Illinois 



 

 

NEW BUSINESS  

 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to adopt Ordinance 
2007-5228, adopting the 2007 Amendment to the City of Mattoon Comprehensive Plan 
for the South Route 45 Study Area.  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2007-5228 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2007 AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF 
MATTOON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

FOR THE SOUTH ROUTE 45 STUDY AREA 
 

City of Mattoon, Illinois 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mattoon (hereinafter referred to as 
the City Council), pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-12-6, is authorized to adopt a comprehensive 
plan for guiding the physical growth and development of Mattoon and contiguous 
unincorporated areas within one and one-half mile of the corporate boundaries of 
Mattoon; and 
 

WHEREAS, such plan may be adopted for the whole area or in separate 
geographical or functional parts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council is pursuing a community development strategy for 

this Area of the City and desires to establish long-range development policy for this Area; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the firm of Peckham Guyton Albers & Viets, Inc. (PGAV), a firm 

specializing in the field of urban planning, was retained to advise and assist with the 
preparation the 2007 Amendment to the City of Mattoon Comprehensive Plan for the 
South Route 45 Study Area; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council passed a motion on February 20, 2007, directing 

the Plan Commission to consider the “2007 Amendment to the City of Mattoon 
Comprehensive Plan” prepared by PGAV, dated February 16, 2007, and provide its 
recommendation thereon to the City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, this draft Plan was reviewed and considered by the Plan 
Commission at a public meeting, held on March 12’th, 2007 at the Mattoon City Hall.  At 
this meeting, the Plan Commission passed a motion recommending to the City Council 
that the 2007 Amendment to the City of Mattoon Comprehensive Plan for the South 
Route 45 Study Area, dated February 16, 2007 be adopted by the City Council provided 
the study area is further amended to include a parcel of land containing 51 acres more or 
less, approximately 900 feet wide along the west right of way line of U.S. Rt.45 lying 
between Paradise Road and Magnet Road being designated for commercial use; and 



 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing as required by law on March 

20, 2007 regarding the 2007 Amendment to the City of Mattoon Comprehensive Plan for 
the South Route 45 Study Area, dated February 16, 2007. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
MATTOON, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
SECTION 1:  The recitals contained in this ordinance are restated herein and adopted as 
the findings of the City of Mattoon, Illinois. 
 
SECTION 2:  The 2007 Amendment to the City of Mattoon Comprehensive Plan, dated 
February 16, 2007, which contains descriptive narrative and maps relating to proposed 
land uses, is hereby adopted as the official Comprehensive Plan for the South Route 45 
Study Area. 
 
SECTION 3:  Any portion of any official Comprehensive Plan for the City of Mattoon 
previously adopted that is in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan for the South Route 
45 Study Area is hereby declared null and void. 
 
SECTION 4:  The City Clerk is hereby directed to record a copy of this Ordinance to 
serve as a notice in the public records with the Coles County Recorder of Deeds. 
 
SECTION 5:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon the expiration of ten 
days from and after its passage and the filing of notice with the Coles County Recorder of 
Deeds. 
 

PRESENTED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Mattoon, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with 4 voting 
aye, 0 voting nay, 1 absent, which meeting was held on the 3rd day of April, 2007. 
 
/s/ Charles E. White 
Charles E. White, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien  
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk 

EXHIBIT 
 

March 14, 2007 
 

A meeting of the Planning Commission was held Monday, March 12, 2007.  Chairman 
Gary Boske called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. in the caucus room at city hall. 
 
Members present (in person):  Gary Boske, Chris Hartbank, Tom Sherman, Mary Wetzel, 
Dean Willaredt, Bill Whitworth, David Wortman and Judy Winn.  City Administrator 
Alan Gilmore and Community Development Coordinator Kyle Gill were also present. 



 

 
Members absent:  Mary Ann Alt, Mike Chism, and Lew Stiff. 
 

I. Motion by Tom Sherman, seconded by Mary Wetzel to approve the 
minutes of the February 12, 2007 meeting as presented.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
II. Alan Gilmore outlined the proposed 2007 Amendment to the City of 

Mattoon Comprehensive Plan, South Route 45 Study Area. Gilmore 
illustrated the general land use type for the South Route 45 Study Area 
and cited the 2007 Plan Amendment promotes the development of 
commercial, industrial, mixed uses, as well as single and multi-family 
residential uses.  

 
Bill Whitworth suggested that the area be extended to include the 
Lump Property, which is located on the west side of Route 45, the 
adjacent northern 51 acres, which is from Mattoon Heating and Air 
Conditioning  north to the Magnet Road.  Whitworth suggested 
extending the commercial zoning to include the aforementioned 
area. 
 
Motion by Bill Whitworth, seconded by Dean Willaredt to 
recommend the adoption of the draft of the 2007 Amendment to 
the Comprehensive Plan, South Route 45 Study Area, with an 
amendment to include the 51 acres, located north of the proposed 
area.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
  Being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 2:15 p.m. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
       Judy E. Winn 
       Secretary 
 

 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Cline, Absent Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA 
Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to adopt Special 
Ordinance 2007-1207, granting a variance from building setback requirements to enable a 
building addition of 25 feet located at 720 North 33rd Street.  Delbert D. Hamilton and 
Commercial Refrigeration of Central Illinois, Inc. – Petitioners.  

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1207 



 

 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIANCE FROM BUILDING SETBACK 

REQUIREMENTS TO ENABLE CONSTRUCTION OF AN ADDITION ON THE 
BUILDING LOCATED AT 720 N. 33RD STREET, MATTOON, IL 

 
 WHEREAS there has been filed a written Petition by Delbert D. Hamilton and 
Commercial Refrigeration of Central Illinois, Inc., an Illinois corporation, for a variance 
respecting the property legally described as: 
 

Lot two (2), except the East fifteen (15) feet thereof, in block fourteen (14) 
in Gibler’s replat of block fifteen (15) and of lots three (3) and four (4) in 
block fourteen (14) in Noyes’ addition to the original Town, now City of 
Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 

 
 WHEREAS said Petition requests that a variance be granted pursuant to 
applicable ordinances of the municipality to allow construction of a new 25 foot addition 
to the North end of the building approximately 30 feet in width, which addition would 
reduce the setback requirement on the North end of said building between same and Piatt 
Avenue, Mattoon, Illinois. 
 
 WHEREAS the zoning code requires a 25-foot front yard setback from Piatt 
Avenue on the North side of said lot. 
 
 WHEREAS the Board of Zoning Appeals held a properly noticed public hearing 
on March 20, 2007 regarding Petitioners’ request for said variance, and no objectors were 
present; and 
 
 WHEREAS both the Planning Commission for the City of Mattoon, Coles 
County, Illinois, and the Zoning Board of Appeals for the City of Mattoon Coles County, 
Illinois, have recommended that the requested variance be granted; and 
 
 WHEREAS the City Council for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, 
deems that the recommended variance is in the public interest. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Pursuant to the enabling authority provided at Section §159.05 of the Mattoon 
Code of Ordinances, the property legally described as aforesaid, be and the same is 
granted a variance of the front yard setback requirement on the North side of said lot 
between the North edge of said building and the South curb of Piatt Avenue to enable 
construction of a building addition, 25 feet North and South and approximately 30 feet 
East and West, to the existing building located at 720 N. 33rd Street, Mattoon, Illinois. 
 
Section 2.   This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and 
approval by the City Council. 



 

 
Section 3.   This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Section 4.   The City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of this ordinance 
with the Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois. 
 
Upon motion by Mayor White , seconded by Commissioner McKenzie, adopted this 3rd 
day of April, 2007, by a roll call vote as follows: 
 
AYES (Names) Commissioner Cline, Commissioner McKenzie,  
   Commissioner Schilling, Mayor White 
NAYS (Names) None 
ABSENT (Names) Commissioner Ervin 
 
Approved this 3rd day of April, 2007. 
 
       /s/ Charles E. White  
       Charles E. White, Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, 
Illinois 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien     /s/ J. Preston Owen  
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on April 4, 2007 
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Cline, Absent Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA 
Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Commissioner Schilling seconded by Commissioner Cline moved to approve 
Council Decision Request 2007-727, approving the bid specifications, cost estimate, and 
authorizing a competitive solicitation for water chemicals at the Water Treatment Plant, 
and authorizing the mayor to sign the documents.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Cline, Absent Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA 
Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Commissioner McKenzie seconded by Commissioner Cline moved to approve 
Council Decision Request 2007-728, approving the plans, specifications, cost estimate, 
and authorizing a competitive solicitation for construction of a waterline on Richmond 
Avenue and Western Avenue, and authorizing the mayor to sign the documents. (Sections 



 

03-00110-00-WM and 04-00117-00-WM) 

 

 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Cline, Absent Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA 
Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Commissioner Schilling seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to approve 
Council Decision Request 2007-729, approving the bid specifications, cost estimate, and 
authorizing a competitive solicitation for 40,000 wetland plants at Lake Paradise, and 
authorizing the mayor to sign the documents.  This is part of the Clean Lakes Project at 

Lake Paradise. 

 

 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Cline, Absent Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA 
Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Commissioner Cline seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to approve 
Council Decision Request 2007-730, approving a $3,500.00 grant by the Tourism 
Advisory Committee from hotel/motel tax funds to Coles County Airport Authority for 
the 2007 Air Show to be held July 4, 2007.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Cline, Absent Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA 
Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to approve Council 
Decision Request 2007-731, authorizing a TIF grant agreement that would reimburse 
Meyer-Wortman Development L.L.C. for 45% or up to $46,000 of the Incremental 
Property Taxes for a car wash at 1713 Lake Land Boulevard in the Midtown TIF District.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Cline, Absent Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA 
Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
  Commissioner Cline seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to approve 
Council Decision Request 2007-732, approving the purchase of a document management 
information system, Laserfische, in the amount of $19,032.00 from Tyler Technologies.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Cline, Absent Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA 
Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to adjourned at 8:15 
p.m. 
 



 

 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Cline, Absent Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA 
Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
        /s/ Susan J. O’Brien  
        City Clerk  
 
  

DEPARTMENT REPORTS ARE AVAILABLE IN THE CITY 
CLERK’S OFFICE. 
 
 
BILLS & PAYROLL: 
 
 



CITY OF MATTOON 
4-5-07 PAYROLL 
3-17-07/3-30-07 

 
CITY COUNCIL                       110 5110-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              1,476.91 
CITY CLERK                         110 5120-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              4,641.09 
                                   110 5120-113        OVERTIME                                 104.14 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR                 110 5130-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              3,321.92 
FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION           110 5150-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              1,115.43 
                                   110 5150-114        COMPENSATED ABSENCES                       9.34 
LEGAL SERVICES                     110 5160-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              2,319.33 
COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS              110 5170-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              3,043.19 
PLANNING & ZONING                  110 5180-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              1,591.68 
POLICE ADMINISTRATION              110 5211-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              9,231.64 
CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION             110 5212-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              8,430.23 
                                   110 5212-113        OVERTIME                                 885.60 
PATROL                             110 5213-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES             61,548.38 
                                   110 5213-113        OVERTIME                               2,057.59 
K-9 SERVICE                        110 5214-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              1,982.39 
POLICE RECORDS                     110 5216-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              3,550.61 
TRAFFIC CONTROL                    110 5220-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES                577.50 
COMMUNICATION SERVICES             110 5222-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              7,535.22 
                                   110 5222-113        OVERTIME                                 311.05 
SCHOOL RESOURCE PROGRAM            110 5227-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              2,001.46 
FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN              110 5241-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES             67,236.12 
                                   110 5241-113        OVERTIME                               5,176.50 
                                   110 5241-114        COMPENSATED ABSENCES                   7,976.14 
CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN             110 5261-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              3,264.85 
                                   110 5261-113        OVERTIME                                  26.23 
PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN                 110 5310-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              3,909.82 
                                   110 5310-114        COMPENSATED ABSENCES                     482.17 
STREETS                            110 5320-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES             16,167.21 
                                   110 5320-113        OVERTIME                                  96.96 
                                   110 5320-114        COMPENSATED ABSENCES                   3,000.36 
YARD WASTE COLLECTION              110 5335-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              2,049.35 
                                   110 5335-112        SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES               340.00 
                                   110 5335-113        OVERTIME                                 410.08 
CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION            110 5370-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              3,036.79 
                                   110 5370-112        SALARIES OF TEMP. EMPLOYEES              309.75 
                                   110 5370-113        OVERTIME                                  85.41 
CUSTODIAL SERVICES                 110 5381-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              2,276.57 
                                   110 5381-113        OVERTIME                                  73.44 
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE              110 5390-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              3,738.23 
                                   110 5390-113        OVERTIME                                 127.38 
PARK ADMINISTRATION                110 5511-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              6,686.69 
                                   110 5511-112        SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES               640.00 
                                   110 5511-113        OVERTIME                                 294.72 
LAKE ADMINISTRATION                110 5512-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              1,827.47 
                                   110 5512-112        SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES             1,798.50 
                                   110 5512-113        OVERTIME                                 445.05 
 
                                                       *** FUND 110 TOTALS ***              247,210.49 
  
HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION           122 5653-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              1,386.54 
 
                                                       *** FUND 122 TOTALS ***                1,386.54 
  
WATER TREATMENT PLANT              211 5353-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES             10,597.00 
                                   211 5353-113        OVERTIME                                 864.78 
                                   211 5353-114        COMPENSATED ABSENCES                     631.40 
WATER DISTRIBUTION                 211 5354-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              5,243.76 
                                   211 5354-113        OVERTIME                                 145.87 
ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION            211 5355-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              4,137.24 
                                   211 5355-113        OVERTIME                                  11.13 
                                   211 5355-114        COMPENSATED ABSENCES                     213.55 
ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL           211 5356-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              3,351.51 
                                   211 5356-114        COMPENSATED ABSENCES                     554.79 
 
                                                       *** FUND 211 TOTALS ***               25,751.03 
  



SANITARY SWR MTCE & CLEAN          212 5342-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES             13,788.64 
                                   212 5342-113        OVERTIME                                 204.27 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT         212 5344-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES             11,458.93 
                                   212 5344-113        OVERTIME                                 184.23 
                                   212 5344-114        COMPENSATED ABSENCES                     628.54 
ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION            212 5345-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              3,456.12 
                                   212 5345-113        OVERTIME                                  11.13 
                                   212 5345-114        COMPENSATED ABSENCES                     213.55 
ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL           212 5346-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              3,351.51 
                                   212 5346-114        COMPENSATED ABSENCES                     554.79 
 
                                                       *** FUND 212 TOTALS ***               33,851.71 
  
MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS           213 5361-111        SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES              2,473.97 
                                   213 5361-112        SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES               960.00 
 
                                                       *** FUND 213 TOTALS ***                3,433.97 
 
                                                       *** GRAND TOTALS ***                 311,633.74 
                         
 
                                          *** PAY CODE TOTALS *** 
 
                              PAY CODE                      NO# TIMES             HOURS           AMOUNT 
 
                        REG   REGULAR PAY                          24          2,707.00        48,438.77 
 
                        OT    OVERTIME PAY                         54            378.50        11,437.31 
 
                        SAL   SALARY PAY                           59         11,893.72       236,725.30 
 
                        VAC   VACATION PAY                          9            277.00         6,167.73 
 
                        HOL   HOLIDAY PAY-REG                      13             99.72         1,849.98 
 
                        SHFP  SHIFT PAY                             4            313.00           219.10 
 
                        SICK  SICK PAY-AFSCME                       6             98.50         1,880.08 
 
                        SHFT  SHIFT PAY                             2            464.00           278.40 
 
                        FUS   SICK-FD UNION                         7            164.00         3,141.00 
 
                        SKNU  SICK-NON UNION                        5             27.50           787.89 
 
                        CTE   COMP EARNED                           0              1.50             0.00 
 
                        CTP   COMP PAID                             0              3.00            69.03 
 
                        BURL  BURIAL PAY                            1              1.00            67.00 
 
                        FUV   VACATION PAY                          1             24.00           493.90 
 
                        SOTP  STRAIGHT OT POLICE                    0              3.00            78.25 

 



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: N/A  NON-DEPARTMENTAL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001653 CHRIST CHURCH          I-200704130031       110 4651-010        RENT-BURGESS : REFUND BURGESS RENTA 088214          40.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT       NON-DEPARTMENTAL         TOTAL:          40.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000110 DAVID W CLINE          I-200704119936       110 5110-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL 07 CELL PHONE  088217          50.00

 

01-000871 RANDY ERVIN            I-200704119934       110 5110-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL 07 CELL PHONE  088249          50.00

 

01-001104 JOE MCKENZIE           I-200704119933       110 5110-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL 07 CELL PHONE  088285          50.00

 

01-040490 DAVID SCHILLING        I-200704119935       110 5110-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL 07 CELL PHONE  088314          50.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 110   CITY COUNCIL             TOTAL:         200.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000051 AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISH I-57694              110 5120-519        OTHER PROFESS: CODIFICATION UPDATE  088191         566.33

01-000051 AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISH I-57728              110 5120-519        OTHER PROFESS: INTERNET SUPPLEMENT  088191         200.00

 

01-007401 CNA SURETY             I-200704119960       110 5120-522        NOTARY FEES  : NOTARY BOND-O'BRIEN  088218          30.00

 

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-200704119896       110 5120-802        HUNTING/FISHI: HUNT/FISH 3/27-4/2   000000         136.00

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-200704119961       110 5120-802        HUNTING/FISHI: HUNT/FISH 4/3-9      000000          26.75

 

01-040555 JC SCHULTZ ENTERPRISES I-165897             110 5120-519        OTHER PROFESS: FLAGS                088270         371.40

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-024011512          110 5120-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER NYD-012772    088334         323.04

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 120   CITY CLERK               TOTAL:       1,653.52

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001495 NORTHERN IL UNIVERSITY I-DCE006070          110 5130-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: GILMORE REGISTRATION 088297         100.00

 

01-012850 DOCUMENT RESOURCES     I-0184701            110 5130-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: DEPOSIT SLIPS        088243          50.87

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 130   CITY ADMINISTRATOR       TOTAL:         150.87

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-011700 DELL MARKETING LP      I-U74125733          110 5150-319        MISCELLANEOUS: HUNTERR PC           088237         917.98

 

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-84130              110 5150-576        SECURITY SERV: ALARM MONITORING     088239         300.00

 

01-030056 LAKE LAND FLORALS      I-200704129996       110 5150-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CLINE ARRANGEMENT    088274          45.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:       1,262.98

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 160  LEGAL SERVICES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000482 COLES CO SUPERVISOR OF I-200704129998       110 5160-519        OTHER PROFESS: PROPERTY OWNERSHIP L 088223          28.50

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-223                110 5160-319        MISC. SUPPLIE: FUEL 3-1/31          088233          46.04

 

01-009800 COLES CO CLERK & RECOR I-97341              110 5160-519        OTHER PROFESS: RECORD LIEN          088221          34.00

01-009800 COLES CO CLERK & RECOR I-97534              110 5160-519        OTHER PROFESS: RECORD NOTICES       088221         102.00

 

01-037951 J. PRESTON OWEN        I-200704119937       110 5160-565        CELLULAR TELE: APRIL 07 CELL PHONE  088299         100.00

 

01-044430 JOHN THOMAS            I-200704129997       110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: NUISANCE CLEAN UPS   088321         278.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 160   LEGAL SERVICES           TOTAL:         588.54

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-J0249327           110 5170-841        WIDE AREA NET: BACKUP SOFTWARE RENE 088322         419.97

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-J0249327-01        110 5170-841        WIDE AREA NET: BACKUP SOFTWARE RENE 088322         169.13

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P84265000101       110 5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: IT EQUIPMENT         088322          58.59

 

01-011700 DELL MARKETING LP      I-U71738670          110 5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: PC SPEAKERS          088237          71.96

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704119964       110 5170-854        WIDE AREA NET: 101-1558             088227          88.10

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704119965       110 5170-854        WIDE AREA NET: 101-1036             088227          88.10

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 170   COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS    TOTAL:         895.85

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008200 COLES CO REGIONAL PLAN I-3536               110 5180-511        PLANNING & DE: FEB 07 TA BILLING    088222         225.00

 

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20057941           110 5180-540        ADVERTISING  : ZONING MAP           088209       1,506.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 180   PLANNING & ZONING        TOTAL:       1,731.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001395 CITY OF CHARLESTON     I-2007-0000001       110 5190-579        MISC OTHER PU: LUNCH AT SEMINAR     088215         100.00

 

01-030056 LAKE LAND FLORALS      I-200704129996       110 5190-579        MISC OTHER PU: DONNELL ARRANGEMENT  088274          53.00

01-030056 LAKE LAND FLORALS      I-200704129996       110 5190-579        MISC OTHER PU: CLINE ARRANGEMENT    088274          78.00

 

01-036315 MY STORE INC           I-49223              110 5190-579        MISC OTHER PU: FOOD TRAY            088294          46.93

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 190   COUNCIL CONTINGENCY      TOTAL:         277.93

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-005600 CATER-VEND             I-202188             110 5211-579        MISC OTHER PU: COFFEE,CREAM,SUGAR   088206          73.53

01-005600 CATER-VEND             I-202190             110 5211-579        MISC OTHER PU: COFFEE               088206          24.29

 



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     3

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 211  POLICE ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-015410 EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS S I-42628              110 5211-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             088250          13.48

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2798526            110 5211-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: BATTERIES            088148           3.49

 

01-024400 IL FIRE & POLICE COMM  I-200704049830       110 5211-571        DUE & MEMBERS: 2007 DUES            088140         187.50

 

01-024600 IL LAW ENFORCEMENT     I-200704129983       110 5211-571        DUE & MEMBERS: 2007 DUES            088266         100.00

 

01-032600 MATTOON FLOWER SHOP    I-38947              110 5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CLINE-PLANTER        088281          50.00

 

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0707605-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BADGES               088306          24.87

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0708074-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BADGES               088306         102.80

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0709410-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: NAME BARS            088306          25.74

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0709468-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: LT. BARS             088306          11.14

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-024230755          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER UGK-462781    088334          58.05

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-024230756          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER UGK-462971    088334          91.79

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-024230757          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER RYU-424737    088334         162.88

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-024230758          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER RYU-424738    088334         145.34

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-024230759          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER NYD-017502    088334         297.40

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 211   POLICE ADMINISTRATION    TOTAL:       1,372.30

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000610 ACCURINT-ACCOUNT #1299 I-1299801-20070331   110 5212-579        MISC OTHER PU: SEARCHES 3-07        088187          30.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 212   CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION   TOTAL:          30.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-004400 BURGER KING            I-200704129984       110 5217-330        FOOD         : PRISONER MEALS 3-07  088203           6.33

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 217   CUSTODY OF PRISONERS     TOTAL:           6.33

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000604 LARRY L. METZELAARS    I-200704129985       110 5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAVEL 4-11          088286          51.54

 

01-001645 LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINI I-200704119899       110 5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAINING 6-11/15     088275         400.00

 

01-003424 JEFFREY BRANSON        I-200704119970       110 5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAVEL TO FBI ACADEM 088202         669.30

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2254369            110 5221-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: GUN CASE,PAINT       088148          25.48

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 221   POLICE TRAINING          TOTAL:       1,146.32

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000586 VISIONAIR              I-BILL0000003665     110 5222-863        DESKTOP COMPU: MPD VISIONAIR LMS    088332       1,500.00

 



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     4

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 222  COMMUNICATION SERVICES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704049849       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-6969             088137           6.67

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704049850       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-2677             088137       1,438.49

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704049851       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0433             088137          43.39

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704049852       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-2677             088137          48.70

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704129982       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 101-0983             088227         345.52

 

01-036880 NEXTEL PARTNERS, INC   I-519603086-060      110 5222-533        CELLULAR PHON: MOBILES              088143         566.42

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 222   COMMUNICATION SERVICES   TOTAL:       3,949.19

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000779 GRAPHIC IMAGINATION, I I-24362              110 5223-742        VEHICLES     : REFLECTIVE VEHICLE M 088260         291.95

 

01-000913 LANDMARK FORD, INC.    I-200704109879       110 5223-742        VEHICLES     : SQUAD                088179      20,873.00

 

01-001582 AUTO, TRUCK AND FARM R I-23698              110 5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SQUAD REPAIR         088193          14.95

01-001582 AUTO, TRUCK AND FARM R I-23699              110 5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SQUAD REPAIR         088193          42.52

01-001582 AUTO, TRUCK AND FARM R I-23700              110 5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SQUAD REPAIR         088193         104.36

 

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-60128              110 5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BATTERY              088195          59.95

 

01-003424 JEFFREY BRANSON        I-200704119970       110 5223-326        FUEL         : TRAVEL TO FBI ACADEM 088202         286.14

 

01-006016 CENTRAL IL TRANSMISSIO I-14621              110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : SQUAD REPAIR         088210         125.07

01-006016 CENTRAL IL TRANSMISSIO I-14634              110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : SQUAD REPAIR         088210         190.31

01-006016 CENTRAL IL TRANSMISSIO I-14636              110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : SQUAD REPAIR         088210         190.31

01-006016 CENTRAL IL TRANSMISSIO I-14637              110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : SQUAD REPAIR         088210         190.31

01-006016 CENTRAL IL TRANSMISSIO I-14641              110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : SQUAD REPAIR         088210         190.31

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2807365            110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : BULBS                088148          20.97

 

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0708237-IN         110 5223-742        VEHICLES     : LED BAR              088306       1,523.78

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0708882-IN         110 5223-742        VEHICLES     : RED/BLUE TALON       088306         180.00

 

01-038375 DAN PILSON AUTO CENTER I-37598              110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SQUAD REPAIRS        088234         565.64

 

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200704119898       110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SQUAD REPAIRS        088200         414.07

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200704119898       110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : SQUAD REPAIRS        088200          59.75

 

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-15688              110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : RADIO REPAIRS        088309          80.00

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-15689              110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : RADIO REPAIRS        088309          40.00

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-15741              110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : RADIO REPAIRS        088309         225.00

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-15742              110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : RADIO REPAIRS        088309          40.00

 

01-041000 SECRETARY OF STATE     I-200704129995       110 5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TITLE & PLATES FOR 2 088315          80.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 223   AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES      TOTAL:      25,788.39

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     5

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 224  POLICE BUILDINGS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049848       110 5224-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1321 RICHMOND DEPT 2 088136         153.22

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704130001       110 5224-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1700 WABASH          088181       2,017.55

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9919765-1          110 5224-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1700 WABASH          088141         824.72

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995037-1          110 5224-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1700 WABASH          088184       1,976.40

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-102263-00          110 5224-312        CLEANING SUPP: TOWELS,SOAP          088276         140.05

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-103893-00          110 5224-312        CLEANING SUPP: TISSUE,LINERS,TOWELS 088276         111.77

 

01-035600 KONE INC               I-17392019           110 5224-435        ELEVATOR SERV: ELEV MNTCE 4-07      088271         506.84

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-02914              110 5224-432        REPAIR OF BUI: ADHESIVE,SHOWER CADD 088147          21.64

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-07999              110 5224-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: SPLENDA,PADLOCK      088147          17.10

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 224   POLICE BUILDINGS         TOTAL:       5,769.29

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-08063              110 5233-319        MISCELLANEOUS: VHS TAPES            088147          11.94

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 233   DUI ASSESSMENT EXPENDS   TOTAL:          11.94

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000410 ANDY ADAIR             I-200704119938       110 5241-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL 07 CELL PHONE  088188          50.00

 

01-000704 MIKE CHISM             I-200704119931       110 5241-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL 07 CELL PHONE  088213          50.00

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049826       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        088135         340.93

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109862       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: 2700 MARSHALL STA 3  088169          13.54

 

01-001213 DIESEL SPEED REPAIR    I-4618               110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: E-21 REPAIRS         088241       1,022.41

 

01-001479 WITMER ASSOCIATES INC. I-402214.001         110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: HARNESSES            088333         511.14

 

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-60177              110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: 9V BATTERIES         088195          35.00

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-60479              110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BATTERIES            088195          19.60

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-225                110 5241-326        FUEL         : FUEL 3-1/31          088233       1,290.90

 

01-011700 DELL MARKETING LP      I-U75272861          110 5241-863        DESKTOP PC WO: FDST3 PC             088237         918.65

 

01-011875 DENNING AUTOMOTIVE     I-200704130032       110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPLACED PADS & ROTO 088238         428.96

 

01-014713 EMERGENCY MEDICAL PROD I-INV936124          110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: TEST STRIPS          088247          68.45

 

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-74439              110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   088252          54.60

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-74460              110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   088252          39.30



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     6

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-74467              110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   088252          13.65

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-74575              110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   088252         250.13

 

01-020800 HAROLD'S CLEANERS      I-AO-139223          110 5241-573        LAUNDRY SERVI: CLEAN UNIFORMS       088263         600.00

01-020800 HAROLD'S CLEANERS      I-AO-140570          110 5241-573        LAUNDRY SERVI: CLEAN UNIFORMS       088263          40.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704049845       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2442             088137          48.05

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704049846       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0931             088137          42.02

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704049847       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0933             088137          36.55

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704119968       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 101-0658             088227          88.10

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704129977       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-4010             088227          38.63

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704129978       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2448             088227          38.33

 

01-024400 IL FIRE & POLICE COMM  I-200704049830       110 5241-571        DUE & MEMBERS: 2007 DUES            088140         187.50

 

01-025600 IL MO PRODUCTS COMPANY I-200704129979       110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: CYLINDER RENTAL, OXY 088267         106.54

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119969       110 5241-460        OTHER PROP MA: DOOR CLOSER & SWEEP  088272          20.68

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119969       110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: DRILL BIT SET        088272          24.99

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119969       110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FILTER MATERIAL,BOLT 088272          25.89

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-103562-0           110 5241-312        CLEANING SUPP: SQUEEGEE,HANDLE      088276          48.46

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-104503-00          110 5241-312        CLEANING SUPP: TOWELS,COFFEE,FILTER 088276         151.67

 

01-032980 MATTOON MOTOR SHOP     I-4837               110 5241-433        REPAIR OF MAC: BLADES & BOLTS       088282          30.00

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200703289748       110 5241-410        UTILITY SERVI: 1801 PRAIRIE STA 1   000000          11.54

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200703289756       110 5241-410        UTILITY SERVI: HWY 16 STA 2         000000          26.16

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200703289760       110 5241-410        UTILITY SERVI: 2700 MARSHALL STA 3  000000          54.22

 

01-036080 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SE I-410312             110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: SWIVEL HOSE          088293         384.19

 

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0708238-IN         110 5241-579        MISC OTHER PU: CLEAR DOMES          088306       1,502.95

 

01-040463 SARAH BUSH LINCOLN HEA I-200704119940       110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: ACLS                 088312         300.00

 

01-045198 UNIVERSITY OF IL-GAR 1 I-UFIND848           110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: FIRE & ARSON INVESTI 088328         250.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 241   FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.   TOTAL:       9,163.73

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001381 MATT FREDERICK         I-200704119893       110 5261-564        PRIVATE VEHIC: MILEAGE 3-1/30       088256         158.12

01-001381 MATT FREDERICK         I-200704119930       110 5261-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL 07 CELL PHONE  088256          43.29

 

01-001644 IAEI-CILD              I-200704049844       110 5261-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: 4-12 MEETING         088139          15.00

 



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     7

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 261  CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20053848           110 5261-577        DEMOLITION SE: NOTICE TO REMEDIATE  088209         140.64

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20053858           110 5261-577        DEMOLITION SE: NOTICE TO REMEDIATE  088209         132.60

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20053862           110 5261-577        DEMOLITION SE: NOTICE TO REMEDIATE  088209         136.62

 

01-041120 RAYMOND SENTENEY       I-200704049842       110 5261-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: REIMB IPIA CONF      088144         120.00

01-041120 RAYMOND SENTENEY       I-200704049843       110 5261-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: REIMB CCDI RENEWAL   088144          10.00

01-041120 RAYMOND SENTENEY       I-200704119892       110 5261-564        PRIVATE VEHIC: MILEAGE 3-2/30       088316         153.24

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 261   CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN   TOTAL:         909.51

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001649 UNIVERSITY OF IL       I-200704119942       110 5310-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: CREAN-WORKSHOP REGIS 088326          40.00

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-10471              110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: CLIPS,SHARPIES,POST  088338          10.11

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-024011556          110 5310-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER TFW-015052    088334         189.19

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 310   PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN       TOTAL:         239.30

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-6066422            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: SWIVEL SNAPS,TAPE    088182          42.17

 

01-000480 CONVENIENCE & PETROLEU I-14659              110 5320-326        FUEL         : SAW GAS              088228          16.37

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049826       110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        088135         268.17

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995036-1          110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: 212 N 12TH           088177           4.03

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995039-1          110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH & RICHMOND      088177         214.96

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995043-1          110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: 308 N 13TH           088184           0.31

 

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-60388              110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BATTERY              088195          59.95

 

01-003095 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS    I-200704129992       110 5320-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAINING             088205         140.00

01-003095 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS    I-200704129992       110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BRAKE PARTS          088205         473.86

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-220                110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: FUEL MASTER MNTCE AG 088233         602.50

 

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-80097              110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          088230          18.35

 

01-013902 DRAKE SCRUGGS EQUIP    I-0023012-IN         110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: #516 REPAIRS         088245       1,328.79

 

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-AI67101            110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: ANTENNA              088246          11.30

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2794477            110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : DRILL                088175          99.00

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2795087            110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : WRENCH SET           088175           9.99

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2797108            110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : HAMMER               088175          31.99



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     8

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 320  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2799241            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: WELDING GLOVES       088175          10.37

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2799499            110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : SPRAYER              088175          39.98

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2801660            110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : RAKES                088175          33.97

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2806978            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: OIL DRY              088175          52.35

 

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT65648         110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: HIT PIN CLIPS        088251           9.34

 

01-018100 GANO WELDING           I-809444             110 5320-440        RENTALS      : WELDING SUPPLIES     088258          45.00

 

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20053771           110 5320-519        OTHER PROFESS: VEHICLE BIDS         088209         120.20

 

01-023500 MOTION INDUSTRIES      I-IL64-789079        110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : TOWELS               088292         192.81

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704129993       110 5320-532        TELEPHONE    : 101-0731             088227          88.10

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119973       110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BROOMS,TAPE,FLASHLIG 088272          63.02

 

01-032980 MATTOON MOTOR SHOP     I-4707               110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SHARPEN 2 CHAINS     088282          66.90

01-032980 MATTOON MOTOR SHOP     I-4796               110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPAIR 2 TAMPERS     088282         117.45

01-032980 MATTOON MOTOR SHOP     I-4823               110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SHARPEN CHAINS       088282          31.00

01-032980 MATTOON MOTOR SHOP     I-4823               110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : ECHO SAW             088282         265.00

 

01-034250 MCFARLAND STEEL SUPPLY I-200704129991       110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: STEEL PLATE          088284          45.06

 

01-035050 METZGER WELDING SERVIC I-200704119971       110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BALL MOUNT           088287          26.95

 

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-7374               110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: PINS,SPRING,BUSHINGS 088296          12.84

 

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-45856              110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: KEYS                 088302           8.75

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-45877              110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: KEY                  088302           3.00

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-46027              110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PADLOCK,KEYS         088302          40.24

 

01-038375 DAN PILSON AUTO CENTER I-120617             110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: #526 REPAIRS         088234          33.03

01-038375 DAN PILSON AUTO CENTER I-120749             110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BUSHING              088234           5.00

 

01-045197 UNIVERSITY OF IL       I-2007-06150         110 5320-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: PESTICIDE TRAINING   088327          65.00

01-045197 UNIVERSITY OF IL       I-2007-06169         110 5320-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: PESTICIDE TRAINING   088327         395.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 320   STREETS                  TOTAL:       5,092.10

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000742 BARTELS CONSTRUCTION,  I-200704129999       110 5323-351        CONCRETE     : SDWLK 508 N 19TH     088194         176.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 323   SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS   TOTAL:         176.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     9

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 326  STREET LIGHTING

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049826       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        088135       1,629.65

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109863       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 6TH & CHARLESTON     088169          68.19

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109865       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1721 B'DWAY          088169          80.36

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109870       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 17TH & B'DWAY        088170          66.46

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109873       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 6TH & MARSHALL       088171          15.88

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109875       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 16TH ST              088171          64.89

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704130002       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 6TH & MARSHALL       088181          14.89

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704130003       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: STREET LIGHTING      088181      12,997.81

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-995047-1           110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 6TH & CHARLESTON     088176           9.64

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9961312-1          110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: LOGAN/CHARLESTON LIG 088176           8.24

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9961313-1          110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1121 B'DWAY          088176         112.85

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9961316-1          110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 700 B'DWAY           088176         148.53

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995030-1          110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: CHARLESTON STR LIGHT 088177         106.57

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995033-1          110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 7TH & CHARLESTON     088177         114.56

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995034-1          110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 14TH & CHARLESTON    088177          96.87

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995044-1          110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1420 CHARLESTON      088177          96.81

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995046-1          110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 19TH & WESTERN       088177         282.25

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995049-1          110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1721 B'DWAY-BRIDGE L 088178          36.97

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995050-1          110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 16TH & B'DWAY        088178         234.30

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995052-1          110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 17TH & B'DWAY        088178           4.58

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 326   STREET LIGHTING          TOTAL:      16,190.30

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-007100 CCP                    I-21617997           110 5334-314        CHEMICALS    : KNOCK OUT            088207         189.24

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 334   WEED CONTROL             TOTAL:         189.24

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000092 DIEPHOLZ TRUCKING LLC  I-4548               110 5335-421        DISPOSAL SERV: MULCH HAULING        088240         135.00

01-000092 DIEPHOLZ TRUCKING LLC  I-4549               110 5335-421        DISPOSAL SERV: MULCH HAULING        088240       1,080.00

01-000092 DIEPHOLZ TRUCKING LLC  I-4550               110 5335-421        DISPOSAL SERV: MULCH HAULING        088240       1,112.50

01-000092 DIEPHOLZ TRUCKING LLC  I-4551               110 5335-421        DISPOSAL SERV: MULCH HAULING        088240       1,080.00

01-000092 DIEPHOLZ TRUCKING LLC  I-4552               110 5335-421        DISPOSAL SERV: MULCH HAULING        088240         910.00

01-000092 DIEPHOLZ TRUCKING LLC  I-4553               110 5335-421        DISPOSAL SERV: MULCH HAULING        088240       1,080.00

01-000092 DIEPHOLZ TRUCKING LLC  I-4554               110 5335-421        DISPOSAL SERV: MULCH HAULING        088240         742.50

01-000092 DIEPHOLZ TRUCKING LLC  I-4555               110 5335-421        DISPOSAL SERV: MULCH HAULING        088240       1,080.00

01-000092 DIEPHOLZ TRUCKING LLC  I-4556               110 5335-421        DISPOSAL SERV: MULCH HAULING        088240         510.00

 

01-000095 MARK BELL              I-52624              110 5335-421        DISPOSAL SERV: YARDWASTE MATERIAL   088199      12,619.00

 

01-000153 BILL BELL              I-52624              110 5335-421        DISPOSAL SERV: YARDWASTE MATERIAL   088198       1,250.00

 

01-003095 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS    I-200704129992       110 5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS: OIL FILTER           088205          28.74

 



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    10

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 335  YARD WASTE COLLECTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-045523 VERMEER SALES & SERVIC C-93479              110 5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS: CREDIT               088331       1,658.84-

01-045523 VERMEER SALES & SERVIC I-92372              110 5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS: TUB GRINDER REPAIRS  088331       5,641.00

01-045523 VERMEER SALES & SERVIC I-92671              110 5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BELT                 088331         634.71

01-045523 VERMEER SALES & SERVIC I-93180              110 5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS: DOUBLE ROLLER        088331         184.39

01-045523 VERMEER SALES & SERVIC I-93421              110 5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS: STRAINER             088331          29.52

01-045523 VERMEER SALES & SERVIC I-93462              110 5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS: FUEL GAUGE           088331          84.51

01-045523 VERMEER SALES & SERVIC I-93473              110 5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS: TUB GRINDER REPAIR   088331         546.88

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 335   YARD WASTE COLLECTION    TOTAL:      27,089.91

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-017450 FIT TO A TEE           I-10004              110 5338-579        MISC OTHER PU: CLEAN UP DAY T-SHIRT 088254         500.00

 

01-039210 VEOLIA ES SOLID WASTE  I-F5032774           110 5338-421        DISPOSAL SERV: CITY TRASH           088180       1,003.76

01-039210 VEOLIA ES SOLID WASTE  I-F5035331           110 5338-421        DISPOSAL SERV: CITY TRASH           088330         275.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 338   REFUSE COLLECT & DISPOSALTOTAL:       1,778.76

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000002 RAPID REPRODUCTIONS IN I-56922              110 5370-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FIELD BOOKS,LUFKIN T 088305         444.62

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 370   CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION  TOTAL:         444.62

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000371 R.D. MCMILLEN ENTERPRI I-0160250-IN         110 5381-312        CLEANING SUPP: CUPS                 088304          21.60

 

01-001047 IL DEPARTMENT OF REVEN I-200704130004       110 5381-321        NATURAL GAS &: FEB 07 ELECT EXCISE  088183          84.08

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049826       110 5381-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        088135         636.17

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704120000       110 5381-312        CLEANING SUPP: FILTERS              088272          11.88

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-103462-00          110 5381-312        CLEANING SUPP: CLEANERS,GLOVES      088276          24.75

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-103605-00          110 5381-312        CLEANING SUPP: EXHAUST FILTERS      088276          16.00

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-103826-00          110 5381-312        CLEANING SUPP: CLEANERS,TISSUE      088276          59.95

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200703289755       110 5381-410        UTILITY SERVI: 208 N 19TH           000000         255.88

 

01-035600 KONE INC               I-17393868           110 5381-435        ELEVATOR SERV: ELEV MNTCE 4-07      088271         199.52

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 381   CUSTODIAL SERVICES       TOTAL:       1,309.83

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049826       110 5383-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        088135         150.69

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109874       110 5383-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1701 WABASH          088171         436.45

 



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    11

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 383  BURGESS OSBORNE

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10009993-1         110 5383-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1701 WABASH          088184          54.05

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704120000       110 5383-319        MISCELLANEOUS: LAWN BAGS            088272          14.95

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 383   BURGESS OSBORNE          TOTAL:         656.14

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-84130              110 5384-576        SECURITY SERV: ALARM MONITORING     088239         360.00

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704120000       110 5384-319        MISCELLANEOUS: RAGS,STEEL WOOL,TAPE 088272          43.23

 

01-040253 RENTAL CENTER USA      I-309749             110 5384-460        OTHER PROP MA: LIFT RENTAL          088307          75.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 384   RAILROAD DEPOT           TOTAL:         478.23

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119926       110 5388-432        REPAIR OF BUI: REPAIR WINDOW        088272          32.38

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 388   GARMENT FACTORY          TOTAL:          32.38

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-60365              110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: BATTERIES FOR 3 WHEE 088195         660.00

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-226                110 5511-326        FUEL         : FUEL 3-1/31          088233         886.09

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704049836       110 5511-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-3611             088137          70.89

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119926       110 5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: GRIP WRENCH          088272          13.99

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 511   PARK ADMINISTRATION      TOTAL:       1,630.97

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-200704119944       110 5512-802        HUNTING/FISHI: HUNT/FISH 3-27/4-2   000000         839.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 512   LAKE ADMINISTRATION      TOTAL:         839.50

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-8179643            110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: PETERSON RESTROOMS   088182         100.24

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049826       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        088135         162.29

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049834       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           088135         264.31

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049835       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 5TH & PRAIRIE        088135         484.11

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109864       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           088169          79.78

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109866       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           088169          89.40

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109867       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           088170         216.57

 



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    12

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 541  PETERSON PARK

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995035-1          110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWY            088177          23.73

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995042-1          110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           088177         285.48

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995051-1          110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           088178          58.56

 

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-83901              110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CCTV EQUIP BALANCE   088239       1,721.50

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2791721            110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: TAPE                 088138           6.87

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2799217            110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: AMMONIA,MURIATIC ACI 088138          23.75

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2802445            110 5541-314        CHEMICALS    : WEED KILLER          088138          21.98

 

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT65686         110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: SCREWS TO REPAIR BLE 088251           7.08

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119926       110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: EYE BOLTS            088272           1.95

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119926       110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: TAPE,BATTERIES,FUNNE 088272          18.46

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-101860-00          110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: MOP BUCKET           088276          44.84

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-102600-00          110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BLEACH               088276          20.16

 

01-031300 MAB PAINT STORE #822   I-200704119928       110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: FLOOR STRIPPER,PAINT 088279         384.60

 

01-034250 MCFARLAND STEEL SUPPLY I-200704129990       110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: STEEL                088284         751.58

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-65092              110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: I-BEAM ANCHORS       088288         190.00

 

01-039207 PRAIRIE MATERIAL SALES I-93436156           110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: SAND                 088303          65.50

 

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-1759-4             110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: PAINT                088318          93.96

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-6898-9             110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: PAINT                088318          26.87

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-6963-1             110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: PAINT                088318         195.90

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-7225-4             110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: PAINT                088318          93.96

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-7479-7             110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: PAINT                088318          23.49

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-7495-3             110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: PAINT                088318         103.24

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 541   PETERSON PARK            TOTAL:       5,560.16

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049831       110 5542-321        NATURAL GAS &: 800 S 14TH           088135          64.89

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049832       110 5542-321        NATURAL GAS &: 632 S 14TH           088135          65.59

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049833       110 5542-321        NATURAL GAS &: 632 S 14TH           088135          69.90

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109868       110 5542-321        NATURAL GAS &: 702 S 13TH           088170          64.89

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109869       110 5542-321        NATURAL GAS &: 700 S 13TH           088170          64.89

 

01-001135 BEACON ATHLETICS       I-0377145-IN         110 5542-450        CONSTRUCTION : SHADE STRUCTURE      088196       4,000.00

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995032-1          110 5542-321        NATURAL GAS &: 632 S 14TH           088177           2.07

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9995038-1          110 5542-321        NATURAL GAS &: 632 S 14TH           088177          14.64

 



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    13

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 542  LAWSON PARK

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119926       110 5542-432        REPAIR OF BUI: WOOD SCREWS,DRIVER B 088272          47.18

 

01-031300 MAB PAINT STORE #822   I-200704119928       110 5542-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAINT BRUSHES        088279          76.28

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 542   LAWSON PARK              TOTAL:       4,470.33

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9989894-1          110 5552-321        NATURAL GAS &: 311 N 6TH            088177          63.44

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2802445            110 5552-319        MISCELLANEOUS: WEED KILLER          088138         143.89

 

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT65517         110 5552-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PLASTIC TIES         088251          67.62

 

01-031300 MAB PAINT STORE #822   I-200704119928       110 5552-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FIELD PAINT          088279          30.22

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 552   GIRLS COMPLEX            TOTAL:         305.17

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000757 M.A.S.A. INC.          I-136350-00          110 5555-352        AGGREGATE SUR: INFIELD MATERIALS    088278       2,988.00

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109871       110 5555-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1 S 22ND             088170          14.89

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109872       110 5555-321        NATURAL GAS &: S 22ND FIELD HS      088170          48.05

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-200704119927       110 5555-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: SOD CUTTER           088201       3,380.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 555   KINZEL FIELD             TOTAL:       6,430.94

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000757 M.A.S.A. INC.          I-136353-00          110 5556-352        AGGREGATE SUR: INFIELD MATERIALS    088278       2,988.00

01-000757 M.A.S.A. INC.          I-136354-00          110 5556-352        AGGREGATE SUR: INFIELD MATERIAL     088278       2,988.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 556   T-BALL COMPLEX           TOTAL:       5,976.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2805998            110 5561-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PLASTIC BARRELS      088138         215.76

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119926       110 5561-450        CONSTRUCTION : LUMBER,NAILS,SCREWS  088272       1,345.04

 

01-030065 LAKE MATTOON PUBLIC WA I-200704049840       110 5561-410        UTILITY SERVI: CAMPGROUND EAST      088142           9.60

 

01-033200 MATTOON PRINTING CENTE I-200704119954       110 5561-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CAMPGROUND REGISTRAT 088283         253.51

 

01-034250 MCFARLAND STEEL SUPPLY I-200704129989       110 5561-319        MISCELLANEOUS: STEEL                088284         245.40

 

01-041755 SHELBY ELECTRIC COOPER I-200704119955       110 5561-322        ELECTRICITY  : HUFFMANS             088317         263.61

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 561   EAST CAMPGROUND          TOTAL:       2,332.92

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    14

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 562  WEST CAMPGROUND

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2805219            110 5562-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: BOLTS,NUTS,HAMMER,SC 088138          52.24

 

01-030021 L & S SAFETY           I-2007-0191          110 5562-313        MEDICAL & SAF: GLOVES               088273          36.75

 

01-030065 LAKE MATTOON PUBLIC WA I-200704049839       110 5562-410        UTILITY SERVI: CAMPGROUND WEST      088142           9.60

 

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-473137             110 5562-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CLAMPS,ADAPTERS      088277         129.52

 

01-041755 SHELBY ELECTRIC COOPER I-200704119956       110 5562-322        ELECTRICITY  : CAMPGROUND           088317         126.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 562   WEST CAMPGROUND          TOTAL:         354.11

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000481 PANA BAIT CO           I-2525423            110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          088300         609.65

01-000481 PANA BAIT CO           I-2525755            110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          088300         159.25

 

01-000806 COLE CREATIONS         I-200704119953       110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CHEESE BAIT          088219          50.00

 

01-001648 CENTRAL CIGAR-CANDY CO I-323483             110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          088208         217.02

 

01-006256 CENTRAL STATES COCA-CO I-6198010618         110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          088211         226.00

 

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-84107              110 5563-576        SECURITY SERV: MARINA SECURITY      088239          45.00

 

01-017780 FRITO-LAY INC          I-75257206           110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          088257         200.22

 

01-030065 LAKE MATTOON PUBLIC WA I-200704049838       110 5563-410        UTILITY SERVI: MARINA               088142           9.60

 

01-041755 SHELBY ELECTRIC COOPER I-200704119957       110 5563-322        ELECTRICITY  : MARINA               088317         176.52

01-041755 SHELBY ELECTRIC COOPER I-200704119958       110 5563-322        ELECTRICITY  : CAUSEWAY             088317          38.70

01-041755 SHELBY ELECTRIC COOPER I-200704119959       110 5563-322        ELECTRICITY  : RESTROOMS            088317          42.69

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 563   MARINA AREA              TOTAL:       1,774.65

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-030065 LAKE MATTOON PUBLIC WA I-200704049837       110 5564-410        UTILITY SERVI: BEACH                088142           9.60

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 564   BEACH AREA               TOTAL:           9.60

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008801 COLES TOGETHER         I-200704119939       110 5651-571        DUES & MEMBER: APRIL 07 PLEDGE      088224       5,000.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 651   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT     TOTAL:       5,000.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20051865           110 5652-511        SOUTH RT45 BU: HEARING S RT 45 TAX  088209       1,728.60



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    15

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 652  SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DISTR

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20054101           110 5652-511        SOUTH RT45 BU: S RT 45 BUS DIST     088209       1,734.10

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 652   SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DISTRTOTAL:       3,462.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-032205 MATT ECON DEV RECAPTUR I-200704119932       110 5752-817        DEBT SERVICES: MAY 07 PYMT #116     088280       1,288.89

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 752   KAL KAN WTR/SWR EXT      TOTAL:       1,288.89

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-021660 HOME DEPOT             I-200704129981       110 5753-817        DEBT SERVICES: JAN 07 INFRASTRUCTUR 088264       6,645.06

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 753   HOME DEPOT INFRASTRUCTURETOTAL:       6,645.06

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 110   GENERAL FUND             TOTAL:     154,705.50



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    16

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 122  HOTEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 653  HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000393 ASSOCIATED ADVERTISERS I-60787              122 5653-540        ADVERTISING  : ADVERTISING          088192         175.00

 

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P83084340101       122 5653-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: COLOR PRINT CARTRIDG 088339         337.63

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109853       122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: 15TH & B'DWAY        088168           8.85

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109889       122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: W RT 121 SIGN        088173          64.89

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704119967       122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: MARSHALL WELCOME SIG 088190          81.78

 

01-001235 ANGELIA D BURGETT      I-200704119929       122 5653-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL 07 CELL PHONE  088204          43.29

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10009991-1         122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: MARSHALL WELCOME SIG 088184          21.59

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9961315-1          122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: B'DWAY WELCOME SIGN  088176          27.94

 

01-001647 CRAIG MARTIN SIMON DES I-200704119943       122 5653-540        ADVERTISING  : LOGO DESIGN          088232         850.00

 

01-007882 COLES CO AIRPORT AUTHO I-200704119941       122 5653-825        TOURISM GRANT: TOURISM GRANT        088220       3,500.00

 

01-011700 DELL MARKETING LP      I-U81434355          122 5653-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: BURGETT NOTEBOOK     088237       1,772.41

 

01-012540 DISCOVER MAGAZINE      I-200704119975       122 5653-540        ADVERTISING  : 1/3 PAGE AD          088242         850.00

 

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20049728           122 5653-540        ADVERTISING  : ON LINE ADVERTISING  088209         104.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704129980       122 5653-532        TELEPHONE    : 258-6286             088227         205.16

 

01-046000 NIEMANN FOODS INC      I-853583             122 5653-561        BUSINESS MEET: 3/7 MEETING          088295          12.78

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 653   HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:       8,055.32

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 122   HOTEL TAX FUND           TOTAL:       8,055.32



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    17

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 123  FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 582  JULY 4TH FIREWORKS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001646 COUNTRY CATERING       I-313279             123 5582-579        MISC. OTHER P: CATERING             088229          78.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 582   JULY 4TH FIREWORKS       TOTAL:          78.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 123   FESTIVAL MGMT FUND       TOTAL:          78.00



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    18

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 125  INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT

DEPARTMENT: 150  FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-012500 IL DIR OF EMPLOYMENT S I-200704119897       125 5150-240        UNEMPLOYMENT : UNEMPLOY TAX 1ST QTR 088265      25,439.01

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:      25,439.01

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 125   INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT  TOTAL:      25,439.01



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    19

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 128  MIDTOWN TIF FUND

DEPARTMENT: 604  MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000739 ITIA CONFERENCE REGIST I-200704129994       128 5604-561        BUSINESS MEET: SPRING CONFERENCE    088269         295.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 604   MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT     TOTAL:         295.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 128   MIDTOWN TIF FUND         TOTAL:         295.00



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    20

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 130  CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 603  I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000397 SCHIFF HARDIN LLP      I-1113940            130 5603-511        PLANNING & DE: TIF LITIGATION       088313         662.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 603   I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT   TOTAL:         662.50

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-1690889            130 5607-511        SOUTH 45 TIF : PUBLIC HEARING       088209          69.76

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 607   SOUTH 45 TIF DISTRICT    TOTAL:          69.76

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000343 TIM QUAKENBUSH         I-200704119976       130 5608-577        YMCA LAND ACQ: DEMO 1621 RICHMOND   088185       8,315.00

 

01-045400 UPCHURCH GROUP INC     I-9706               130 5608-577        YMCA LAND ACQ: 1/2-3/21 RESEARCH    088329       3,028.47

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 608   YMCA LAND ACQUISITION    TOTAL:      11,343.47

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 130   CAPITAL PROJECT FUND     TOTAL:      12,075.73



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    21

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 351  RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049829       211 5351-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2,PICNIC PAVILION  088135          20.10

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109884       211 5351-321        NATURAL GAS &: LAKE PARADISE RD     088172          86.56

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109888       211 5351-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2,PICNIC PAVILION  088173          13.84

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 351   RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES TOTAL:         120.50

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-011550 DEAN DRAINAGE          I-4179               211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: SHAPING BANKS,LEVEL  088235       3,030.00

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 352   RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS  TOTAL:       3,030.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109882       211 5353-321        NATURAL GAS &: WATER TREATMENT PLAN 088172       2,465.40

 

01-001414 GENERAL CHEMICAL PERFO I-70303647           211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            088259       1,667.30

 

01-002985 BEELMAN TRUCK CO       I-35197              211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : LIME                 088197         811.21

 

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-22877001           211 5353-433        REPAIR OF MAC: TROUBLESHOOT LIME SL 088225         162.50

 

01-012925 DOMESTIC UNIFORM & LIN I-200704119966       211 5353-460        OTHER PROPERT: CLEANING             088244         134.89

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704049841       211 5353-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2454             088137         205.46

 

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-472621             211 5353-377        PLANT EQUIPME: COUPLING             088277           9.06

 

01-035365 MISSISSIPPI LIME COMPA I-743859             211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : LIME                 088291       2,533.32

 

01-035600 KONE INC               I-17391739           211 5353-435        ELEVATOR SERV: ELEV MNTCE 4-07      088271         184.30

 

01-037976 PDC LABORATORIES       I-543294S            211 5353-519        OTHER PROFESS: WATER TESTING        088301          55.00

 

01-040465 SAL CHEMICAL           I-71468              211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            088311       1,709.34

 

01-045147 ULRICH CHEMICAL INC    C-344056             211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            088323       1,750.00-

01-045147 ULRICH CHEMICAL INC    I-344055             211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            088323       4,418.90

 

01-045155 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE  I-8Y610127           211 5353-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             088145          20.52

01-045155 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE  I-8Y610137           211 5353-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             088325          23.74

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-024011527          211 5353-814        PRINTING & CO: COPIER GFE-010261    088334          37.77

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 353   WATER TREATMENT PLANT    TOTAL:      12,688.71

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    22

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 354  WATER DISTRIBUTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001047 IL DEPARTMENT OF REVEN I-200704130004       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: FEB 07 ELECT EXCISE  088183         185.99

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704049826       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        088135          90.12

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109880       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2,WATER DEPT       088172         211.69

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109881       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: PARADISE PUMP HOUSE  088172         746.45

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109882       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: L MATTOON PUMP       088172         140.67

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109882       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: W 121 WATER TOWER    088172          66.35

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109882       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: WATER TOWER          088172          21.75

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109882       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST STORAGE      088172         108.20

 

01-001542 A & R MECHANICAL CONTR I-200704119895       211 5354-730        IMPROVEMENTS : SB PUMP STA IMPROVEM 088186      25,234.85

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9961309-1          211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: SWORDS STANDPIPE     088176          60.02

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9961310-1          211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2,WATER DEPT       088176           1.77

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9961317-1          211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: PARADISE PUMP HOUSE  088176       1,991.04

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9968541-1          211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: W 121 WATER TOWER    088176           4.27

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9975524-1          211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2, WATER DEPT      088176           7.69

 

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-60335              211 5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS: REBUILT ALTERNATOR   088195          85.00

 

01-003095 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS    I-200704129992       211 5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS: IDLER ARM,GASKET     088205         145.10

 

01-006860 CLASSIC AUTO BODY      I-200704119972       211 5354-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPAIR SEAT CUSHION  088216         250.00

 

01-011600 DEBUHR'S SEED STORE    I-19136              211 5354-379        OTHER WATER M: GRASS SEED           088236         333.46

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119973       211 5354-319        MISCELLANEOUS: LUMBER               088272          10.89

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-64548              211 5354-376        BACKFILL & SU: FLOW FILL            088288         253.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-64549              211 5354-376        BACKFILL & SU: FLOW FILL            088288       1,104.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-64693              211 5354-376        BACKFILL & SU: FLOW FILL            088288         172.50

 

01-036010 MIKE MORRIS TOOL SALES I-103745             211 5354-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: AIR HAMMER SET       088290         501.85

 

01-040448 S & K AIR POWER        I-1374664-01         211 5354-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: RIDGE CUTTER         088310         636.98

 

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     C-200704119974       211 5354-376        BACKFILL & SU: CREDIT               088189         402.60-

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118499             211 5354-376        BACKFILL & SU: 12TH & LAFAYETTE     088189         161.35

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118542             211 5354-376        BACKFILL & SU: 1400 BLOCK OF WABASH 088189         140.63

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 354   WATER DISTRIBUTION       TOTAL:      32,263.02

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P83904380101       211 5355-319        MISCELLANEOUS: COMPUTING COMPUTER T 088322         115.50

 

01-012850 DOCUMENT RESOURCES     I-0184701            211 5355-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: DEPOSIT SLIPS        088243          50.86

 



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    23

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 355  ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704120000       211 5355-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PVC,DRILL,BITS,COUPL 088272         110.06

 

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-83535              211 5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS : GASKETS,LINERS       088289          11.63

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-83589              211 5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS : METERS               088289       6,432.95

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-83689              211 5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS : METERS               088289       1,976.00

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    C-1218449011         211 5355-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: RETURNS              088320          19.00-

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1218449012         211 5355-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: CART                 088320          20.00

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1266345001         211 5355-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: RECEIPT TAPE         088320          44.50

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1420987001         211 5355-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: PAPER,BOXES,CLIPS    088320          58.51

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 355   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:       8,801.01

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109876       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 620 S 12TH           088171          40.23

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109877       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 621 S 12TH           088171          15.77

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109878       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1201 MARSHALL        088171         710.00

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109882       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST POWER        088172         182.47

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109883       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 212 N 12TH           088172         230.17

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109885       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: S 12TH ST            088172          32.54

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109886       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 212 N 12TH           088173          66.27

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109887       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 221 N 12TH           088173       1,309.89

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9919764-1          211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST POWER        088176          99.55

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9919770-1          211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 621 S 12TH           088176           4.76

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-9919774-1          211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST LIGHTING     088176          29.71

 

01-008200 COLES CO REGIONAL PLAN I-3540               211 5356-511        PLANNING & DE: FEB 07 GIS BILLING   088222       3,364.13

 

01-011001 FOTH & VAN DYKE/DAILY  I-1869               211 5356-511        PLANNING & DE: WATER TANK CHECKUP   088255         716.82

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 356   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:       6,802.31

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 211   WATER FUND               TOTAL:      63,705.55



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    24

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 342  SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000565 CPI SUPPLY             I-0512689-IN         212 5342-361        SEWER PIPE   : INLINE BELL          088231       1,010.00

01-000565 CPI SUPPLY             I-0512827-IN         212 5342-361        SEWER PIPE   : INLINE BELL          088231       2,760.00

01-000565 CPI SUPPLY             I-0512864-IN         212 5342-361        SEWER PIPE   : INLINE BELL          088231         276.00

01-000565 CPI SUPPLY             I-0513105-IN         212 5342-361        SEWER PIPE   : INLINE BELL          088231         276.00

 

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-60150              212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BATTERY              088195          49.95

 

01-003095 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS    I-200704129992       212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BRAKE ROTOR & PADS   088205         152.67

 

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-80088              212 5342-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          088230          18.35

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2796879            212 5342-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: SHOVELS,SPADE        088175          64.94

 

01-021402 CHARLES HEUERMAN TRUCK I-1790               212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: CA-6 ROCK            088212         325.88

01-021402 CHARLES HEUERMAN TRUCK I-1929               212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: CA-6 ROCK            088212       1,485.04

01-021402 CHARLES HEUERMAN TRUCK I-2019               212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: CA-6 ROCK            088212         301.22

 

01-024960 IL PLUMBING & HEATING  I-0009528-IN         212 5342-364        SEWER LINE RE: FITTINGS             088268          62.66

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119973       212 5342-369        OTHER SEWER M: HOSE,SPRAY NOZZLE    088272           8.78

 

01-042303 RON SMITH TRUCKING     I-30288              212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: CA-6 ROCK            088308       2,470.94

 

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118502             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 6TH & MOULTRIE       088189         119.90

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118506             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: BURGESS              088189         202.80

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118524             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 912 S 6TH            088189         161.35

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118526             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 912 S 6TH            088189         938.00

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118533             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 912 S 6TH            088189         831.55

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118536             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 916 N 29TH           088189         161.35

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118553             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 34TH & CHAMPAIGN     088189         119.90

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118561             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 17TH & SHELBY        088189         577.90

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118574             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 19TH & GRANT         088189         119.90

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-118584             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 34TH & SHELBY        088189         161.35

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 342   SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM  TOTAL:      12,656.43

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001047 IL DEPARTMENT OF REVEN I-200704130004       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: FEB 07 ELECT EXCISE  088183          94.59

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109855       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: 4220 DEWITT LIFT STA 088168          36.85

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109861       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: N 45 LIFT STA        088169         160.28

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109861       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: RILEY CREEK SEWAGE   088169         505.97

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109861       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: LOGAN/SHELBY SEWAGE  088169          71.00

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109861       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: WILLOWSHIRE SEWAGE   088169          82.89

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109861       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: 28TH LIFT STA        088169          81.26

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109861       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: FAIRFIELD LIFT STA   088169          69.80



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    25

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 343  SEWER LIFT STATIONS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109861       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: N 19TH LIFT STA      088169          70.55

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 343   SEWER LIFT STATIONS      TOTAL:       1,173.19

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001047 IL DEPARTMENT OF REVEN I-200704130004       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: FEB 07 ELECT EXCISE  088183       1,400.51

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109856       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: 820 S 5TH            088168         774.60

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109857       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: 820 S 5TH            088168         478.90

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109858       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: 820 S 5TH-DIGESTO BL 088168       2,751.18

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109859       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: 820 S 5TH-GRIT BLDG  088168         189.47

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109860       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: 820 S 5TH-SLUDGE BLD 088168         730.30

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109861       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: WASTEWATER TREATMENT 088169       4,432.33

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109861       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: SAND FILTER BLDG     088169         526.93

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109861       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: SEWER PLANT OFC/LAB  088169         635.12

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200704109861       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: SEWER PLANT SHOP     088169         499.77

 

01-001556 SIEMENS WATER TECHNOLO I-256964             212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : FLAME TRAP ASSEMBLY  088319       3,740.00

 

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-22861001           212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : INSTALL SOFT START F 088225         260.00

 

01-012925 DOMESTIC UNIFORM & LIN I-200704119945       212 5344-460        OTHER PROPERT: CLEANING             088244          66.27

 

01-015220 ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE I-476927             212 5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS: AMMONIA              088248         120.07

 

01-017425 FISHER SCIENTIFIC      I-9656708            212 5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS: AMMONIA PROBE        088253         545.98

 

01-020540 HACH COMPANY           I-5092497            212 5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS: LAB SUPPLIES         088262         177.25

 

01-021348 CENTRAL IL NEWSPAPER   I-20054988           212 5344-460        OTHER PROPERT: NON COMPLIANCE  NOTI 088209          79.84

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704109854       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-3016             088174          89.92

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704119963       212 5344-538        INTERNET ACCE: 101-0475             088227          88.10

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119946       212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : BULBS                088272           2.99

 

01-032980 MATTOON MOTOR SHOP     I-4704               212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : SHARPEN CHAIN SAW    088282          12.00

 

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-7606               212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : LAWNMOWER PARTS      088296         189.39

 

01-038375 DAN PILSON AUTO CENTER I-120748             212 5344-318        VEHICLE PARTS: REPLACEMENT DIPSTICK 088234          12.15

 

01-039210 VEOLIA ES SOLID WASTE  I-F5033387           212 5344-460        OTHER PROPERT: SLUDGE DISPOSAL      088180          80.75

 

01-045153 UNITED LABORATORIES    I-36005R             212 5344-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            088324       5,472.41

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 344   WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANTTOTAL:      23,356.23

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    26

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 345  ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P83904380101       212 5345-319        MISCELLANEOUS: COMPUTING COMPUTER T 088322         115.50

 

01-012850 DOCUMENT RESOURCES     I-0184701            212 5345-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: DEPOSIT SLIPS        088243          50.86

 

01-019900 GREATER BAY CAPITAL    I-200638011-0407     212 5345-815        POSTAGE METER: POSTAGE METER LEASE  088261         369.99

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704120000       212 5345-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PVC,DRILL,BITS,COUPL 088272         110.05

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200704049828       212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE FOR UTILITY  088146       1,500.00

 

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-83535              212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : GASKETS,LINERS       088289          11.62

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-83589              212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : METERS               088289       6,432.95

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-83689              212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : METERS               088289       1,976.00

 

01-037936 ONE STOP COPY SHOP     I-14128              212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : COPIES               088298          28.00

          PROJ: 157-500           Storm Sewer 34th-35th R/P      Other Purchased Services

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    C-1218449011         212 5345-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: RETURNS              088320          18.99-

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1218449012         212 5345-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: CART                 088320          19.99

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1266345001         212 5345-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: RECEIPT TAPE         088320          44.50

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1420987001         212 5345-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: PAPER,BOXES,CLIPS    088320          58.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 345   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:      10,698.97

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 212   SEWER FUND               TOTAL:      47,884.82



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    27

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 213  CEMETERY FUND

DEPARTMENT: 361  MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-009093 CONNOR CO              I-S3014867.001       213 5361-433        REPAIR OF MAC: CLAMPS,ADAPTERS      088226          29.96

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200704049827       213 5361-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2055             088137         114.13

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-200704119926       213 5361-432        REPAIR OF STR: HANDRAIL, SCREWS     088272         161.69

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-101984-00          213 5361-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TOWELS,WIPES         088276         125.52

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200703289751       213 5361-410        UTILITY SERVI: 917 N 22ND           000000          85.40

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200703289754       213 5361-410        UTILITY SERVI: N 19TH               000000           5.67

 

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-7346               213 5361-433        REPAIR OF MAC: TIRE REPAIRS         088296          99.90

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-7391               213 5361-433        REPAIR OF MAC: BELTS                088296          90.50

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 361   MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS TOTAL:         712.77

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 213   CEMETERY FUND            TOTAL:         712.77

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:     312,951.70



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    28

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2006-2007 110-4651-010        RENT-BURGESS AU*NON-EXPENS         40.00      16,000-      2,130.00

          110-5110-533        CELLULAR PHONE                    200.00       4,100       1,700.00

          110-5120-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      1,137.73      11,000       3,812.68

          110-5120-522        NOTARY FEES                        30.00           0          30.00-  Y

          110-5120-802        HUNTING/FISHING LIC. FEE R        162.75       1,500         688.00

          110-5120-814        PRINT/COPY MACH. LEASE & M        323.04       5,000       1,873.26

          110-5130-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    50.87          50         156.35-  Y

          110-5130-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 100.00       2,000         447.26-  Y

          110-5150-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            962.98       2,050         815.10

          110-5150-576        SECURITY SERVICES                 300.00           0         300.00-  Y

          110-5160-319        MISC. SUPPLIES (NUISANCE E         46.04       1,000          59.34-  Y

          110-5160-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        164.50       6,000       2,124.69-  Y

          110-5160-565        CELLULAR TELEPHONE REIMBUR        100.00       1,200         500.00

          110-5160-579        OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES          278.00       6,000       1,627.02-  Y

          110-5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 130.55       3,100         870.09-  Y

          110-5170-841        WIDE AREA NETWORK SOFTWARE        589.10       3,000       1,928.14

          110-5170-854        WIDE AREA NETWORK WIRING A        176.20       2,160         134.83

          110-5180-511        PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES        225.00       5,000       9,286.66-  Y

          110-5180-540        ADVERTISING                     1,506.00       1,400         106.00-  Y

          110-5190-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        277.93      20,000       9,190.53

          110-5211-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                     3.49       3,600         229.38

          110-5211-315        UNIFORMS & CLOTHING               164.55       1,500         253.39-  Y

          110-5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             50.00       3,000       1,452.39

          110-5211-531        POSTAGE                            13.48       2,500         528.47

          110-5211-571        DUE & MEMBERSHIPS                 287.50         700         276.60-  Y

          110-5211-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI         97.82       7,000       3,022.21

          110-5211-814        PRINT/COPY MACH LEASE & MA        755.46       7,000         244.69

          110-5212-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI         30.00         500         248.75-  Y

          110-5217-330        FOOD                                6.33         400         154.21

          110-5221-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  25.48       3,500       2,098.84

          110-5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING               1,120.84      21,000       1,641.42

          110-5222-532        TELEPHONE                       1,882.77      30,000       7,268.59

          110-5222-533        CELLULAR PHONE                    566.42       7,000         835.36

          110-5222-863        DESKTOP COMPUTERS               1,500.00      11,300       5,505.36

          110-5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     221.78       3,000       1,072.88-  Y

          110-5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             80.00         800         394.83-  Y

          110-5223-326        FUEL                              286.14      55,000       2,119.52

          110-5223-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                979.71      18,000      10,684.71-  Y

          110-5223-439        OTHER REPAIR & MAINT SRVCS      1,352.03         500       1,832.10-  Y

          110-5223-742        VEHICLES                       22,868.73      68,200      42,857.52-  Y

          110-5224-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 251.82       2,000         918.14-  Y

          110-5224-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  17.10       1,000         159.14-  Y

          110-5224-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI      4,971.89      45,000         380.53

          110-5224-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS                21.64      20,000       2,179.85

          110-5224-435        ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMEN         506.84       6,000          36.00

          110-5233-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             11.94       5,000       4,988.06

          110-5241-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 200.13       3,500         284.42-  Y



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    29

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          110-5241-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         464.42       3,500       1,628.16-  Y

          110-5241-315        UNIFORMS & CLOTHING               511.14      23,500      10,369.12

          110-5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 477.43       2,000       4,494.12-  Y

          110-5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             80.49       7,500         511.30-  Y

          110-5241-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            354.47      12,500         889.74

          110-5241-326        FUEL                            1,290.90      17,000         891.76

          110-5241-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   91.92       1,700          30.59

          110-5241-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY                30.00       1,000         461.43-  Y

          110-5241-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES              1,451.37       8,000         107.75-  Y

          110-5241-460        OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES          20.68       7,000       5,171.46

          110-5241-532        TELEPHONE                         291.68       5,000          11.03

          110-5241-533        CELLULAR PHONE                    100.00       3,600       1,000.70

          110-5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 550.00      18,000       6,163.63-  Y

          110-5241-571        DUE & MEMBERSHIPS                 187.50       1,200         198.50-  Y

          110-5241-573        LAUNDRY SERVICES                  640.00       5,500       4,585.30

          110-5241-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI      1,502.95       8,000       2,961.43

          110-5241-863        DESKTOP PC WORKSTATIONS           918.65       2,500          14.36

          110-5261-533        CELLULAR PHONE                     43.29         400          82.23

          110-5261-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 145.00       3,000       2,041.78

          110-5261-564        PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP REIMB         311.36       2,000         424.24

          110-5261-577        DEMOLITION SERVICES               409.86      25,000      24,040.14

          110-5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    10.11         500       1,463.99-  Y

          110-5310-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  40.00       1,000         562.92

          110-5310-814        PRINT/COPY MACH LEASE & MA        189.19       1,000       1,570.64-  Y

          110-5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     595.98      30,000       1,769.97

          110-5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            301.25       5,000      10,701.81-  Y

          110-5320-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            487.47      20,000      14,701.43

          110-5320-326        FUEL                               16.37      45,000      14,432.60

          110-5320-359        OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE        672.74      17,000      57,046.73-  Y

          110-5320-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             2,146.64      15,000       1,525.20-  Y

          110-5320-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 18.35      10,000       1,464.99

          110-5320-440        RENTALS                            45.00       2,900       3,816.82-  Y

          110-5320-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        120.20       2,500       2,770.25-  Y

          110-5320-532        TELEPHONE                          88.10       4,500         543.40-  Y

          110-5320-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 600.00       4,500       1,941.70

          110-5323-351        CONCRETE                          176.00      20,000       3,556.78

          110-5326-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI     16,190.30     130,000       5,265.61

          110-5334-314        CHEMICALS                         189.24       1,000       1,300.86-  Y

          110-5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS                   5,490.91      15,000         978.35-  Y

          110-5335-421        DISPOSAL SERVICES              21,599.00      45,000      14,074.15

          110-5338-421        DISPOSAL SERVICES               1,278.76      20,000       3,512.73-  Y

          110-5338-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        500.00       7,500       5,692.32

          110-5370-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            444.62       2,500          70.96-  Y

          110-5381-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 134.18       2,500         305.16-  Y

          110-5381-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            720.25      13,000       1,629.33

          110-5381-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  255.88       2,000         726.81-  Y

          110-5381-435        ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMEN         199.52       2,000         347.76-  Y

          110-5383-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             14.95       1,000          37.72-  Y



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    30

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          110-5383-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            641.19       4,500       1,714.68-  Y

          110-5384-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             43.23       1,000         595.13-  Y

          110-5384-460        OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES          75.00           0         480.49-  Y

          110-5384-576        SECURITY SERVICES                 360.00           0         432.25-  Y

          110-5388-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS                32.38         100          62.71

          110-5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  13.99       6,300       1,153.86-  Y

          110-5511-326        FUEL                              886.09       9,000       1,377.41-  Y

          110-5511-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               660.00       7,000         589.77

          110-5511-532        TELEPHONE                          70.89       1,800         893.17

          110-5512-802        HUNTING/FISHING REMITTANCE        839.50       5,000       1,315.75-  Y

          110-5541-314        CHEMICALS                          21.98       1,000         912.02

          110-5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,853.95       2,000      26,744.36-  Y

          110-5541-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          1,664.23      14,000         897.88-  Y

          110-5541-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             2,020.00      16,000       7,720.38

          110-5542-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             76.28         600       3,478.48-  Y

          110-5542-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI        346.87       6,200       1,821.63

          110-5542-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS                47.18         250         155.30

          110-5542-450        CONSTRUCTION SERVICES           4,000.00       4,000           0.00

          110-5552-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            241.73       1,400      10,527.19-  Y

          110-5552-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         63.44       4,500         167.91-  Y

          110-5555-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               3,380.00       2,000       1,380.00-  Y

          110-5555-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         62.94       2,200       1,734.73

          110-5555-352        AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT          2,988.00       2,500         488.00-  Y

          110-5556-352        AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT          5,976.00       7,000       1,024.00

          110-5561-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            714.67       5,000       3,285.74

          110-5561-322        ELECTRICITY                       263.61      11,000       4,472.64

          110-5561-410        UTILITY SERVICES                    9.60       5,500       2,973.43

          110-5561-450        CONSTRUCTION SERVICES           1,345.04       5,000       3,414.96

          110-5562-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES          36.75         100          11.75-  Y

          110-5562-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  52.24       3,000       1,923.03

          110-5562-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            129.52       2,500         640.07

          110-5562-322        ELECTRICITY                       126.00      15,000       4,590.71

          110-5562-410        UTILITY SERVICES                    9.60       3,000         108.34

          110-5563-317        CONCESSION & SOUVENIR SUPP      1,462.14      28,000       6,228.38

          110-5563-322        ELECTRICITY                       257.91       6,000       2,965.65

          110-5563-410        UTILITY SERVICES                    9.60       6,300       2,859.51

          110-5563-576        SECURITY SERVICES                  45.00         800         260.00

          110-5564-410        UTILITY SERVICES                    9.60         400         292.96

          110-5651-571        DUES & MEMBERSHIPS              5,000.00      60,000           0.00

          110-5652-511        SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DISTRI      3,462.70           0      24,023.01-  Y

          110-5752-817        DEBT SERVICES                   1,288.89      15,467           0.32

          110-5753-817        DEBT SERVICES-HOME DEPOT I      6,645.06      65,000      10,882.98-  Y

          122-5653-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                 2,110.04       2,000       1,317.22-  Y

          122-5653-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI        205.05       2,500         767.90

          122-5653-532        TELEPHONE                         205.16       3,500         640.61

          122-5653-533        CELLULAR PHONE                     43.29       1,000         455.32

          122-5653-540        ADVERTISING                     1,979.00      19,000       3,376.06

          122-5653-561        BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE           12.78       1,500          51.10-  Y



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    31

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          122-5653-825        TOURISM GRANTS                  3,500.00      70,000       1,350.00-  Y

          123-5582-579        MISC. OTHER PURCHASED SERV         78.00       1,300         722.00

          125-5150-240        UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.             25,439.01      34,201         481.33

          128-5604-561        BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE          295.00       1,000         705.00

          130-5603-511        PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES        662.50           0      71,219.56-  Y

          130-5607-511        SOUTH 45 TIF DISCTIRCT             69.76           0      44,402.55-  Y

          130-5608-577        YMCA LAND ACQUISITION          11,343.47           0      84,254.10-  Y

          211-5351-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            120.50         500       2,010.57-  Y

          211-5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS OTHER THAN BUI      3,030.00     555,700     208,157.10

          211-5353-314        CHEMICALS                       9,390.07     180,000      46,380.00

          211-5353-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          2,465.40      16,000       1,916.83-  Y

          211-5353-377        PLANT EQUIPMENT                     9.06       7,500       2,639.19

          211-5353-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               162.50       3,000       1,783.71-  Y

          211-5353-435        ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMENT        184.30       2,000          15.66

          211-5353-460        OTHER PROPERTY MAINT. SERV        134.89       3,000         618.06

          211-5353-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE         55.00       7,000       2,812.93

          211-5353-531        POSTAGE                            44.26         250         180.52-  Y

          211-5353-532        TELEPHONE                         205.46       3,500         779.14

          211-5353-814        PRINTING & COPY MACHINE LE         37.77         500          48.41

          211-5354-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               1,138.83       4,000          74.91

          211-5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     230.10       2,000       2,649.44-  Y

          211-5354-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             10.89         300       1,386.34-  Y

          211-5354-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          3,636.01      55,000      14,742.51

          211-5354-376        BACKFILL & SURFACE MATERIA      1,428.88      15,000       5,237.73

          211-5354-379        OTHER WATER MAINT. MATERIA        333.46       8,000       2,270.88-  Y

          211-5354-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                250.00       2,000       1,240.94-  Y

          211-5354-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL     25,234.85     317,357     276,727.60

          211-5355-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   154.87       5,300       1,052.74-  Y

          211-5355-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            225.56       1,500         698.06

          211-5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      8,420.58      50,000      10,746.76-  Y

          211-5356-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          2,721.36      11,000       9,655.21-  Y

          211-5356-511        PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES      4,080.95       3,000      24,263.23-  Y

          212-5342-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  64.94       2,000         225.89

          212-5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     202.62       6,500       3,756.91-  Y

          212-5342-361        SEWER PIPE                      4,322.00       5,000         678.00

          212-5342-363        BACKFILL & SURFACE MATERIA      7,977.08      10,000       3,959.47-  Y

          212-5342-364        SEWER LINE REPAIR MATERIAL         62.66      10,000       7,914.83

          212-5342-369        OTHER SEWER MTCE SUPPLIES           8.78      10,000       7,102.00

          212-5342-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 18.35       2,000         631.78-  Y

          212-5343-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (AM      1,173.19      17,000         560.45-  Y

          212-5344-314        CHEMICALS                       5,472.41      27,500       1,623.48-  Y

          212-5344-318        VEHICLE PARTS                      12.15       1,500          60.39

          212-5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            843.30      20,000      10,262.01

          212-5344-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (AM     12,419.11     350,000      78,282.40

          212-5344-366        PLANT MTCE & REPAIR MATERI      4,204.38      42,000       4,164.81

          212-5344-460        OTHER PROPERTY MTCE SERVIC        226.86      50,000      28,880.93

          212-5344-532        TELEPHONE                          89.92       2,500       2,456.89-  Y

          212-5344-538        INTERNET ACCESS CHARGE             88.10       1,000         823.87



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    32

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          212-5345-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   154.86       5,300         983.12-  Y

          212-5345-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            225.55       1,000         562.82

          212-5345-531        POSTAGE                         1,500.00      12,500       2,045.38-  Y

          212-5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      8,448.57      50,000      12,809.79-  Y

          212-5345-815        POSTAGE METER LEASE & MTCE        369.99       1,000          89.98-  Y

          213-5361-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            125.52       4,500      12,145.26-  Y

          213-5361-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   91.07       2,000         869.12

          213-5361-432        REPAIR OF STRUCTURES              161.69       1,000         595.31

          213-5361-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               220.36       2,000       1,809.33-  Y

          213-5361-532        TELEPHONE                         114.13         800       1,332.99-  Y

                                TOTAL:                      312,951.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110                     NON-DEPARTMENTAL                                     40.00

                    110-110                 CITY COUNCIL                                        200.00

                    110-120                 CITY CLERK                                        1,653.52

                    110-130                 CITY ADMINISTRATOR                                  150.87

                    110-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                          1,262.98

                    110-160                 LEGAL SERVICES                                      588.54

                    110-170                 COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS                               895.85

                    110-180                 PLANNING & ZONING                                 1,731.00

                    110-190                 COUNCIL CONTINGENCY                                 277.93

                    110-211                 POLICE ADMINISTRATION                             1,372.30

                    110-212                 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION                               30.00

                    110-217                 CUSTODY OF PRISONERS                                  6.33

                    110-221                 POLICE TRAINING                                   1,146.32

                    110-222                 COMMUNICATION SERVICES                            3,949.19

                    110-223                 AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES                              25,788.39

                    110-224                 POLICE BUILDINGS                                  5,769.29

                    110-233                 DUI ASSESSMENT EXPENDS                               11.94

                    110-241                 FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.                            9,163.73

                    110-261                 CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN                              909.51

                    110-310                 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN                                  239.30

                    110-320                 STREETS                                           5,092.10

                    110-323                 SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS                              176.00

                    110-326                 STREET LIGHTING                                  16,190.30

                    110-334                 WEED CONTROL                                        189.24

                    110-335                 YARD WASTE COLLECTION                            27,089.91

                    110-338                 REFUSE COLLECT & DISPOSAL                         1,778.76

                    110-370                 CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION                             444.62

                    110-381                 CUSTODIAL SERVICES                                1,309.83



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    33

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110-383                 BURGESS OSBORNE                                     656.14

                    110-384                 RAILROAD DEPOT                                      478.23

                    110-388                 GARMENT FACTORY                                      32.38

                    110-511                 PARK ADMINISTRATION                               1,630.97

                    110-512                 LAKE ADMINISTRATION                                 839.50

                    110-541                 PETERSON PARK                                     5,560.16

                    110-542                 LAWSON PARK                                       4,470.33

                    110-552                 GIRLS COMPLEX                                       305.17

                    110-555                 KINZEL FIELD                                      6,430.94

                    110-556                 T-BALL COMPLEX                                    5,976.00

                    110-561                 EAST CAMPGROUND                                   2,332.92

                    110-562                 WEST CAMPGROUND                                     354.11

                    110-563                 MARINA AREA                                       1,774.65

                    110-564                 BEACH AREA                                            9.60

                    110-651                 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT                              5,000.00

                    110-652                 SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DISTR                         3,462.70

                    110-752                 KAL KAN WTR/SWR EXT                               1,288.89

                    110-753                 HOME DEPOT INFRASTRUCTURE                         6,645.06

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    110  TOTAL              GENERAL FUND                                    154,705.50

                    122-653                 HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION                          8,055.32

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    122  TOTAL              HOTEL TAX FUND                                    8,055.32

                    123-582                 JULY 4TH FIREWORKS                                   78.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    123  TOTAL              FESTIVAL MGMT FUND                                   78.00

                    125-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                         25,439.01

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    125  TOTAL              INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT                          25,439.01

                    128-604                 MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT                                295.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    128  TOTAL              MIDTOWN TIF FUND                                    295.00

                    130-603                 I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT                              662.50

                    130-607                 SOUTH 45 TIF DISTRICT                                69.76

                    130-608                 YMCA LAND ACQUISITION                            11,343.47

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    130  TOTAL              CAPITAL PROJECT FUND                             12,075.73

                    211-351                 RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES                            120.50

                    211-352                 RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS                           3,030.00

                    211-353                 WATER TREATMENT PLANT                            12,688.71

                    211-354                 WATER DISTRIBUTION                               32,263.02

                    211-355                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                           8,801.01

                    211-356                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                          6,802.31

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    211  TOTAL              WATER FUND                                       63,705.55

                    212-342                 SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM                          12,656.43



 4/13/2007  1:19 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    34

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    212-343                 SEWER LIFT STATIONS                               1,173.19

                    212-344                 WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT                        23,356.23

                    212-345                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                          10,698.97

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    212  TOTAL              SEWER FUND                                       47,884.82

                    213-361                 MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS                            712.77

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    213  TOTAL              CEMETERY FUND                                       712.77

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                     312,951.70

                                                           *** PROJECT TOTALS ***

               PROJECT                              LINE ITEM                                           AMOUNT

 

               127 LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES        500      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                 3,030.00

                                                                     ** PROJECT 127 TOTAL **          3,030.00

 

               157 Storm Sewer 34th-35th R/P        500      Other Purchased Services                    28.00

                                                                     ** PROJECT 157 TOTAL **             28.00

 

    NO ERRORS



 4/13/2007  1:29 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: MFTBK

FUND      : 121  MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 321  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-3362MB             121 5321-353        BITUMINOUS PA: COLD MIX             088336         180.00

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 321   STREETS                  TOTAL:         180.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 121   MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND      TOTAL:         180.00

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:         180.00



 4/13/2007  1:29 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2006-2007 121-5321-353        BITUMINOUS PATCHING               180.00      20,000         612.16

                                TOTAL:                          180.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    121-321                 STREETS                                             180.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    121  TOTAL              MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND                                 180.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                         180.00

    NO ERRORS



 4/13/2007  1:32 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: RLFBN

FUND      : 127  REVOLVING LOAN FUND

DEPARTMENT: 652  REVOLVING LOANS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-008200 COLES CO REGIONAL PLAN I-3537               127 5652-519        OTHER PROFESS: FEB 07 RLF BILLING   088337         495.00

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 652   REVOLVING LOANS          TOTAL:         495.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 127   REVOLVING LOAN FUND      TOTAL:         495.00

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:         495.00



 4/13/2007  1:32 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2006-2007 127-5652-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        495.00       2,500         556.59

                                TOTAL:                          495.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    127-652                 REVOLVING LOANS                                     495.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    127  TOTAL              REVOLVING LOAN FUND                                 495.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                         495.00

    NO ERRORS



 4/13/2007  1:28 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: EHBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 412  HEALTH PLAN ADMIN

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000222 CERIDIAN               I-330876103          221 5412-211        HEALTH PLAN A: MARCH 07 COBRA       088335          86.20

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 412   HEALTH PLAN ADMIN        TOTAL:          86.20

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:          86.20

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:          86.20



 4/13/2007  1:28 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2006-2007 221-5412-211        HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION         86.20     164,892      17,167.22

                                TOTAL:                           86.20

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-412                 HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                                    86.20

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                                86.20

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                          86.20

    NO ERRORS



 4/13/2007  1:31 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: PCBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 413  MEDICAL CLAIMS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000250 CARLE CLINIC ASSOC     I-200704119905       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE CLINIC ASSOC   604196         876.00

01-000250 CARLE CLINIC ASSOC     I-200704130010       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE CLINIC ASSOC   604222       5,446.97

 

01-000251 CHRISTIE CLINIC ASSOC  I-200704119907       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CHRISTIE CLINIC ASSO 604198         248.55

 

01-000252 MARIA HORVAT MD        I-200704119911       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MARIA HORVAT MD      604202          79.33

 

01-000253 IN HOME MEDICAL        I-200704119912       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: IN HOME MEDICAL      604203         231.05

01-000253 IN HOME MEDICAL        I-200704130015       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: IN HOME MEDICAL      604227          46.04

 

01-000254 LAKELAND RADIOLOGISTS  I-200704119914       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LAKELAND RADIOLOGIST 604205       1,094.12

 

01-000255 SARAH BUSH-HEALTH INS  I-200704119918       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SARAH BUSH-HEALTH IN 604209       2,759.30

01-000255 SARAH BUSH-HEALTH INS  I-200704130024       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SARAH BUSH-HEALTH IN 604236       8,029.52

 

01-000256 SBL PHYSICIAN BILLING  I-200704119919       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SBL PHYSICIAN BILLIN 604210       3,570.41

01-000256 SBL PHYSICIAN BILLING  I-200704130025       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SBL PHYSICIAN BILLIN 604237       2,955.85

 

01-000257 SELVIDGE CHIROPRACTIC  I-200704119920       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SELVIDGE CHIROPRACTI 604211         117.96

01-000257 SELVIDGE CHIROPRACTIC  I-200704130027       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SELVIDGE CHIROPRACTI 604239          25.62

 

01-000263 ANALGESIC HEALTH       I-200704119902       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: ANALGESIC HEALTH     604193          75.22

01-000263 ANALGESIC HEALTH       I-200704130006       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: ANALGESIC HEALTH     604218         126.19

 

01-000283 BONUTTI ORTHOPEDIC     I-200704119904       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: BONUTTI ORTHOPEDIC   604195          34.24

 

01-000286 TERRY A WARD           I-200704130029       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: TERRY A WARD         604241          42.58

 

01-000295 FAMILY CARE ASSOC      I-200704130013       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: FAMILY CARE ASSOC    604225         354.20

 

01-000308 LELAND E MCNEILL MD    I-200704119916       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LELAND E MCNEILL MD  604207         488.66

01-000308 LELAND E MCNEILL MD    I-200704130017       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LELAND E MCNEILL MD  604229         125.10

 

01-000311 UROLOGY ASSOCIATES     I-200704119923       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: UROLOGY ASSOCIATES   604214          47.67

01-000311 UROLOGY ASSOCIATES     I-200704130028       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: UROLOGY ASSOCIATES   604240          97.53

 

01-000313 HELMS CHIROPRACTIC     I-200704130014       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HELMS CHIROPRACTIC   604226          12.23

 

01-000325 CARL JOHNSON MD        I-200704119913       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARL JOHNSON MD      604204         198.99

 

01-000326 HARIKRISHNA P PATEL MD I-200704119917       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HARIKRISHNA P PATEL  604208         109.68

 

01-000327 PRAIRIE CARDIOVASCULAR I-200704130022       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: PRAIRIE CARDIOVASCUL 604234          34.53

 

01-000328 WILLIAM G SCHUBERT MD  I-200704130026       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: WILLIAM G SCHUBERT M 604238          25.48

 



 4/13/2007  1:31 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: PCBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 413  MEDICAL CLAIMS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000329 DAVID A SIGALOW MD     I-200704119921       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: DAVID A SIGALOW MD   604212          28.79

 

01-000438 ARUN R BAJAJ MD        I-200704119903       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: ARUN R BAJAJ MD      604194          59.58

01-000438 ARUN R BAJAJ MD        I-200704130008       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: ARUN R BAJAJ MD      604220         295.74

 

01-000547 RAMON U CLIMACO MD     I-200704119908       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: RAMON U CLIMACO MD   604199          67.50

 

01-000648 PODIATRY MEDICAL SURGI I-200704130021       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: PODIATRY MEDICAL SUR 604233         249.74

 

01-000723 CARLE PHYSICIAN SERVIC I-200704119906       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE PHYSICIAN SERV 604197       5,339.56

01-000723 CARLE PHYSICIAN SERVIC I-200704130011       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE PHYSICIAN SERV 604223       5,679.23

 

01-000748 MATTOON EYE CENTER     I-200704119915       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MATTOON EYE CENTER   604206           2.14

 

01-000767 NALIN M PATEL MD       I-200704130019       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: NALIN M PATEL MD     604231          89.68

 

01-001308 WATSON ORTHOPAEDICS LL I-200704119924       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: WATSON ORTHOPAEDICS  604215           5.04

 

01-001384 MATTOON DIALYSIS       I-200704130016       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MATTOON DIALYSIS     604228       2,233.97

 

01-001456 PREMIERE PHYSICAL THER I-200704130023       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: PREMIERE PHYSICAL TH 604235          24.33

 

01-001525 APEX PHYSICAL THERAPY  I-200704130007       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: APEX PHYSICAL THERAP 604219          45.00

 

01-001527 MICROBIOLOGY SPECIALTY I-200704130018       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MICROBIOLOGY SPECIAL 604230         404.00

 

01-001636 JOSEPH SOLAN DC        I-200704119922       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JOSEPH SOLAN DC      604213          27.86

 

01-001650 EAST CENTRAL FL OUTPT  I-200704119910       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: EAST CENTRAL FL OUTP 604201         137.79

 

01-001654 ADVANCED GASTRO HEALTH I-200704130005       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: ADVANCED GASTRO HEAL 604217         123.65

 

01-001655 RICARDO CACDAC MD      I-200704130009       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: RICARDO CACDAC MD    604221         305.00

 

01-001656 PHYSICIANS STAT LAB IN I-200704130020       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: PHYSICIANS STAT LAB  604232          39.60

 

01-050850 DR ZAVERI & ASSCOIATES I-200704119909       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: DR ZAVERI & ASSCOIAT 604200         271.62

01-050850 DR ZAVERI & ASSCOIATES I-200704130012       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: DR ZAVERI & ASSCOIAT 604224          77.17

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 413   MEDICAL CLAIMS           TOTAL:      42,760.01

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000258 CAREMARK INC           I-200704119925       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : CAREMARK INC         604216       9,529.60

01-000258 CAREMARK INC           I-200704130030       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : CAREMARK INC         604242       9,580.57

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 414   RX CLAIMS                TOTAL:      19,110.17

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:      61,870.18

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:      61,870.18



 4/13/2007  1:31 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     3

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2006-2007 221-5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIMS                 42,760.01   1,017,117     104,241.72

          221-5414-211        RX CLAIMS                      19,110.17     466,805      60,737.64

                                TOTAL:                       61,870.18

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-413                 MEDICAL CLAIMS                                   42,760.01

                    221-414                 RX CLAIMS                                        19,110.17

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                            61,870.18

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                      61,870.18

    NO ERRORS



 4/13/2007  1:27 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: DDBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 415  DENTAL CLAIMS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2007 THRU  4/15/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-200704119894       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL         000000         954.90

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-200704119962       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL         000000         532.00

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 415   DENTAL CLAIMS            TOTAL:       1,486.90

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:       1,486.90

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:       1,486.90



 4/13/2007  1:27 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2006-2007 221-5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS                   1,486.90      79,546       5,205.22

                                TOTAL:                        1,486.90

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-415                 DENTAL CLAIMS                                     1,486.90

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                             1,486.90

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                       1,486.90

    NO ERRORS



 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2007-2685 

 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING CONTRIBUTIONS REQUIRED OF EMPLOYEES 
AND RETIREES WHO ELECT TO PARTICIPATE IN THE CITY OF MATTOON’S 

GROUP HEALTH, DENTAL AND LIFE INSURANCE PLANS 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon is subject to three collective bargaining agreements which 
prescribe that employees shall pay 15% of the cost of the health insurance plan by payroll 
deduction beginning with the first paycheck of May after the cost for the preceding calendar year 
are disclosed by the Employer’s health insurance administrator; and 
 
WHEREAS, actual costs for stop loss insurance, fees, medical, prescription and dental claim 
expenditures for calendar year 2006 were $385.47 per month for single coverage and $619.45 per 
month for family coverage, as reported by PersonalCare of Illinois and Delta Dental of Illinois, 
the Employer’s health and dental insurance plan administrators; and 
 
WHEREAS, State statutes do not presently require a municipality to pay any portion of the cost 
of post employment benefits for retired employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City began to require retired employees, whose pensions are more than $1,625 
per month, to contribute a higher share of the cost of the health insurance plan by Resolution 
2004-2548 adopted April 6, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, bids were sought for group life insurance and coverage was bound with the low 
bidder, EMC National Life Company for a three-year term effective May 1, 2005 by Council 
Decision Request 2005-428 approved the same date of this resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the time is now appropriate to prescribe contributions required of employees and 
retirees for the health and life insurance plans for the 2006/2007 fiscal year.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The following tables prescribe contributions required of eligible employees and 
retirees who elect to participate in the City of Mattoon’s group health insurance plan.  
 

Eligible Employees & Retirees Whose Pensions Are $1,625 Or Less Per Month 
 

 Total Monthly 
Cost 

Employer Share 
85% 

Employee Share 
15% 

    

Single Coverage $  385.47 $  327.65 $  57.82 

Family Coverage $  619.45 $  526.53  $  92.92 

 



 

Eligible Retirees Whose Pensions Are More Than $1,625 Per Month 
 

 Total Monthly 
Cost 

Employer Share 
75% 

Retiree Share 
25% 

    

Single Coverage $  385.47 $  289.10  $    96.37    

Family Coverage $  619.45 $  464.59  $  154.86  

 
Section 2. Retirees, who are currently enrolled, may participate in the City of Mattoon’s group 
term life insurance plan by monthly withholdings from pensions, whether paid by the Illinois 
Municipal Retirement Fund, the Firefighters Pension Fund or the Police Pension Fund. The 
retiree contribution for life insurance shall be $6.70 per month for retirees under 70.  For retirees 
age 70 or over, the retiree contribution for life insurance shall be $3.35 per month. 
 
Section 3. Employee and retiree contributions adopted by this resolution shall become effective 
May 1, 2007.  

Section 4. All contributions for payment of health and life insurance shall be deducted directly on 
a monthly basis from the pension benefits received by the retiree. The only exception to the direct 
deduction rule shall be when the IMRF rules and regulations do not allow for said direct 
deduction.  

Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, adopted 
this    day of __________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
      
Approved this ____ day of _________, 2007. 

      ____________________________________ 
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________   _______________________________ 
Susan O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

CITY OF MATTOON   

HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN   
               
               

Fixed Costs  Actual   Actual  Actual  Actual  Actual  Actual  Actual 

    12/31/00   12/31/01  12/31/02  12/31/03  12/31/2004  12/31/2005  12/31/2006 

                       
Specific S/L  $213,681.00  $162,219.00  $140,424.39  $164,947.76  $117,206.56  $124,336.22  $125,424.00 
                       
Aggregate S/L  $18,123.00  $16,794.00  $26,376.24  $19,589.32  $14,007.29  $12,983.56  $10,566.00 
                       
*Fees (including run 
out)  $55,256.00  $62,182.00  $62,954.25  $83,150.25  $168,175.59  $157,039.90  $157,860.00 
                       
Total Fixed Cost  $287,060.00  $241,195.00  $229,754.88  $267,687.33  $299,389.44  $294,359.68  $293,850.00 
                       

Claims                      
Medical  $1,193,514.00  $1,237,977.00  $1,148,034.63  $1,298,244.62  $1,094,717.77  $968,683.00  $1,026,728.00 
Dental  $47,497.00  $70,416.00  $78,577.66  $65,308.34  $81,628.81  $75,757.88  $80,189.23 
RX  $300,438.00  $411,473.00  $475,519.44  $515,577.45  $479,091.91  $444,576.00  $458,610.00 
E.C.(extra contractual)  $22,863.00  $4,009.00  $1,681.41  $2,669.80  $0.00  $0.00  $0.00 
                       
Total Paid  $1,564,312.00  $1,723,875.00  $1,703,813.14  $1,881,800.21  $1,655,438.49  $1,489,016.88  $1,565,527.23 
                       
Over Specific  $25,312.00  $0.00  -$2,523.22  $0.00  $0.00  $18,703.00  $0.00 
                       
Net Paid  $1,539,000.00  $1,723,875.00  $1,701,289.92  $1,881,800.21  $1,655,438.49  $1,507,719.88  $1,565,527.23 
                       

Total Cost  $1,826,060.00  $1,965,070.00  $1,933,568.02  $2,149,487.54  $1,954,827.93  $1,802,079.56  $1,859,377.23 
                       
Average monthly                      
cost per EE  $574.23  $593.32  $596.78  $670.88  $590.23  $544.11  $547.52 
       (Single)  $248.58  $263.70  $260.60  $290.42  $311.69   $449.31  $385.47 
       (Family)  $720.88  $764.73  $755.74  $842.22  $714.61   $586.29  $619.45 
                       
Enrollment                      
       (Single)  82  94  85  82  85  85  87 
       (Family)  183  182  180  185  191  191  196 
   265  276  265  267  276  276  283 
               



 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2007-2686 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon is sponsoring a Parade in the City of Mattoon which 
event constitutes a public purpose; 

 
 WHEREAS, this Parade will require the temporary closure of US 45 / IL 121, a State 
Highway in the City of Mattoon from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue; 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 4-408 of the Illinois Highway Code Authorizes the Illinois 
Department of Transportation to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions 
of State Highways for such public purposes. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Mattoon that 
permission to close off US 45 / IL 121 from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue as above 
designated, be requested of the Illinois Department of Transportation. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate time 
period between 9:00 AM and 10:30 AM on July 4, 2007. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of the July 4th 
Parade. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that traffic from the closed portion of highway shall be 
detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated traffic, which will 
be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is conspicuously marked for the 
benefit of traffic diverted from the State Highway. (The parking of vehicles shall be prohibited 
on the detour route to allow an uninterrupted flow of two-way traffic.)*  The detour shall be as 
follows:  The parade will only be crossing the State route at an angle from Western Avenue 
to Broadway Avenue; therefore, a detour will not be necessary due to the ability to open 
the road to traffic as required. 
*To be used when appropriate. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon assumes full responsibility for 
the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in effect. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall at the 
expense of the City of Mattoon be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other 
points (such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through the detour. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers, flaggers and officials shall permit 
emergency vehicles in emergency situations to pass through the closed area as swiftly as is safe 
for all concerned. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all debris shall be removed by the City of Mattoon 



 

prior to reopening the State Highway. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by 
the City of Mattoon as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation.  These 
items shall be provided by the City of Mattoon. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the closure and the detour shall be marked according 
to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an occasional break shall be made in the procession 
so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions will be made for the traffic on 
intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This paragraph is applicable 
when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when a detour is required) 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon hereby agrees to assume all 
liabilities and pay all claims for any damage which shall be occasioned by the closing described 
above.  
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon shall provide a comprehensive 
general liability insurance policy or an additional endorsement  in the amount of $100,000 per 
person and $500,000 on aggregate which as the Illinois Department of Transportation and its 
officials, employees and agents as insured’s and which protects them from all claims arising 
from the requested road closing. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Illinois 
Department of Transportation so serve as a formal request for the permission sought in this 
resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission. 

 
ADOPTED this                 day of                         , 2007. A.D. 
APPROVED this               day of                          , 2007 A.D. 
 
 
             
        MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
        MUNICIPAL CLERK 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2007-2687 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon is sponsoring a Parade in the City of Mattoon which 
event constitutes a public purpose; 

 
 WHEREAS, this Parade will require the temporary closure of US 45 / IL 121, a State 
Highway in the City of Mattoon from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue; 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 4-408 of the Illinois Highway Code Authorizes the Illinois 
Department of Transportation to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions 
of State Highways for such public purposes. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Mattoon that 
permission to close off US 45 / IL 121 from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue as above 
designated, be requested of the Illinois Department of Transportation. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate time 
period between 10:30 AM and 11:30 AM on July 21, 2007. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of the Bagelfest 
Parade. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that traffic from the closed portion of highway shall be 
detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated traffic, which will 
be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is conspicuously marked for the 
benefit of traffic diverted from the State Highway. (The parking of vehicles shall be prohibited 
on the detour route to allow an uninterrupted flow of two-way traffic.)*  The detour shall be as 
follows:  The parade will only be crossing the State route at an angle from Western Avenue 
to Broadway Avenue; therefore, a detour will not be necessary due to the ability to open 
the road to traffic as required. 
*To be used when appropriate. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon assumes full responsibility for 
the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in effect. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall at the 
expense of the City of Mattoon be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other 
points (such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through the detour. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers, flaggers and officials shall permit 
emergency vehicles in emergency situations to pass through the closed area as swiftly as is safe 
for all concerned. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all debris shall be removed by the City of Mattoon 
prior to reopening the State Highway. 



 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by 
the City of Mattoon as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation.  These 
items shall be provided by the City of Mattoon. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the closure and the detour shall be marked according 
to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an occasional break shall be made in the procession 
so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions will be made for the traffic on 
intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This paragraph is applicable 
when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when a detour is required) 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon hereby agrees to assume all 
liabilities and pay all claims for any damage which shall be occasioned by the closing described 
above.  
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Mattoon shall provide a comprehensive 
general liability insurance policy or an additional endorsement  in the amount of $100,000 per 
person and $500,000 on aggregate which as the Illinois Department of Transportation and its 
officials, employees and agents as insured’s and which protects them from all claims arising 
from the requested road closing. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Illinois 
Department of Transportation so serve as a formal request for the permission sought in this 
resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission. 

 
ADOPTED this                 day of                         , 2007. A.D. 
APPROVED this               day of                          , 2007 A.D. 
 
 
             
        MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
        MUNICIPAL CLERK 



 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO.  2007-1209 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO ADD TERRITORY  
TO ENTERPRISE ZONE 

 
       

 
WHEREAS, on December 14, 1989, the City of Mattoon, Illinois (hereinafter “City”), passed 
and adopted an Ordinance entitled:  “AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE COLES 
TOGETHER ENTERPRISE ZONE WITHIN THE CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS” 
(hereinafter “Ordinance”); which Ordinance has been amended from time to time, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to amend the Ordinance to add thereto and include therein certain 
additional territory; 
 
NOW THEREFORE be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Mattoon, Illinois as 
follows:    
 
Section I:  That said Ordinance is hereby amended by adding to the end of the “Mattoon Legal 
Descriptions” Section of Exhibit A of said Ordinance the following:   
 
Also: 
 
Commencing at a point where the South Right of Way of Dewitt Avenue (State Highway 121) intersects the East 
Right of Way of Waltrip Road in the West one-half of the Northwest Quarter (NW Northwest Northwest Quarter 
(NE ¼) of Section Fifteen (15), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Seven (7) East of the third principal Meridian; 
thence North 31 degrees 0 minutes 0 seconds East a distance of three feet; thence Northwesterly along a line three 
feet north of the South Right of Way of State Highway 121 a distance of 3259 feet, more or less to a point 3 feet 
West of the centerline of Section Nine (9), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Seven (7) East of the third principal 
Meridian; thence South 31 Degrees 0 Minutes 0 Seconds West a distance of 52 feet to the South Right of Way of the 
Illinois Central Railroad; thence Northwesterly along the South Right of Way of the Illinois Central Railroad a 
distance of  5953 feet to the Centerline County Road 900N located in Section Eight (8) Township Twelve (12) 
North, Range Seven (7) East of the third principal Meridian; thence Westerly along the centerline of County Road 
900N a distance of 1791 feet to the Centerline of County Road 130E; thence 180 Degrees South along the Centerline 
of Way of County Road 130E a distance of 1278 feet; Thence 90 Degrees East a distance of 63 feet to a point that is 
43 feet East of the East Road Right of Way of County Road 130E; thence 180 Degrees South on a line parallel to the 
centerline of County Road 130E a distance of  3961 feet to the Centerline of County Road 800 North; thence 
Easterly along the centerline of County Road 800N a distance of 5188 feet to the West line of the Southeast Quarter 
(SE ¼) of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of Section Nine (9), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Seven (7) East 
of the third principal Meridian; thence 0 Degrees North along the West line of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the 
Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of Section 9, Township Twelve (12) North, Range Seven (7) East of the third principal 
Meridian a distance of 1148 feet to the Northwest Corner of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the Southwest Quarter 
(SW1/4) of Section Nine (9), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Seven (7) East of the third principal Meridian; 
thence 90 Degrees East along the North line of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of 
Section Nine (9), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Seven (7) East of the third principal Meridian a distance of 
1314 feet to the East line of the West one-half (W ½) of said Section Nine (9); thence North along the East line of 
the West one-half (W ½) of said Section Nine (9) a distance of 587 feet to the South Right of Way of State Highway 
121; thence Southeasterly along the South Right of Way of State Highway 121 a distance of  3256 feet to the point 
of beginning. 



 

 
Section 2. That except as amended hereby, the provisions of said Ordinance as described in 
the first paragraph of this amended Ordinance shall be and remain and full force and effect and 
shall apply to the premises herein described.  
 
Section 3:  That the Mayor of the City of Mattoon, Illinois shall have and is hereby given 
authority to execute an Enterprise Zone Amended Intergovernmental Agreement between the 
Cities of Charleston, Mattoon and Oakland, Illinois and the County of Coles to add thereto and 
include therein the real estate described herein, which Agreement is attached hereto, marked 
Exhibit B and made a part hereof. 
 
This Ordinance is passed, presented and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Mattoon, Illinois by an aye and nay roll call vote with   voting aye,   , 
voting nay,    absent; and    passing, which meeting was held on the 17th day of 
April, 2007. 
 
 
 
Approved:         
   Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
              
   City Clerk   
 



 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1210 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING 2800-2820 PINE AVE. FROM R1, SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL TO R2, ONE AND TWO FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

 
WHEREAS there has been filed a written Petition by Catherine Shirley, respectfully requesting 
the change in zoning  from R1, Single Family Residential to R2, One and Two Family 
Residential on the property legally described as: 
 

Lots 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12, Block 103 of Noyes Addition to the City of Mattoon, 
situated in the County of Coles and State of Illinois. 

Commonly known as 2800-2820 Pine Avenue 
 

WHEREAS the current zoning of the property is R1, Single Family Residential, and the 
rezoning request is in keeping with the zoning of the area north of the alley and will beneficial to 
the petitioner for redeveloping the property; and 
 
WHEREAS the Board of Zoning Appeals held a properly noticed public hearing on April 3rd, 
2007 regarding petitioner’s request for said rezoning; and 
 
WHEREAS both the Planning Commission for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, and 
the Zoning Board of Appeals for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, have recommended 
that the requested rezoning be granted; and  
  
WHEREAS the City Council for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, deems that it 
would be in the public interest to approve the rezoning on the premises described in this 
ordinance.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Pursuant to enabling authority provided at Section §159.05 of the Mattoon Code of 
Ordinances, the property legally described as aforesaid, be and the same is rezoned from R1, 
Single Family Residential to R2, One and Two Family Residential. 
 
Section 2. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Section 4. The City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of this ordinance with the 
Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  
 



 

Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this ______ day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of    , 2007.  
 

______________________________ 
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007.  



 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1211 

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A VARIANCE TO THE SIGN CODE OF THE 

MUNICIPALITY ON REAL ESTATE OWNED BY THOMPSON THRIFT AT 104 
DETTRO DRIVE. 

 
WHEREAS, there was filed with the Community Development Coordinator of the City of 
Mattoon, County of Coles, Illinois, a certain Petition by Steve Huffman, of Thompson Thrift, 
praying that variance be granted from requirements of the sign code of the municipality on real 
estate described as:  

 
104 Dettro Drive a.k.a. Mattoon Marketplace 

WHEREAS, said Petition was reviewed by the Community Development Coordinator and 
recommended to the City of Mattoon Planning Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Petition was submitted to the Planning Commission for their recommendation 
on April 9th, 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Petition was considered by the Planning Commission on April 9th, 2007; and 
was recommended, that the Petition be allowed, and that a variance be granted from 
requirements of the sign code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon as 
follows: 
 
Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Ordinance are found to be 
true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  A variance is hereby granted from requirements of the sign code as authorized by 
Section §160.13 of Chapter 160 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mattoon for real estate 
described as 104 Dettro Drive., a.k.a. Mattoon Marketplace, to allow the construction of a 
freestanding sign on the property with a surface area of approximately 260 square feet. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 4.  This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law.  
 
Upon motion by___________________________, seconded by__________________________, 
adopted this _____ day of _______________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names): ____________________________________ 



 

   ____________________________________ 
   ____________________________________ 
NAYS (Names): ____________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): ____________________________________ 
 
 
Approved this _____ day of _______________, 2007. 
 
     
      ______________________________ 
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 

______________________________ ______________________________ 
Susan O’Brien, City Clerk   J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2007-5229 
 

ORDINANCE APPROVING THE 
TAX INCREMENT REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PROJECT 

FOR THE SOUTH ROUTE 45 REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon, Illinois desires to implement tax increment 
financing pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-
74.4-1 et. seq., as amended, hereinafter referred to as the "Act" for the proposed 
Redevelopment Plan and Redevelopment Project within the municipal boundaries of the 
City of Mattoon and within the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area (Area) as 
described in Exhibit A attached to this Ordinance, which constitutes in the aggregate more 
than 1-1/2 acres. 
 
 WHEREAS, due notice in respect to the availability of the Redevelopment Plan, 
which contains an eligibility report, was given by mail on February 8, 2007 pursuant to 
Section 11-74.4-5 of the Act, said notice being given to all interested parties that have 
registered with the City concerning the proposed South Route 45 Redevelopment Project 
Area. 
 
 WHEREAS, due notice in respect to the availability of the Redevelopment Plan, 
which contains an eligibility report, was given by mail on February 8, 2007 pursuant to 
Section 11-74.4-5 of the Act, said notice being given to all residential addresses that, after 
a good faith effort, the City determined are located within 750 feet of the boundaries of the 
South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area. 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 11-74.4-5 of the Act, the City Council caused a 
public hearing to be held relative to the Redevelopment Plan and Redevelopment Project 
and the proposed designation of the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area on April 
3, 2007 at the Mattoon City Hall. 
 
 WHEREAS, due notice in respect to such hearing was given pursuant to Section 
11-74.4-5 and 6 of the Act, said notice being given to taxing districts and to the State of 
Illinois by certified mail on February 7, 2007; by publication on March 5, 2007 and March 
21, 2007, and by certified mail to property owners within the Area on March 21, 2007. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Plan and Project set forth the factors constituting 
the need for abatement of conditions in the proposed redevelopment project area that 
have led to blight or may lead to blight, and the City Council have reviewed testimony 
concerning such need presented at the public hearing and has reviewed the eligibility 
report and is generally informed of the conditions that qualify the Area as an South Route 
45 Redevelopment Project Area as the term “South Route 45 Redevelopment Project 
Area” is defined in the Act. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the conditions pertaining to lack of 
private investment in the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area to determine 



 

whether private development would take place in the proposed Area as a whole without 
the adoption of the proposed Tax Increment Redevelopment Plan and Project for said 
Area. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the conditions pertaining to real property 
in the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area to determine whether contiguous 
parcels of real property and improvements thereon in South Route 45 Redevelopment 
Project Area would be substantially benefited by the proposed redevelopment project 
improvements. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed its proposed Tax Increment 
Redevelopment Plan and Project and Comprehensive Plan, as amended, for the 
development of the municipality as a whole to determine whether the proposed 
Redevelopment Plan and Project conform to the Comprehensive Plan of the City: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS, that: 
 
 1. The City Council of the City of Mattoon hereby makes the following findings: 
 
  a. The area constituting the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project 

Area in the City of Mattoon, Illinois is described in Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and made part of this Ordinance. 

 
  b. There exist conditions that cause the area to be designated as a 

Redevelopment Project Area to be classified as a combination 
“conservation area” and “blighted area” as defined in Section 11-74.4-
3 of the Act. 

 
  c. The South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area, on the whole, has 

not been subject to growth and development through investment by 
private enterprise and would not be reasonably anticipated to be 
developed without the adoption of the Redevelopment Plan. 

 
  d. The Redevelopment Plan and Redevelopment Project for the South 

Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area conforms to the 
Comprehensive Plan, as amended, for the development of the 
municipality as a whole. 

 
  e. The parcels of real property in the proposed Redevelopment Project 

Area are contiguous and only those contiguous parcels of real 
property, which will be substantially benefited by the proposed 
redevelopment project, are included in the South Route 45 
Redevelopment Project Area. 

 
  f. The estimated date for the completion of the Redevelopment 



 

Project or retirement of obligations issued shall not be later than 
December 31 of the year in which the payment to the City 
Treasurer as provided in subsection (b) of Section 11-74.4-8 of the 
Act is to be made with respect to ad valorem taxes levied in the 
twenty-third calendar year after the year in which the ordinance 
approving the redevelopment project area is adopted. 

 
 2. The Tax Increment Redevelopment Plan and Project for the South Route 45 

Redevelopment Project Area, which were the subject matter of the hearing 
held on April 3, 2007, is hereby adopted and approved.  A copy of the 
aforementioned Redevelopment Plan and Project, marked as Exhibit B is 
attached to and made a part of this Ordinance. 

 
 3. All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 
 
 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 
 
 
 
 APPROVED: 

 
____________________________ 

 Charles E. White, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk 



 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
FOR 

SOUTH ROUTE 45 TIF DISTRICT 
MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
A TRACT OF LAND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36, 
TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN; 

THE NORTHWEST QUARTER AND SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1, 
TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN; 

THE NORTHEAST QUARTER AND SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 2, 
TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
AND PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, 
RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST 

QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 36; THENCE NORTH 87° 47' 27" EAST, 138.40 FEET ALONG THE NORTH 

LINE OF SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 36 TO THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF A TRACT DESCRIBED IN WARRANTY DEED ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 

681624 IN THE COLES COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE; THENCE NORTH 87° 47' 27" EAST, 447 FEET 

MORE OR LESS ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACT TO A POINT BEING ON THE NORTHWESTERN 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF S.A. ROUTE 19 STATION 67+22.2, 33 FEET LEFT; THENCE 

SOUTHEASTERLY 66.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF S.A. ROUTE 19; 
THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE ON A CURVE TO THE LEFT IN A 

SOUTHWESTERN DIRECTION, CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHEAST WITH A RADIUS OF 227.44 FEET TO A 

POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF S.A. ROUTE 

19, 869.23 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE AT S.A. ROUTE 19 STATION 55+72.93, 33 FEET RIGHT; 
THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE ON A CURVE TO THE RIGHT IN A 

SOUTHWESTERLY DIRECTION, CONCAVE TO THE NORTHWEST WITH A RADIUS OF 263.00 FEET TO A 

POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (US ROUTE 45); 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (US ROUTE 

45) AS MONUMENTED AND OCCUPIED ON THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED COURSES: SOUTHERLY TO 

S.B.I. ROUTE 25 STATION 31+63.93, 200.00 FEET LEFT; WESTERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. 
ROUTE 45) STATION 31+63.93, 146.22 FEET LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 

45) STATION 41+66, 125 FEET LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 

57+49.91, 147 FEET LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 62+00, 120 

FEET LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 68+55, 120 FEET LEFT; 
WESTERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 68+55, 117 FEET LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO 

S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 70+63, 117 FEET LEFT; EASTERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 

(U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 70+63, 150 FEET LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 

45) STATION 72+82.51, 150 FEET LEFT; THENCE WESTERLY TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 2 



 

OF LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE I AS RECORDED ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 605697 ON PLAT 

BOOK 5 AT PAGE 165, POINT BEING ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. 
ROUTE 45); THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 196.07 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 2 

TO THE EAST LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 60.00 FEET 

TO THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 00° 20’ 57” WEST, 483.56 

FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4 OF SAID LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE I, POINT 

ALSO BEING ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” 

WEST, 462.5 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 

00° 20’ 57” WEST, 244.00 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOT 12 AND THE SOUTHERN EXTENSION 

THEREOF TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 12 OF SAID LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE I; 
THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 105 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 12 TO THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 12; THENCE SOUTH 00° 20’ 57” EAST, 244.00 FEET ALONG THE 

WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 12 AND SOUTHERN EXTENSION THEREOF TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LAKER 

AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 340.50 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LAKER 

AVENUE TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 11 OF SAID LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE I; 
THENCE SOUTH 00° 20’ 57” EAST, 184.00 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOT 11 TO THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 11; THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 910.73 FEET ALONG THE 

WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTHERN LINE OF LOTS 4 THROUGH 11 OF SAID LAKELAND 

DEVELOPMENT PHASE I TO AN IRON PIN IN THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.A.I. 
ROUTE 57; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY AS 

MONUMENTED AND OCCUPIED TO F.A.I. ROUTE 57 STATION 490+00, 125 FEET RIGHT; THENCE 

NORTHEASTERLY 500.4 FEET ALONG THE SAID SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO F.A.I. 
STATION 495+00, 145.00 FEET RIGHT; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY TO THE NORTHWESTERN RIGHT-
OF-WAY LINE OF F.A.I. ROUTE 57 AS MONUMENTED AND OCCUPIED AT STATION 496+45, 156.50 

LEFT, POINT ALSO BEING ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2; 
THENCE WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2 TO THE 

WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2; THENCE NORTH 

ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2 TO 

THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF A TRACT AS DESCRIBED IN A TRUSTEE’S DEED ON BOOK 874 AT PAGE 

300 ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 567599 IN THE COLES COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE; THENCE 

EASTERLY, 310 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID TRACT ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 567599 TO 

THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT; THENCE NORTHERLY 702.50 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE 

OF SAID TRACT ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 567599 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT; 
THENCE WESTERLY 10.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACT ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 

567599 TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT AS DESCRIBED IN A DEED LABELED TRAILER 

PARK PROPERTY ON BOOK 788 AT PAGE 303 IN THE COLES COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE; THENCE 

NORTHERLY 660 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRAILER PARK PROPERTY TO THE NORTH 

LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2; THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 20 FEET TO THE 

NORTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAKE PARADISE ROAD; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE 

NORTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID LAKE PARADISE ROAD TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE L 

& K MOTEL PARCEL AS DESCRIBED IN A TRUSTEE’S DEED AS TRACT II ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 

593383 IN THE COLES COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE; THENCE ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID L & 

K MOTEL PARCEL ON THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED COURSES: NORTH 00° 04’ 13” WEST, 375.76 

FEET ALONG THE WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF L & K MOTEL PARCEL TO THE NORTHWEST 

CORNER OF SAID PARCEL; THENCE SOUTH 89° 43’ 50” EAST, 155.17 FEET ALONG THE NORTHERN 

BOUNDARY LINE OF L & K MOTEL PARCEL TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID L & K MOTEL 



 

PARCEL, POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF L & K RESTAURANT PARCEL AS 

DESCRIBED AS TRACT I ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 593383 IN THE COLES COUNTY RECORDER’S 

OFFICE; THENCE SOUTH 89° 43’ 50” EAST, 145.78 FEET MORE OR LESS TO A POINT ON THE 

WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45); THENCE NORTHERLY 

950.13 FEET MORE OR LESS TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 14+85, 100 FEET RIGHT; 
THENCE EASTERLY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ENCOMPASSING 139.7 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, 
CONTAINING 53.5 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AREA. NET AREA OF TIF DISTRICT 

WHICH EXCLUDES EXISTING RIGHT-OF-W 



CONSULTINGURBANPGAV

Exhibit 1

City of Mattoon, Illinois

South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area

oJANUARY 2007

0 500 1,000250

Feet

§̈¦57

tu45

tu45

SOUTH ROUTE 45 REDEVELOPMENT
PROJECT AREA BOUNDARY MAP

South Route 45 Redevelopment
Project Area Boundary



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2007-5230 

 
ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE 

SOUTH ROUTE 45 REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore in Ordinance No. 2007-5229 adopted 
and approved the Tax Increment Redevelopment Plan and Project for the proposed South 
Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area with respect to which a public hearing was held on 
April 3, 2007 and it is now necessary and desirable to designate the area referred to in 
said plan as the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS, that the area described the attached Exhibit A is 
hereby designated as the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area pursuant to 
Section 11-74.4.4 of the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act: 

 
 All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
 This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its approval, passage, 
and publication as required by law. 
 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Charles E. White, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk 



      Page 1 of 77                     

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
FOR 

SOUTH ROUTE 45 TIF DISTRICT 
MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
A TRACT OF LAND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36, 
TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN; 

THE NORTHWEST QUARTER AND SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1, 
TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN; 

THE NORTHEAST QUARTER AND SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 2, 
TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
AND PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, 
RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST 

QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 36; THENCE NORTH 87° 47' 27" EAST, 138.40 FEET ALONG THE 

NORTH LINE OF SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 36 TO 

THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A TRACT DESCRIBED IN WARRANTY DEED ON DOCUMENT 

NUMBER 681624 IN THE COLES COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE; THENCE NORTH 87° 47' 27" 

EAST, 447 FEET MORE OR LESS ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACT TO A POINT BEING ON 

THE NORTHWESTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF S.A. ROUTE 19 STATION 67+22.2, 33 FEET 

LEFT; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 66.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

S.A. ROUTE 19; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE ON A CURVE TO 

THE LEFT IN A SOUTHWESTERN DIRECTION, CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHEAST WITH A RADIUS OF 

227.44 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LINE OF S.A. ROUTE 19, 869.23 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE AT S.A. ROUTE 19 STATION 

55+72.93, 33 FEET RIGHT; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE ON A 

CURVE TO THE RIGHT IN A SOUTHWESTERLY DIRECTION, CONCAVE TO THE NORTHWEST WITH 

A RADIUS OF 263.00 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY 

OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (US ROUTE 45); THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EASTERN RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (US ROUTE 45) AS MONUMENTED AND OCCUPIED ON THE 

FOLLOWING DESCRIBED COURSES: SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 STATION 31+63.93, 200.00 

FEET LEFT; WESTERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 31+63.93, 146.22 FEET 

LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 41+66, 125 FEET LEFT; 

SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 57+49.91, 147 FEET LEFT; 

SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 62+00, 120 FEET LEFT; 

SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 68+55, 120 FEET LEFT; WESTERLY 

TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 68+55, 117 FEET LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. 
ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 70+63, 117 FEET LEFT; EASTERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 

(U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 70+63, 150 FEET LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. 
ROUTE 45) STATION 72+82.51, 150 FEET LEFT; THENCE WESTERLY TO THE SOUTHEAST 

CORNER OF LOT 2 OF LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE I AS RECORDED ON DOCUMENT 

NUMBER 605697 ON PLAT BOOK 5 AT PAGE 165, POINT BEING ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY 



 

             

LINE OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45); THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 196.07 FEET 

ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 2 TO THE EAST LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE 

CONTINUE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 60.00 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

LAKER AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 00° 20’ 57” WEST, 483.56 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER 

OF LOT 4 OF SAID LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE I, POINT ALSO BEING ON THE SOUTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 462.5 FEET 

ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 00° 20’ 57” 

WEST, 244.00 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOT 12 AND THE SOUTHERN EXTENSION 

THEREOF TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 12 OF SAID LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE 

I; THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 105 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 12 TO 

THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 12; THENCE SOUTH 00° 20’ 57” EAST, 244.00 FEET 

ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 12 AND SOUTHERN EXTENSION THEREOF TO THE SOUTH 

LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 340.50 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH 

LINE OF SAID LAKER AVENUE TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 11 OF SAID LAKELAND 

DEVELOPMENT PHASE I; THENCE SOUTH 00° 20’ 57” EAST, 184.00 FEET ALONG THE WEST 

LINE OF LOT 11 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 11; THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” 

WEST, 910.73 FEET ALONG THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTHERN LINE OF LOTS 4 

THROUGH 11 OF SAID LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE I TO AN IRON PIN IN THE 

SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.A.I. ROUTE 57; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 

ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY AS MONUMENTED AND OCCUPIED TO F.A.I. 
ROUTE 57 STATION 490+00, 125 FEET RIGHT; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 500.4 FEET ALONG 

THE SAID SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO F.A.I. STATION 495+00, 145.00 FEET 

RIGHT; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY TO THE NORTHWESTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.A.I. 
ROUTE 57 AS MONUMENTED AND OCCUPIED AT STATION 496+45, 156.50 LEFT, POINT ALSO 

BEING ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2; THENCE WEST 

ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2 TO THE WEST LINE 

OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2; THENCE NORTH ALONG 

THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2 TO THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF A TRACT AS DESCRIBED IN A TRUSTEE’S DEED ON BOOK 874 AT PAGE 

300 ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 567599 IN THE COLES COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE; THENCE 

EASTERLY, 310 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID TRACT ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 567599 

TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT; THENCE NORTHERLY 702.50 FEET ALONG THE 

EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 567599 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 

SAID TRACT; THENCE WESTERLY 10.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACT ON 

DOCUMENT NUMBER 567599 TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT AS DESCRIBED IN A 

DEED LABELED TRAILER PARK PROPERTY ON BOOK 788 AT PAGE 303 IN THE COLES COUNTY 

RECORDER’S OFFICE; THENCE NORTHERLY 660 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRAILER 

PARK PROPERTY TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2; 

THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 20 FEET TO THE NORTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAKE 

PARADISE ROAD; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID LAKE 

PARADISE ROAD TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE L & K MOTEL PARCEL AS DESCRIBED 

IN A TRUSTEE’S DEED AS TRACT II ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 593383 IN THE COLES COUNTY 

RECORDER’S OFFICE; THENCE ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID L & K MOTEL PARCEL ON THE 

FOLLOWING DESCRIBED COURSES: NORTH 00° 04’ 13” WEST, 375.76 FEET ALONG THE 

WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF L & K MOTEL PARCEL TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 

PARCEL; THENCE SOUTH 89° 43’ 50” EAST, 155.17 FEET ALONG THE NORTHERN BOUNDARY 



 

             

LINE OF L & K MOTEL PARCEL TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID L & K MOTEL PARCEL, 
POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF L & K RESTAURANT PARCEL AS DESCRIBED 

AS TRACT I ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 593383 IN THE COLES COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE; 

THENCE SOUTH 89° 43’ 50” EAST, 145.78 FEET MORE OR LESS TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45); THENCE NORTHERLY 950.13 FEET 

MORE OR LESS TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 14+85, 100 FEET RIGHT; THENCE 

EASTERLY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ENCOMPASSING 139.7 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, 
CONTAINING 53.5 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AREA. NET AREA OF TIF 

DISTRICT WHICH EXCLUDES EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY IS 86.2 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 



CONSULTINGURBANPGAV

Exhibit 1

City of Mattoon, Illinois

South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area

oJANUARY 2007

0 500 1,000250

Feet

§̈¦57

tu45

tu45

SOUTH ROUTE 45 REDEVELOPMENT
PROJECT AREA BOUNDARY MAP

South Route 45 Redevelopment
Project Area Boundary



 

             

ORDINANCE NO. 2007-5231 

 
  ADOPTING TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon, Illinois desires to adopt tax increment financing 
pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 et. 
seq., as amended, hereinafter referred to as the "Act". 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon has adopted a Tax Increment Redevelopment Plan 
and Project, designated the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area pursuant to the 
provisions of the Act, and has otherwise complied with all other conditions precedent 
required by the Act. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS, that: 
 
 1. Tax increment financing is hereby adopted in respect to the Tax Increment 

Redevelopment Plan and Project for South Route 45 Redevelopment 
Project Area (Area) approved and adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 2007-
5229 of the City of Mattoon, which said Area was designated pursuant to 
Ordinance No. 2007-5230 and is described in the Exhibit A, attached hereto 
and made part of this Ordinance. 

 
 2. After the total equalized assessed valuation of taxable real property in South 

Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area exceeds the total initial equalized 
assessed value of all taxable real property in the South Route 45 
Redevelopment Project Area, the ad valorem taxes, if any, arising from the 
levies upon real property in the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project 
Area by taxing districts and the rates determined in the manner provided in 
Section 11-74.4-9(b) of the Act each year after the effective date of this 
Ordinance until the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area costs and 
obligations issued in respect thereto have been paid shall be divided as 
follows: 

 
  a. That portion of taxes levied upon each taxable lot, block, tract or 

parcel of real property which is attributable to the lower of the current 
equalized assessed value or the initial equalized assessed value of 
each such taxable lot, block, tract or parcel of real property in the 
South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area shall be allocated to 
and when collected shall be paid by the county collector to the 
respective affected taxing districts in the manner required by law in 
the absence of the adoption of tax increment allocation financing. 

 
  b. That portion, if any, of such taxes which is attributable to the increase 

in the current equalized assessed valuation of each taxable lot, block, 



 

             

tract or parcel of real property in the redevelopment project area over 
and above the initial equalized assessed value of each property in the 
South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area shall be allocated to 
and when collected shall be paid to the municipal treasurer who shall 
deposit said taxes into a special fund called "the Special Tax 
Allocation Fund for the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area" 
of the City of Mattoon for the purpose of paying South Route 45 
Redevelopment Project Area costs and obligations incurred in the 
payment thereof, pursuant to such appropriations which may be 
subsequently made. 

 
 3. All Ordinances and parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 
 

 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its approval, 
passage, and publication as required by law. 

 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Charles E. White, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk 



 

             

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
FOR 

SOUTH ROUTE 45 TIF DISTRICT 
MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
A TRACT OF LAND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36, 
TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN; 

THE NORTHWEST QUARTER AND SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1, 
TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN; 

THE NORTHEAST QUARTER AND SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 2, 
TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
AND PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, 
RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST 

QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 36; THENCE NORTH 87° 47' 27" EAST, 138.40 FEET ALONG THE 

NORTH LINE OF SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 36 TO 

THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A TRACT DESCRIBED IN WARRANTY DEED ON DOCUMENT 

NUMBER 681624 IN THE COLES COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE; THENCE NORTH 87° 47' 27" 

EAST, 447 FEET MORE OR LESS ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACT TO A POINT BEING ON 

THE NORTHWESTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF S.A. ROUTE 19 STATION 67+22.2, 33 FEET 

LEFT; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 66.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

S.A. ROUTE 19; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE ON A CURVE TO 

THE LEFT IN A SOUTHWESTERN DIRECTION, CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHEAST WITH A RADIUS OF 

227.44 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LINE OF S.A. ROUTE 19, 869.23 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE AT S.A. ROUTE 19 STATION 

55+72.93, 33 FEET RIGHT; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE ON A 

CURVE TO THE RIGHT IN A SOUTHWESTERLY DIRECTION, CONCAVE TO THE NORTHWEST WITH 

A RADIUS OF 263.00 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY 

OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (US ROUTE 45); THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EASTERN RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (US ROUTE 45) AS MONUMENTED AND OCCUPIED ON THE 

FOLLOWING DESCRIBED COURSES: SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 STATION 31+63.93, 200.00 

FEET LEFT; WESTERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 31+63.93, 146.22 FEET 

LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 41+66, 125 FEET LEFT; 

SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 57+49.91, 147 FEET LEFT; 

SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 62+00, 120 FEET LEFT; 

SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 68+55, 120 FEET LEFT; WESTERLY 

TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 68+55, 117 FEET LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. 
ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 70+63, 117 FEET LEFT; EASTERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 

(U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 70+63, 150 FEET LEFT; SOUTHERLY TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. 
ROUTE 45) STATION 72+82.51, 150 FEET LEFT; THENCE WESTERLY TO THE SOUTHEAST 

CORNER OF LOT 2 OF LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE I AS RECORDED ON DOCUMENT 

NUMBER 605697 ON PLAT BOOK 5 AT PAGE 165, POINT BEING ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY 



 

             

LINE OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45); THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 196.07 FEET 

ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 2 TO THE EAST LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE 

CONTINUE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 60.00 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

LAKER AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 00° 20’ 57” WEST, 483.56 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER 

OF LOT 4 OF SAID LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE I, POINT ALSO BEING ON THE SOUTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 462.5 FEET 

ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 00° 20’ 57” 

WEST, 244.00 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOT 12 AND THE SOUTHERN EXTENSION 

THEREOF TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 12 OF SAID LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE 

I; THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 105 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 12 TO 

THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 12; THENCE SOUTH 00° 20’ 57” EAST, 244.00 FEET 

ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 12 AND SOUTHERN EXTENSION THEREOF TO THE SOUTH 

LINE OF LAKER AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” WEST, 340.50 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH 

LINE OF SAID LAKER AVENUE TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 11 OF SAID LAKELAND 

DEVELOPMENT PHASE I; THENCE SOUTH 00° 20’ 57” EAST, 184.00 FEET ALONG THE WEST 

LINE OF LOT 11 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 11; THENCE SOUTH 89° 39’ 03” 

WEST, 910.73 FEET ALONG THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTHERN LINE OF LOTS 4 

THROUGH 11 OF SAID LAKELAND DEVELOPMENT PHASE I TO AN IRON PIN IN THE 

SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.A.I. ROUTE 57; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 

ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY AS MONUMENTED AND OCCUPIED TO F.A.I. 
ROUTE 57 STATION 490+00, 125 FEET RIGHT; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 500.4 FEET ALONG 

THE SAID SOUTHEASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO F.A.I. STATION 495+00, 145.00 FEET 

RIGHT; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY TO THE NORTHWESTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.A.I. 
ROUTE 57 AS MONUMENTED AND OCCUPIED AT STATION 496+45, 156.50 LEFT, POINT ALSO 

BEING ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2; THENCE WEST 

ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2 TO THE WEST LINE 

OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2; THENCE NORTH ALONG 

THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2 TO THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF A TRACT AS DESCRIBED IN A TRUSTEE’S DEED ON BOOK 874 AT PAGE 

300 ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 567599 IN THE COLES COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE; THENCE 

EASTERLY, 310 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID TRACT ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 567599 

TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT; THENCE NORTHERLY 702.50 FEET ALONG THE 

EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 567599 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 

SAID TRACT; THENCE WESTERLY 10.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACT ON 

DOCUMENT NUMBER 567599 TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT AS DESCRIBED IN A 

DEED LABELED TRAILER PARK PROPERTY ON BOOK 788 AT PAGE 303 IN THE COLES COUNTY 

RECORDER’S OFFICE; THENCE NORTHERLY 660 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRAILER 

PARK PROPERTY TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2; 

THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 20 FEET TO THE NORTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAKE 

PARADISE ROAD; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID LAKE 

PARADISE ROAD TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE L & K MOTEL PARCEL AS DESCRIBED 

IN A TRUSTEE’S DEED AS TRACT II ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 593383 IN THE COLES COUNTY 

RECORDER’S OFFICE; THENCE ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID L & K MOTEL PARCEL ON THE 

FOLLOWING DESCRIBED COURSES: NORTH 00° 04’ 13” WEST, 375.76 FEET ALONG THE 

WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF L & K MOTEL PARCEL TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 

PARCEL; THENCE SOUTH 89° 43’ 50” EAST, 155.17 FEET ALONG THE NORTHERN BOUNDARY 



 

             

LINE OF L & K MOTEL PARCEL TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID L & K MOTEL PARCEL, 
POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF L & K RESTAURANT PARCEL AS DESCRIBED 

AS TRACT I ON DOCUMENT NUMBER 593383 IN THE COLES COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE; 

THENCE SOUTH 89° 43’ 50” EAST, 145.78 FEET MORE OR LESS TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45); THENCE NORTHERLY 950.13 FEET 

MORE OR LESS TO S.B.I. ROUTE 25 (U.S. ROUTE 45) STATION 14+85, 100 FEET RIGHT; THENCE 

EASTERLY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ENCOMPASSING 139.7 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, 
CONTAINING 53.5 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AREA. NET AREA OF TIF 

DISTRICT WHICH EXCLUDES EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY IS 86.2 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 



CONSULTINGURBANPGAV

Exhibit 1

City of Mattoon, Illinois

South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area

oJANUARY 2007

0 500 1,000250

Feet

§̈¦57

tu45

tu45

SOUTH ROUTE 45 REDEVELOPMENT
PROJECT AREA BOUNDARY MAP

South Route 45 Redevelopment
Project Area Boundary



 

             

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2007-5232 

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AND DESIGNATING THE 
SOUTH ROUTE 45 BUSINESS DISTRICT AND APPROVING 

THE SOUTH ROUTE 45 BUSINESS DISTRICT PLAN WITHIN 
THE CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois (the “Municipality”), is 
authorized under and pursuant to Division 74.3 (Business District Development and 
Redevelopment) of Article 11 (Public Health, Safety and Welfare) of the Illinois Municipal 
Code, Section 5/11-74.3-1 et seq. of Chapter 65 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes (as 
supplemented and amended, the “Business District Act”) to establish a business district to be 
named the “South Route 45 Business District” (the “Business District”) and adopt and 
approve the related “South Route 45 Business District Plan” (the “Business District Plan”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Municipality is interested in assisting in the financing of certain public 

and private improvements, infrastructure and facilities (i.e., (i) site preparation and 
improvements including environmental remediation; (ii) public infrastructure and facilities and 
improvements, including streets, sidewalks, lighting and water, sewer, electrical and gas 
facilities; (iii) site utilities; (iv) building rehabilitation; (v) engineering, legal and finance 
services; and (vi) related facilities, improvements and costs, constituting, collectively, the 
“Business District Project Costs”) within the Business District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Business District is compact and contiguous and is totally within the 

corporate limits of the Municipality, and it is in the public interest to establish the Business 
District as a business district under the Act for the purposes herein set forth; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Municipality on February 6, 2007, adopted a Resolution Proposing the 

Establishment of the South Route 45 Business District and Adoption of a South Route 45 
Business District Plan, and Setting Dates and Providing Notices for the Related Public Hearings 
(the “Resolution”) which set the public hearings concerning the Business District for February 
20, 2007 and April 3, 2007, (the “Public Hearings”), and approved the form of notice to  be  
given  for  the  Public  Hearings  (the “Notice”), with  respect  to  which  the Municipality on 
February 9, 2007 mailed Notice to the person or persons in whose name the general taxes for the 
last preceding year were paid (“Taxpayers”) on each lot, block, tract or parcel of land lying 
within the proposed Business District, and the Notice on February 8, 2007 for the Public 
Hearings was published in the Mattoon Journal Gazette published in Mattoon, Illinois, and of 
general circulation within the Municipality, and the Public Hearings were duly held on February 
20, 2007and April 3, 2007. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 



 

             

CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  The Municipality hereby designates the real estate described in the attached 

Exhibit A, “Description of South Route 45 Business District of the City of Mattoon, Coles 
County, Illinois” as a business district under the Business District Act (65 ILCS 5/11-74.3-1 et 

seq., as supplemented and amended), and as the Business district hereunder. 
 
Section 2.  Under the Business District Act the Municipality, hereby adopts and approves 

the South Route 45 Business District Plan for the South Route 45 Business District. 
 
Section 3.  The South Route 45 Business District Plan shall be in the form presented to 

the Municipality’s corporate authorities at the times (i) the Initial Ordinance was adopted and (ii) 
this ordinance is adopted.  The South Route 45 Business District Plan as so adopted and 
approved shall be on file with the City Clerk’s records with this ordinance (but any failure to so 
file it shall not abrogate, diminish or impair its effect). 

 
Section 4.  Obligations payable from and/or secured by revenues derived from the 

Business District may be issued for financing Business District Project Costs. 
 
Section 5.  The City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this ordinance with the County 

Clerk of Coles County, Illinois. 
 
Section 6.  The Mayor, the City Clerk, the City Treasurer, the City Attorney and other 

officials, consultants, employees and attorneys of the Municipality are hereby authorized and 
directed on behalf of the Municipality to do such things as may be necessary or desirable to carry 
out the transactions contemplated by and to give full effect to this ordinance without further act 
or deed on the part of the Municipality’s corporate authorities. 

 
Section  7.  If any portion of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any 

court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the remaining 
portions of this resolution. 

 
Section 8.  Pursuant to Section 1-2-4 of the Illinois Municipal Code, this ordinance shall 

be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval. 
 
Upon motion by       , seconded by                 

    , adopted this _____ day of   , 2007 by roll call vote, as 
follows. 

 
AYES (names):           
             
NAYS (Names):           
ABSENT (Names):           
 
     Approved this _____ day of    , 2007. 
(SEAL)  



 

             

 
 
             

Mayor, City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois 
 
Attest:   
 
 
 
      
City Clerk, City of Mattoon 
Coles County, Illinois 
 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on      , 2007.   



 

             

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
FOR 

SOUTH ROUTE 45 BUSINESS DISTRICT 
MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

A tract of land being a part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 36, Township 12 North, Range 7 
East of the Third Principal Meridian; the Northwest Quarter and Southwest Quarter of Section 1, 
Township 11 North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian; the Northeast Quarter and 
Southeast Quarter of Section 2, Township 11 North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal 
Meridian, and part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 35, Township 12 North, Range 7 East of 
the Third Principal Meridian, Coles County, Illinois, being described as follows:  
Beginning at the Northwest corner of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of said 
Section 36; thence North 87° 47' 27" East, 138.40 feet along the North line of Southwest Quarter 
of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 36 to the Northwest corner of a tract described in 
Warranty Deed on Document Number 681624 in the Coles County Recorder's Office; thence 
North 87° 47' 27" East, 447 feet more or less along the North line of said tract to a point being on 
the Northwestern Right-of-Way line of S.A. Route 19 Station 67+22.2, 33 feet left; thence 
Southeasterly 66.00 feet to the Southeastern Right-of-Way line of S.A. Route 19; thence along 
the Southeastern Right-of-Way line on a curve to the left in a Southwestern direction, concave to 
the Southeast with a radius of 227.44 feet to a point of tangency; thence South along the Eastern 
Right-of-Way line of S.A. Route 19, 869.23 feet to a point of curvature at S.A. Route 19 Station 
55+72.93, 33 feet right; thence along the Southeastern Right-of-Way line on a curve to the right 
in a Southwesterly direction, concave to the Northwest with a radius of 263.00 feet to a point of 
intersection with the Eastern Right-of-Way of S.B.I. Route 25 (US Route 45); thence Southerly 
along the Eastern Right-of-Way line of S.B.I. Route 25 (US Route 45) as monumented and 
occupied on the following described courses: Southerly to S.B.I. Route 25 Station 31+63.93, 
200.00 feet left; Westerly to S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45) Station 31+63.93, 146.22 feet left; 
Southerly to S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45) Station 37+08.79, 137.4 feet left more or less; 
thence Westerly to the Westerly Right-of-Way line of S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45) Station 
37+08.79, 125 feet right, point being the Southeast corner of a tract as described in Warranty 
Deed on Document Number 605770 recorded in Coles County Recorder’s Office; thence North 
89° 43’ 50” West, 477.16 feet along the South line of said tract described on Document Number 
605770 to a point being the Northwest corner of a tract as described in Warranty Deed on 
Document Number 681889; thence Southerly along the Westerly boundary of said tract 
described on Document Number 681889 to the Northwesterly Right-of-Way line of F.A.I. Route 
57 and relocated S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45) interchange as monumented and occupied; 
thence Southwesterly 14.6 feet along said Right-of-Way to F.A.I. Route 57 Station 503+00, 680 
feet left; thence Southerly 587.3 feet along said Right-of-Way to F.A.I. Route 57 Station 499+00, 
250 feet left; thence Southwesterly 271.6 feet along said Right-of-Way to F.A.I. Route 57 Station 
496+45, 156.50 feet left, point also being on the South line of the Northeast Quarter of Section 2, 
Township 11 North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian; thence West along the South 
line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 2 to the West line of the East half of the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section 2; thence North along the West line of the East half of the Northeast 



 

             

Quarter of said Section 2 to the Southwest corner of a tract as described in a Trustee’s Deed on 
Book 874 at Page 300 on Document Number 567599 in the Coles County Recorder’s Office; 
thence Easterly 310 feet along the South line of said tract on Document Number 567599 to the 
Southeast corner of said tract; thence Northerly 702.50 feet along the East line of said tract on 
Document Number 567599 to the Northeast corner of said tract; thence Westerly 10.00 feet 
along the North line of said tract on Document Number 567599 to the Southeast corner of a tract 
as described in a Deed labeled Trailer Park Property on Book 788 at Page 303 in the Coles 
County Recorder’s Office; thence Northerly 660 feet along the East line of said Trailer Park 
Property to the North line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 2; thence continue North 20 
feet to the Northern Right-of-Way line of Lake Paradise Road; thence Easterly along the 
Northern Right-of-Way of said Lake Paradise Road to the Southeast corner of the L & K Motel 
Parcel as described in a Trustee’s Deed as Tract II on Document Number 593383 in the Coles 
County Recorder’s Office; thence along the Eastern boundary of said L & K Motel Parcel on the 
following described courses: North 00° 16’ 10” East, 64.82 feet, more or less; North 34° 47’ 42” 
East, 112.06 feet; North 01° 00’ 27” West, 50.00 feet; South 88° 59’ 33” West, 20.00 feet; North 
01° 00’ 27” West, 169.11 feet to the Northeast corner of said L & K Motel parcel, point also 
being the Northwest corner of L & K Restaurant Parcel as described as Tract I on Document 
Number 593383 in the Coles County Recorder’s Office; thence South 89° 43’ 50” East, 145.78 
feet more or less to a point the Westerly Right-of-Way line of S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45); 
thence Northerly 950.13 feet more or less to S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45) Station 14+85, 100 
feet right; thence Easterly to the Point of Beginning, encompassing 59.1 acres, more or less, 
containing 15.3 acres, more or less, of Right-of-Way area. Net area of business district which 
excludes existing Right-of-Way is 43.8 acres, more or less.  
 



I 5
7

400N

CH 13

U
S 45 IL 121 500E

C
H

 1
3

U
S 45 IL 121 500E

C
H

 1
3

CONSULTINGURBANPGAV

Attachment A

City of Mattoon, Illinois

South Route 45 Business District

oJANUARY 2007

0 400 800200

Feet

SOUTH ROUTE 45
BUSINESS DISTRICT MAP

South Route 45 Business District



 

             

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2007-5233 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A MUNICIPAL RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION 
BUSINESS DISTRICT TAX, BUSINESS DISTRICT SERVICE OCCUPATION TAX 

AND BUSINESS DISTRICT HOTEL OPERATORS’ OCCUPATION TAX 
 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon passed Ordinance No. 2007-5232 adopting the South 
Route 45 Business District Plan; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Effective January 1, 2008, a tax is hereby imposed upon all persons engaged 

in the business of selling tangible personal property, other than an item of tangible personal 
property titled or registered with an agency of this state’s government, at retail within the 
boundaries of the South Route 45 Business District at the rate of one percent (1.0%) of the gross 
receipts from such sales made in the course of such business while this ordinance is in effect; and 
a tax is hereby imposed upon all persons engaged within the boundaries of the South Route 45 
Business District in the business of making sales of service, at the rate of one percent (1.0%) of 
the selling price of all tangible personal property transferred by such serviceman as an incident to 
a sale of service; and a tax is hereby imposed upon all persons engaged within the boundaries of 
the South Route 45 Business District, as shown in Exhibit A, in the renting, leasing, or letting of 
hotel rooms at the rate of one percent (1.0%) of the gross rental receipts from such sales made in 
the course of renting, leasing, or letting hotel rooms while this ordinance is in effect.  This 
“Business District Retailers’ Occupation Tax: and this “Business District Service Occupation 
Tax” shall not be applicable to the sales of food for human consumption which is to be 
consumed off the premises where it is sold (other than alcoholic beverages, soft drinks and food 
that has been prepared for immediate consumption) and prescription and non-prescription 
medicines, drugs, medical appliances, modifications to a motor vehicle for the purpose of 
rendering it usable by a disabled person, and insulin, urine testing materials, syringes and needles 
used by diabetics.  This “Business District Hotel Operators’ Occupation Tax” shall not be 
applicable to gross rental receipts from the proceeds of renting, leasing, or letting to permanent 
residents of a hotel, as defined in the Hotel Operators’ Occupation Tax Act, and proceeds from 
the tax imposed under subsection ( c ) of Section 13 of the Metropolitan Pier and Exposition 
Authority Act. 

 
The imposition of these Business District Taxes is in accordance with the provisions of 
subsections (b), (c) and (d), respectively, of Section 11-74.3-6 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 
ILCS 5/11-74.3-6).  Taxes should be imposed for not more than 23 years according to Illinois 
Law. 

 
Section 2.  The taxes hereby imposed, and all civil penalties that may be assessed as an 

incident thereto shall be collected and enforced by the Department of Revenue of the State of 



 

             

Illinois.  The Department of Revenue shall have full power to administer and enforce the 
provisions of this ordinance. 

 
Section 3.  The Municipal Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this 

ordinance with the Illinois Department of Revenue. 
 
Upon its passage and approval, this ordinance shall be in full force and affect ten (10) 

days after its publication and pamphlet form is required by law. 
 
Upon motion by       , seconded by                 

    , adopted this _____ day of   , 2007 by roll call vote, as 
follows: 

 
AYES (names):           
             
NAYS (Names):           
ABSENT (Names):           
 
     Approved this _____ day of    , 2007. 
(SEAL)  
 
 
             

Mayor, City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois 
 
Attest:   
 
 
 
      
City Clerk, City of Mattoon 
Coles County, Illinois 
 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on      , 2007.  



 

             

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
FOR 

SOUTH ROUTE 45 BUSINESS DISTRICT 
MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

A tract of land being a part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 36, Township 12 North, Range 7 
East of the Third Principal Meridian; the Northwest Quarter and Southwest Quarter of Section 1, 
Township 11 North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian; the Northeast Quarter and 
Southeast Quarter of Section 2, Township 11 North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal 
Meridian, and part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 35, Township 12 North, Range 7 East of 
the Third Principal Meridian, Coles County, Illinois, being described as follows:  
Beginning at the Northwest corner of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of said 
Section 36; thence North 87° 47' 27" East, 138.40 feet along the North line of Southwest Quarter 
of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 36 to the Northwest corner of a tract described in 
Warranty Deed on Document Number 681624 in the Coles County Recorder's Office; thence 
North 87° 47' 27" East, 447 feet more or less along the North line of said tract to a point being on 
the Northwestern Right-of-Way line of S.A. Route 19 Station 67+22.2, 33 feet left; thence 
Southeasterly 66.00 feet to the Southeastern Right-of-Way line of S.A. Route 19; thence along 
the Southeastern Right-of-Way line on a curve to the left in a Southwestern direction, concave to 
the Southeast with a radius of 227.44 feet to a point of tangency; thence South along the Eastern 
Right-of-Way line of S.A. Route 19, 869.23 feet to a point of curvature at S.A. Route 19 Station 
55+72.93, 33 feet right; thence along the Southeastern Right-of-Way line on a curve to the right 
in a Southwesterly direction, concave to the Northwest with a radius of 263.00 feet to a point of 
intersection with the Eastern Right-of-Way of S.B.I. Route 25 (US Route 45); thence Southerly 
along the Eastern Right-of-Way line of S.B.I. Route 25 (US Route 45) as monumented and 
occupied on the following described courses: Southerly to S.B.I. Route 25 Station 31+63.93, 
200.00 feet left; Westerly to S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45) Station 31+63.93, 146.22 feet left; 
Southerly to S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45) Station 37+08.79, 137.4 feet left more or less; 
thence Westerly to the Westerly Right-of-Way line of S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45) Station 
37+08.79, 125 feet right, point being the Southeast corner of a tract as described in Warranty 
Deed on Document Number 605770 recorded in Coles County Recorder’s Office; thence North 
89° 43’ 50” West, 477.16 feet along the South line of said tract described on Document Number 
605770 to a point being the Northwest corner of a tract as described in Warranty Deed on 
Document Number 681889; thence Southerly along the Westerly boundary of said tract 
described on Document Number 681889 to the Northwesterly Right-of-Way line of F.A.I. Route 
57 and relocated S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45) interchange as monumented and occupied; 
thence Southwesterly 14.6 feet along said Right-of-Way to F.A.I. Route 57 Station 503+00, 680 
feet left; thence Southerly 587.3 feet along said Right-of-Way to F.A.I. Route 57 Station 499+00, 
250 feet left; thence Southwesterly 271.6 feet along said Right-of-Way to F.A.I. Route 57 Station 
496+45, 156.50 feet left, point also being on the South line of the Northeast Quarter of Section 2, 
Township 11 North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian; thence West along the South 
line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 2 to the West line of the East half of the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section 2; thence North along the West line of the East half of the Northeast 



 

             

Quarter of said Section 2 to the Southwest corner of a tract as described in a Trustee’s Deed on 
Book 874 at Page 300 on Document Number 567599 in the Coles County Recorder’s Office; 
thence Easterly 310 feet along the South line of said tract on Document Number 567599 to the 
Southeast corner of said tract; thence Northerly 702.50 feet along the East line of said tract on 
Document Number 567599 to the Northeast corner of said tract; thence Westerly 10.00 feet 
along the North line of said tract on Document Number 567599 to the Southeast corner of a tract 
as described in a Deed labeled Trailer Park Property on Book 788 at Page 303 in the Coles 
County Recorder’s Office; thence Northerly 660 feet along the East line of said Trailer Park 
Property to the North line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 2; thence continue North 20 
feet to the Northern Right-of-Way line of Lake Paradise Road; thence Easterly along the 
Northern Right-of-Way of said Lake Paradise Road to the Southeast corner of the L & K Motel 
Parcel as described in a Trustee’s Deed as Tract II on Document Number 593383 in the Coles 
County Recorder’s Office; thence along the Eastern boundary of said L & K Motel Parcel on the 
following described courses: North 00° 16’ 10” East, 64.82 feet, more or less; North 34° 47’ 42” 
East, 112.06 feet; North 01° 00’ 27” West, 50.00 feet; South 88° 59’ 33” West, 20.00 feet; North 
01° 00’ 27” West, 169.11 feet to the Northeast corner of said L & K Motel parcel, point also 
being the Northwest corner of L & K Restaurant Parcel as described as Tract I on Document 
Number 593383 in the Coles County Recorder’s Office; thence South 89° 43’ 50” East, 145.78 
feet more or less to a point the Westerly Right-of-Way line of S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45); 
thence Northerly 950.13 feet more or less to S.B.I. Route 25 (U.S. Route 45) Station 14+85, 100 
feet right; thence Easterly to the Point of Beginning, encompassing 59.1 acres, more or less, 
containing 15.3 acres, more or less, of Right-of-Way area. Net area of business district which 
excludes existing Right-of-Way is 43.8 acres, more or less.  
  



I 5
7

400N

CH 13

U
S 45 IL 121 500E

C
H

 1
3

U
S 45 IL 121 500E

C
H

 1
3

CONSULTINGURBANPGAV

Attachment A

City of Mattoon, Illinois

South Route 45 Business District

oJANUARY 2007

0 400 800200

Feet

SOUTH ROUTE 45
BUSINESS DISTRICT MAP

South Route 45 Business District



 

             

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE   4/17/2007     CDR NO:  2007-733    SUBJECT: Mid-town TIF Incentive 
Review Committee 
recommendations      

 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  4/11/2007 
 
SUBMITTED BY:                Alan Gilmore, City Administrator 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable):  3Mid-town TIF applications    
             

EXPENDITURE   AMOUNT          CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: FY‘08 $14,721  BUDGETED:  N/A            REQUIRED: $42,495+End Bal.      

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 

 
I Mayor Charles E. White move to accept the recommendations of the Mid-town Incentive 
Review Committee for the following projects.   

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
1.  Nathan Burton dba: EZ Parcel & Business Service 1301 Broadway 
The committee recommends a grant of $5,000 to be used to offset environmental engineering costs.  
Nathan is going to erect a new 2200 sq.ft. building at 1312 Broadway.  The Mid-town Incentive review 
committee review a rendering of the proposed building and found the design compatible with the Mid-
town area. 
 
2.  Janice Moritz dba: Warner’s Office Equipment 1601 Broadway 
The committee recommends a grant of $5,000 for emergency structural repairs to the parapet walls on the 
east and north of the Warner’s Office Equipment Building.  The emergency repairs have been completed; 
however the building may need further repairs in the near future. 
 
3.  Cory Sanders dba: Cory Sanders & Company Real Estate 403 Lake Land Blvd. 
The committee recommends an annual subsidy grant of $4,721.50 for a term of 10 years for tuck pointing 
the exterior masonry surfaces, roof repairs, 3 replacement front doors, 6 new windows and 2 new HVAC 
units for installation at 1400 and 1402-1404 Broadway. 
 
 

 
 



































































 

             

 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007 - 1212 

 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE: AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF  LOT 99 IN LAKE 
PARADISE SUBDIVISION AND A PARCEL OF LAND ADJACENT TO LOT 99 TO 

MICHAEL AND MARY PAT PLUTA, CURRENT OWNERS OF A HOME ON LEASED 
PREMISES AT LOT 99, LAKE PARADISE SUBDIVISION, AND AUTHORIZING THE 

MAYOR TO SIGN ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE 
TRANSACTION. (COMMONLY KNOWN AS 1859 SCENIC LANE) 

 

WHEREAS, state statute (65 ILCS 5/11-76-4.1) enables the corporate authorities to accept any contract 
proposal determined by them to be in the best interest of the municipality by a vote of two-thirds of the 
corporate authorities then holding office, but in no event at a price less than 80% of the appraised value; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, by Resolution 2006-2644, adopted April 4, 2006, the City Council made a finding that the 
real estate owned by the municipality that is the subject of this ordinance is no longer necessary or 
required for the use of the municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, said resolution authorized the management staff to solicit offers for the sale of this real 
estate provided that any such sale shall be subject to ratification by a special ordinance of the City 
Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, Michael & Mary Pat Pluta have made an offer to purchase the property for $16,600.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, Michael & Mary Pat Pluta own the home located on the property; and   
 
WHEREAS, Stanley D. Gordon, CREA of Gordon Appraisal Service, Inc. determined $16,600.00 was 
the fair market value of the real estate as of October 13, 2005, a copy of which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City has undertaken to have the property subdivided, appraised, has moved a gas line 
on the property and has had the title insurance covering the property updated and the purchasers are 
willing to pay their share of those costs; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The city attorney is authorized to prepare closing documents and the mayor and city clerk are 
authorized to sign documents conveying a warranty deed to the real estate described in Section 3 of this 
ordinance to Michael & Mary Pat Pluta, subject to a payment of $16,600.00. The purchase price will be 
due at closing.  
 

Section 2. The real estate to be conveyed pursuant to this ordinance is legally described as: 



 

             

 

TRACT I 
 
LOT NINETY-NINE (99) IN LAKE PARADISE SUBDIVISION, COLES 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
 
TRACT II 

 

A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF 
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COLES COUNTY, MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT AN IRON PIN WITH #3140 CAP MARKING THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 99 OF LAKE PARADISE SUBDIVISION AS 
RECORDED AUGUST 19, 2005 IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 204, AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 0683152 AT THE COLES COUNTY CLERK AND 
RECORDER’S OFFICE; THENCE AZIMUTH 181 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 11 
SECONDS (AZIMUTHS BASED ON ILLINOIS STATE PLANE 
COORDINATES EAST ZONE), 163.53 FEET TO AN IRON PIN WITH #3140 
CAP; THENCE AZIMUTH 269 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 37 SECONDS, 
248.53 FEET TO AN IRON PIN WITH #3140 CAP; THENCE AZIMUTH 0 
DEGREES 46 MINUTES 21 SECONDS, 197.78 FEET TO AND IRON PIN 
WITH #3140 CAP IN THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LAKE PARADISE 
SUBDIVISION; THENCE AZIMUTH 89 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 37 
SECONDS ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, 127.67 FEET TO AN IRON PIN 
WITH #3140 CAP IN THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 99; THENCE 
AZIMUTH 182 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 58 SECONDS ALONG SAID WEST 
LINE, 19.50 FEET TO AND IRON PIN WITH #3140 CAP AND THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 99; THENCE AZIMUTH 96 
DEGREES 31 MINUTES 05 SECONDS ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 
LOT 99 A DISTANCE OF 123.01 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 
ALL SITUATED IN PARADISE TOWNSHIP, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS.     

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval by the 
City Council.  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 

Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, adopted this 
______ day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 



 

             

 
 
Approved this ____ day of _________, 2007.  
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Charles E. White, Mayor    
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________   ______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 
 



 

             

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO.  2007-1213  

 
AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING THE APPOINTMENT OF BRIAN JOHANPETER TO THE 

POSITION OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DIRECTOR 
  

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon as follows: 
 
Section 1. The City Council hereby approves a job description for an Information Technology Director 
position, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
Section 2. The City Council hereby ratifies the City Administrator’s appointment of Brian Johanpeter to 
the Information Technology Director position as well as an employment agreement, a copy of which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  
 

Section 3. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval by 
the City Council.  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, adopted this 
17th day of April, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this 17th day of April, 2007. 
 

__________________________________ 
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
  
 
__________________________   ________________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney             
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

             

 
 
 

 
City of Mattoon, Illinois 
Employment Agreement 

 
The following is an employment agreement between the City of Mattoon and Brian P. Johanpeter for the 
position of Information Technology Director.  These terms of employment will constitute a contract 
between Brian Johanpeter, upon his acceptance, and the City of Mattoon, upon the acceptance and 
ratification of the City Council.   
 
Duties.  The duties of the Information Technology Director position are described in a job description, a 
copy of which is attached and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
Hours of Work.  You will be an “exempt executive employee” as that term is defined by the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, exempt from hours of work record keeping and overtime compensation standards. 
 
Term.  This agreement will run for a term beginning May 1, 2007 through April 30, 2009.  
 
Termination.  Your employment with the City may be terminated “with cause” as that term is defined in 
law at any time by a majority vote of the City Council.  You may resign at any time subject only to a 
requirement for one month’s notice to the Council.  These termination provisions are contractual and 
supersede any other rule, regulation, ordinance, or resolution now or hereinafter in effect pertaining to 
termination of other city employees. 
 
Salary.  You will receive a $60,000 annual salary commencing May 1, 2007.  Your salary will be 
increased $1,800 annually during the course of this agreement.  Any additional increase in this amount 
will be made, if at all, solely by the City Council at its discretion. 
 
Retirement.  The City will provide a defined retirement benefit for you with the Illinois Municipal 
Retirement Fund (IMRF).  You will contribute 4.5% of your annual salary by payroll deduction to IMRF.  
The City’s contribution to IMRF will vary on an annual basis based upon an independent actuarial 
evaluation of the pension benefit obligation provided to all employees of the municipality participating in 
IMRF. 
 
Insurance.  You will receive worker compensation, income disability, and life insurance benefits 
equivalent to benefits provided to other city employees.  At this time, the City will not provide medical, 
prescription drug, dental, vision, or hearing benefits for you or your dependents since you have made 
arrangements independent of the City for this type of insurance coverage.  However, the option to retain 
said medical-related insurance will remain open to you should you have need of it in the future. 
 
Vehicle.  You will be reimbursed for any actual mileage traveled in the conduct of City business outside 
the corporate limits of Mattoon.  The reimbursement shall be at the applicable federal rate in accordance 
with Internal Revenue Service rules governing the reimbursement of such expenses.  You will provide 
evidence of continuing insurance coverage for the private vehicle used for the business of the City in 
limits of $1 million per occurrence. 
 
Other Employment Benefits.  You will receive vacation, sick leave, holidays and personal leave benefits 
equivalent to other city employees who have managerial responsibilities.  Your date of hire for purposes 



 

             

of leave accrual will remain May 1, 2001, the date you were initially employed by the Mattoon Public 
Library. 
 
Professional Development.  Subject to your agreement to remain employed by the municipality for the 
term of this agreement, the City will budget and pay for your membership dues, registration, examination 
fees, and travel expenses for a reasonable number of hours per year of continuing professional education 
so long as that education is directly related to your duties as Information Technology Director.   
 
Third Party Vendors.  With the prior approval of the Council and subject to limits established in the 
annual budget, specialized services from third party vendors may be retained as needed for specialized 
technology related services to assist you in fulfilling your duties.  
 
Cost Accounting.  Direct costs of supplies, equipment, maintenance, and purchased services incidental to 
your services will be allocated to the governmental or proprietary fund whose personnel and assets benefit 
from the service.  The accounting for indirect general and administrative expenditures related to your 
salary, benefits, supplies, equipment, maintenance, and purchased services will be accounted for in the 
“Computer Information Services” group of accounts in the General Fund.  Interfund charges will recover 
for the General Fund the costs of your indirect general and administrative expenditures on an annual basis 
from other funds of the municipality. 
 
Cellular Telephone.  The city will provide an appropriate cellular phone and/or personal display assistant 
(PDA) device with both voice and data capabilities and service. 



 

             

  
   

 
ACCEPTANCE 
 
I, Brian P. Johanpeter, have read the above, accept and agree to the conditions of employment as stated 
herein.  By my signature, I hereby waive any rights, which I may now or hereafter have different from the 
rights contained in this contract and agree not to assert any rights in regard to termination different from 
those contained in this instrument.  
 
 
 
 
 ________________   _________________________ 
           Date      Brian P. Johanpeter 
 
 
 
Authorized by Special Ordinance No. 2007-____ approved by the City Council for the City of Mattoon, 
Coles County, Illinois at a regular meeting held April 17, 2007. 
 
 
Approved this 17th day of April, 2007. 

 
__________________________________ 

      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
  
 
__________________________   ________________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney             
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 

 
 



 

             

City of Mattoon, Illinois 
Job Description 

 
Title:   Information Technology Director  
Classification:   FLSA Exempt 

Compensation Range:   Defined by Employment Agreement  
 

POSITION SUMMARY 
 
The Information Technology Director plans, organizes, and directs the activities of staff and vendors 
pertaining to the acquisition, implementation, operation, maintenance, and replacement of technology 
related equipment and systems.  The person in this position prepares reports relating to the information 
needs of the municipality and alternative policies for consideration by the City Council.  The City 
Administrator and City Council prescribe policies for operations and hold the Information Technology 
Director responsible for the implementation and effectiveness of projects and programs approved by 
the City Council. 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES 

 

Serves as chairman of the City’s Interdepartmental Technology Committee, which consists of 
representatives from each operating department of the municipality.  The Technology Committee 
provides a forum for discussion of common problems and ideas.  It serves as a liaison between the City 
Administrator and the City Council in reviewing updates to the technology plan, and operating and 
capital budget requests pertaining to computer resources. The Technology Committee reviews 
specifications, proposals and bids received for technology procurements valued over $20,000, and 
offers recommendations to the City Council for the award of such procurements.  
 
As the Chairman to the Technology Committee, prepares agenda for meetings in consultation with the 
City Administrator and provides notice of the meetings; causes minutes to be kept showing the vote of 
the members on each question and on the other official actions of the Committee; maintains copies of 
communications and reports considered by the Committee. 
 



 

             

As “LEADS Technical Coordinator,” assures Police Department compliance with technical aspects of 
LEADS/NCIC policy and procedures. 

 

As “IWIN Coordinator,” serves as the primary contact between the Police Department and the Illinois 
Department of Central Management Services and the IWIN (Illinois Wireless Information Network) 
Support Center. 
 
Serves as the primary representative for the Police Department and along with CECOM (Coles 
County Emergency Communication), the Coles County Sheriff, and any other county public safety 
agency involved, works with the vendor for implementation, operation and maintenance of a public 
safety records management system and related public safety data management products. 

 
Monitors network connectivity hardware, servers, and network traffic and coordinates appropriate 
response to any network intrusions, including the effects from viruses and malware. 
 
Formulates network back-up plans, implements and maintains back-up plans in consultation with 
Technology Committee and external vendors. 
 
Manages use of the networks, adds new users, deletes former users, maintains database of equipment 
inventory and software licenses.  
 
Actively participates with the City Administrator and City Treasurer in the review of departmental 
budget requests for technology related equipment and systems; helps to formulate the annual 
“Computer Information Services” budget and plans acquisition of technology systems that will be 
capitalized.  

 
Procures and supervises the distribution of computer hardware and software; reviews and approves 
bills for technology related systems assuring compliance with procurement specifications. 

 
Trains members of the Technology Committee so they may be delegated responsibility for 
departmental level technical support under common protocols and supervision. 

 
Ensures 24/7 technology support is available for the City’s various operating departments and 
dispatches appropriate resources to resolve problems. 
 
Represent the interests of the municipality as a contract administrator to manage work performed by 
external vendors.   
 

Formulates policies for consideration by the City Council, in consultation with departmental directors 
for maximum utilization of available financial resources through appropriate allocations of labor, 
equipment, contractors, and vendors.  

 
Demonstrates continuous effort to improve operations, streamline work processes, and work 
cooperatively to provide quality customer service. 
 

DESIRABLE KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Knowledge of the 



 

             

• Design, development, and management of computer information systems;  

• Programming, information systems theory, systems analysis, database and telecommunications; 

• Contracting forms, methods and techniques;  

• Human resource administration; and 

• Municipal government management practices and procedures. 
Skills in 

• Negotiations with irate employees; and 

• Operating a personal computer, calculator, copy machine, word processing, spreadsheet, database, 
and presentation software applications.  

Ability to 

• Develop long-term plans and formulate major policies on complex technical and administrative 
problems;  

• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with fellow employees; 

• Work independently with minimal instruction and supervision; and 

• Work with and supervise, lesser skilled employees assigned to assist with tasks.  

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND OCCUPATIONAL EXPOSURES 

This job requires the employee to stand, walk, to use hands and fingers, to handle, feel or 
operate objects, tools or controls and to reach with hands and arms. This employee is required to sit, 
climb and balance, to stoop, kneel, crouch and crawl and to talk and hear. The job requires visual acuity, 
depth perception and color vision. There is an occasional requirement to lift and/or move up to 50 pounds. 
The noise level in the work environment is generally quiet.  

 

QUALIFICATIONS 

Bachelor’s degree in Business, Computer Information Systems, Communication Technology, or a 
related field.  

 
Three years work experience with at least two years in tasks related to this position.  

 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS 

 
An employee’s performance is measured in accordance with the specifications of this job description.  
This job description is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and the 
requirements of the job change. 



 

             

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 4/17/2007 CDR NO: 2007-734         
 
SUBJECT:    2007 Water Treatment Plant Chemical Bids 
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  4/13/2007 
 
SUBMITTED BY: David Wortman, Public Works Director 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Bid Tabulation Sheet 
    Bidder List 
           

EXPENDITURE        AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $        BUDGETED: $  REQUIRED: N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 

 
“I recommend accepting the bids from the listed suppliers for the purchase of various 

chemicals for water treatment over the next twelve months.” 
 

SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 

 
The City received bids for water treatment chemicals on Friday April 13, 2007.  
 
The low bidder for each group is listed below. I recommend accepting each of these bids. 

 

Chemical Supplier Unit Price ($/lbs) Total Price 
Alum General Chemical       0.1097   $       32,910  

CO2 Ethanol Products       0.0400   $         8,000  

Carbon Norit        0.557   $       50,130  

Polymer SAL Chemical        0.767   $       23,010  

Chlorine Ulrich        0.250   $         8,750  

Fluoride Ulrich        0.196   $         7,840  

Ammonia Brenntag        0.210   $         6,300  

Polyphosphate blend Carus        4.060  $       10,150  

 



 

             

Alum

300,000 pounds Unit Price Total Price

Current Price / lb. 0.0747          22,410$              

General Chemical 0.1097          32,910$              

US Alco 0.1192          35,759$              

CO2

200,000 pounds Unit Price Total Price

Current Price / lb. 0.0380          7,600$                

Ethanol Products 0.0400          8,000$                

Air Liquide 0.0425          8,500$                

Continental Carbonic 0.0475          9,500$                

BOC Gases 0.0480          9,600$                

C & S Chemical no bid

Carbon

90,000 pounds Unit Price Total Price

Current Price / lb. 0.410            36,900$              

Norit 0.557            50,130$              

Calgon 0.650            58,500$              

Polymer

30,000 pounds Unit Price Total Price

Current Price / lb. 0.716            21,480$              

SAL Chemicals 0.767            23,010$              

Chlorine

35,000 pounds Unit Price Total Price

Current Price / lb. 0.2695          9,433$                

Ulrich 0.2500          8,750$                

Brenntag 0.2520          8,820$                

Fluoride

40,000 pounds Unit Price Total Price

Current Price / lb. 0.145            5,800$                

Ulrich 0.196            7,840$                

Brentag 0.210            8,400$                

Ammonia

30,000 pounds Unit Price Total Price

Current Price / lb. 0.190            5,700$                

Brenntag 0.210            6,300$                

Ulrich 0.220            6,600$                

Polyphosphate blend 

2,500 gallons Unit Price Total Price

Current Price / lb. -$                   

Carus 4.060            10,150$              

Water Solutions 5.500            13,750$              

Water Treatment Chemical Bids - 2007



 

             

 

Chemical Bidders for 2007

Brenntag Air Liquide

Attn:  John Strother Attn: Geoffrey Cella

P.O. Box 20 5230 S. East Ave.

Hendersson KY 42419-0020 Countryside, IL  60525

800-950-1727 708-579-7935  Fax 579-7933

Carus Chemical Company C & S Chemicals, Inc.

Attn: Lorrie Lauf Attn: Rob Chanller

315 Fifth Street 4180 Providence Rd.

Peru, IL 61354 Ste 310

Marietta, GA30062

General Chemical Corp 1-770-977-2669 Ext 202

Attn: Lisa Brownlee

90 East Halsey Rd Calgon Carbon Corp. 

Parsippany, NJ 07054 Attn: Nancy Sullivan

1-800-631-8050 PO Box 717

Pittsburgh, PA 15230-0717

US Alco 800-422-7266 

Attn: Inside Sales/Steve Galloway

1120 Middle River Rd Norit Americas Inc.

Baltimore MD21220 Attn: Danielle McKee

410-918-2230 ext 103 PO Box 790

Marshall, TX 75671

Sal Chemical 903-935-4793

Attn: Lisa Martin

3036 Birch Drive BOC Gases

Weirton WV 26062 Attn: S. Darling

800-846-0330 575 Mountain Ave

Murray Hill, NJ 07974

Continental Carbonic Products, Inc 908-508-3401

Attn: Alayne Lacy

3985 E. Harrison Ethanol Products

Decatur IL 62526 9530 E. 37th Street N.

428-2068 Withita, KS 67226

Ulrich Chemical, Inc. Water Solutions Unlimited, Inc.

Attn: Scott Latta P.O. Box 347

3111N. Post Rd 295 Industrial Dr.

Indianapolis, IL 61938 Franklin, IN 46131-0347  



 

             

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1214 

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE 2007 - 2008 COMPENSATION PLAN FOR 
EMPLOYEES OF THE MUNICIPALITY  
 
WHEREAS, negotiations have resulted in ratified agreements with the three collective 
bargaining agents that represent employees of the municipality that provide an average of three 
percent (3%) pay increases at the beginning of each fiscal year beginning May 1, 2006 and 
ending April 30, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, each of these collective bargaining agreements provide that City Council will 
amend its ordinances consistent with terms of the collective bargaining agreements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the time is now appropriate to also establish rates of pay for employees not 
represented by a collective bargaining agent effective with the fiscal year that began May 1, 
2007.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon as 
follows: 
 
Section 1. Non-Confidential & FLSA Exempt Employees shall be compensated in accordance 
with the schedule attached to this ordinance and marked Appendix A, which is consistent with 
the salary increases contained in the City’s current collective bargaining agreements. Employees 
assigned to positions identified on the Schedule of Confidential & FLSA Exempt Supervisory & 
Management Positions shall receive an average salary increase of 3% as outlined in Appendix B 
effective May 1, 2007.  

 
Section 2. To the extent this ordinance conflicts with prior ordinances establishing a 
compensation plan for the City’s employees, the prior ordinances shall control except where 
specifically amended by this ordinance.  
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this ___ day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):    __________________________________________ 
    __________________________________________ 
    __________________________________________ 



 

             

NAYS (Names): __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this ____ day of _________, 2007. 
 

____________________________________ 
       Charles E. White, Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________          _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk            J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 



 

             

APPENDIX A{PRIVATE } 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
WAGE & SALARY SCHEDULE 

                                                         
  Pay            Job                Base Hourly  
Grade   Classification Wage Rate  
 

1  Temporary & Part-time Labor    $7.50 to $9.00 
 

2 1  Custodian I4      $ 9.20   
  Park Maintenance Worker I4    $ 9.20 

 
3  Custodian II4      $12.70   

  Park Maintenance Worker II4    $12.70 
 

4  Custodian III4      $14.95   
  Park Maintenance Worker III3,4    $14.95  
 

5  Custodian IV      $15.05 
 

6  Park Maintenance Worker IV3,4    $17.11 



 

             

APPENDIX B 

 
Confidential & FLSA Exempt Supervisory & Management Positions: 

 
 Pay           Job        Total Annual 

Grade Classification        Salary Range  
 
 E-1  Telecommunications Supervisor  $26,000 to $40,000 
   Tourism Coordinator 
   Administrative Assistant I 
    Entry Level ($ 19,136.00) 
    After 3 Years Service ($ 26,416.00) 
    After 5 Years of Service ($ 31,096.00) 
    After 8 Years of Service ($ 35,588.80) 
   Assistant Finance Director 
   Assistant Information Technology Director 
   Electrical Inspector       
   Plumbing Inspector  
   Construction Inspector I    
 
 E-2  Administrative Assistant II  $47,000 to $50,000 
   Community Development Coordinator 
     
 E-3  Construction Inspector II  $50,000 to $53,000 
       
 E-4  Water Plant Superintendent  $55,000 to $64,000 
   Wastewater Plant Superintendent 
   City Clerk  
   Transportation Manager 
   Utilities Manager 
   Information Technology Director2 
 
 E-5  Deputy Police Chief   $63,000 to $65,000 
   Assistant Fire Chief2 
 
 E-6  Police Chief2    $65,000 to $70,000 
   Fire Chief2 
   Public Works Superintendent 
   Lake & Parks Superintendent 

 
  E-7  Public Works Director2   $77,000 to $80,000 
 
  E-8  City Attorney & Treasurer2  $80,000 to $83,000  
  
  E-9  City Administrator2   $82,000 to $85,000 

 



 

             

Footnotes: 
 
1 Pay Grade 2 is for entry level employment. A 10% increase will be authorized upon successful completion 
of a 12-month probationary period. New employees will generally be hired at entry-level pay grades, unless 
exceptional qualifications and experience are demonstrated.  
 

2 Salaries for the Technology Coordinator, Police Chief, Assistant Fire Chief, Fire Chief, Public Works 
Director, City Attorney & Treasurer and City Administrator are established by employment agreement. 

 
3 Those persons making more than this schedule shall maintain their current rate of pay plus an 
increase of 2.75%. 
 
4 Employees shall be promoted to a level II upon completion of three years of service, promoted to a 
level III upon completion of five years of service, promoted to a level IV upon completion of eight 
years of service 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 



 

             

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1215  
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS AND MEYER-WORTMAN DEVELOPMENT L.L.C. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THE MATTOON MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT AREA 

 
WHEREAS, MEYER-WORTMAN DEVELOPMENT L.L.C. (the “Grantee”), has submitted a 
proposal to the City of Mattoon, Illinois (the “Municipality”) for redevelopment of a part of the 
Municipality’s Mattoon Midtown Redevelopment Project Area (the “Redevelopment Project 
Area”); and, thereafter, the Municipality and the Grantee have engaged in negotiations related to 
a Grant Agreement (including all exhibits and attachments in connection therewith, the “Grant 
Agreement”) concerning redevelopment incentives and assistance related to the preservation, 
development and redevelopment of a part of the Redevelopment Project Area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.   The Grant Agreement, in substantially the form thereof presented before the meeting 
of the City Council at which this ordinance is adopted, shall be and is hereby ratified, confirmed 
and approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute and deliver the Grant 
Agreement for and on behalf of the Municipality; and upon the execution thereof by the 
Municipality and the Grantee, the appropriate officers, agents, attorneys and employees of the 
Municipality are authorized to take all supplemental actions, including the execution and 
delivery of related supplemental opinions, certificates, agreements and instruments not 
inconsistent with the Grant Agreement, desirable or necessary to implement and otherwise give 
full effect to the Grant Agreement.  Upon full execution thereof, the Grant Agreement shall be 
attached to this ordinance as EXHIBIT “A”. 
 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this ___ day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this ____ day of _________, 2007. 



 

             

      ____________________________________ 
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
 This Grant Agreement is made this ____ day of April, 2007, by and between the 

CITY OF MATTOON, Coles County, Illinois, a municipal corporation (hereinafter the 

“Grantor”), and Meyer-Wortman Development L.L.C. of P.O. Box 217, Effingham, 

Effingham County, Illinois, (hereinafter the “Grantee”), as follows: 

1. Grantor does grant unto Grantee an amount to be determined by the formula 

outlined in Paragraph 2 below up to a maximum of Forty Six Thousand Dollars 

($46,000.00), to be disbursed as hereinafter described, subject to the following terms and 

conditions: 

  

A. It is agreed and understood that this grant shall be for the sole purpose of 

the building demolition and redevelopment at 1713 Marshall Ave. and 604 Lake 

Land Blvd., Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois.  The plans include the demolition of 

the existing residence located at 1713 Marshall Avenue and the former filling 

station/convenience store located at 604 Lake Land Blvd. The existing structures 

will be replaced with a new car wash facility featuring 2 automatic bays and 3 

manual bays. This grant is specifically contingent upon the undersigned first 

receiving initial design approval from the City.  Further, as additional 

consideration herein, the undersigned covenants that once completed, said City-

approved demolition and redevelopment work shall remain the same and not be 

substantially changed without prior written consent of the City within 10 years of 

completion of the same, which covenant shall survive the payment of the grant 

and remain obligatory unto the parties herein whether or not they retain control of 

the property or transfer the same to a third party within said 10 years.  Should the 

undersigned sell or convey all or a part of said property, it guarantees and 

promises unto the City of Mattoon that it shall include in the deed of 

redevelopment for said 10-year period.  Said prohibition upon a substantial 

alteration of said  demolition and redevelopment does not prohibit the 

undersigned from periodic and regular maintenance of the same, which 



 

 

maintenance shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, cleaning, painting 

and material replacement if warranted.  The undersigned agrees to area restoration 

within 60 days of initial design approval from the City, and to proceed diligently 

to the completion of the same, but in no event to be completed in not less than 12 

months from the date hereof. During said construction, the City, at any time, can 

issue a written notice to the undersigned that it is in violation of the agreed upon 

design and specifications heretofore approved by the City. The undersigned will 

have thirty (30) days from receipt of written notice of noncompliance with design 

to correct the same to the City’s satisfaction or otherwise reach a mutually 

agreeable resolution of the same.  If correction or a mutual resolution is not 

completed within said thirty (30) day response time, then in that event, the City 

may consider this grant to be in default, to cease all future payments due 

hereunder, and shall rescind the grant. Though the City of Mattoon retains 

approval authority and oversight responsibility for the demolition and 

redevelopment program discussed herein, it is not responsible for the destruction 

or construction of the same nor for the payment of the same.  Accordingly, the 

Grantee hereby agrees to assume all responsibility for any damages or claims for 

damages as a result of any injuries or claims for injuries for said demolition and 

redevelopment construction, and, further, agrees to indemnify and hold the City of 

Mattoon free and harmless in association with any damages or claims for damages 

by the Grantee, or other third parties. 

 

B. It is agreed and understood that the grant shall be for the purpose of 

replacing the buildings at 1713 Marshall Avenue and 604 Lake Land Blvd. 

Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois with a new car wash facility featuring 2 automatic 

bays and 3 manual bays. 

 

C. It is agreed and understood that there is dollar limit flexibility between the 

elements of construction cost as more fully set forth hereinabove. Said grant 

proceeds shall be based upon the actual demolition/construction cost of work and 



 

 

the incremental property received by the City, but shall not exceed Forty Six 

Thousand Dollars ($46,000.00) as determined by the City’s authorized agent.  

 

D. Said grant is to be used solely for the following described real estate, 

commonly known as 1713 Marshall Avenue and 604 Lake Land Blvd., Mattoon, 

Illinois, but more specifically described as: 

 
Lots Five (5) and Six (6) Block Two Hundred and Six (206) in the 
Original Town of Mattoon, commonly known as 1713 Marshall 
and 604 Lake Land Blvd. 

 

E. Grantee shall secure the necessary building permits from Grantor, and 

shall indemnify and hold the Grantor harmless from any and all claims, damages, 

and injuries associated with or resulting from the rehabilitation and improvement 

of said real estate. 

 

2. The Grant amount shall be forty-five percent (45%) of the incremental real estate 

taxes received on the properties indicated in Paragraph D above each year, for a period of 

ten years, up to a cumulative maximum amount of Forty-Six Thousand Dollars 

($46,000). The annual payment shall be calculated as follows: 

  

 A. Each year the current years equalized assessed value (EAV) shall be 

subtracted from the equalized assessed value at the time of the signing of this agreement 

(herein agreed to be $68,130 for both properties combined). This shall be the incremental 

equalized assessed value (IEAV). 

 

 B. The IEAV shall then be multiplied by the current years total tax rate as 

applied to the properties. This shall be the incremental real estate taxes.  

 

 C. The IRET shall be multiplied by forty-five percent (.45) and that amount 

shall be paid to Grantee.  

 



 

 

3.   Grantor shall pay the percentage indicated above in annual partial payments. 

These payments shall begin on September 1, in the year following the completion of all 

the demolition/redevelopment work and said annual payments shall continue to be paid 

on each September 1st thereafter up to a total period of ten years.  

 

4. Grantee does hereby guarantee and covenant that it will apply the grant money 

only for the uses intended as set forth herein pursuant to the terms and conditions set 

forth herein. 

 

5. Grantor’s grant as made herein is made contingent upon Grantee performing all of 

the covenants and conditions by it to be performed.   

 

6. This is an outright grant and is not repayable to Grantor unless Grantee fails to 

perform one or more of the covenants and conditions herein by it to be performed, and in 

that event, Grantor shall send written notice of said breach to Grantee and afford it an 

opportunity to correct the same within 30 days. Should Grantee fail to correct the breach 

within 30 days of said written notice, then in that event, Grantor shall rescind the grant. 

and shall be entitled to recover from Grantee any and all grant moneys heretofore 

delivered to Grantee, which grant money Grantee agrees to repay unto Grantor. 

 

7. This grant made herein is pursuant to a Council Decision Request approved by the 

City Council of the City of Mattoon meeting in regular session on April 3, 2007.  

 

8. Grantee covenants unto Grantor that it intends to retain ownership of the building 

for the operation of a commercial business or businesses and that it is not its intention to 

use the grant money herein to construct the building and then resell the same to a third 

party. To secure this covenant, Grantor and Grantee agree that if the building is sold to a 

third party, then there shall be a rebate of the grant based upon the following schedule: if 

sold within one year of the date of the grant, there shall be a 75% rebate of the grant 

amount already paid; if sold after one year from the date of this grant but within two 

years of the date of this grant, then there shall be a 50% rebate of the grant amount 



 

 

already paid; and if sold after two years from the date of this grant but within three years 

of the date of this grant, then there shall be a 25% rebate of the grant amount already 

paid. Further, Grantor and Grantee agree that if the business operation ceases for a period 

in excess of thirty days, and within ten years from the date of this grant, then Grantor’s 

obligation to make continuing payments from the grant shall cease immediately and this 

agreement shall be null and void and of no further force and effect, and there shall be a 

rebate of the grant money heretofore paid based upon the timeline and percent established 

herein for the sale of the business, being 75% within one year of the date of this grant, 

50% after one year but within two years from the date of this grant, and 25% after two 

years but within three years of the date of this grant.  

 

9.    Grantor reserves to itself the right to seek reimbursement for the amount 

expended under this grant from revenues of the Mattoon Midtown Tax Increment 

Financing District.  

  
Executed at Mattoon, Illinois, on the day and year first above written. 
 
 
GRANTEE     CITY OF MATTOON, GRANTOR 
 
__________________________  ____________________________________ 
Meyer-Wortman Development L.L.C. Charles E. White, Mayor 
 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk 
 
 




